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To be the leading provider of vocational
and professional education and training
in the region

Established in 1982, the Vocational Training Council (VTC) is
a leading provider of vocational and professional education
and training (VPET) in Hong Kong. It is a statutory body with
a mandate to provide quality and relevant VPET, to ensure the

* To provide a valued choice to school
leavers and working adults to acquire the
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* To serve with integrity
* To be client-focused

* To strive for excellence
* To be entrepreneurial
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International Culinary Institute (ICI)
Maritime Services Training Institute (MSTI)
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GOVERNANCE

The VTC is committed to high standards of corporate
governance and firmly believes that effective corporate
practices are essential to the sustainable growth of any
organisation.

Our corporate structure is well-defined and has clear lines of
accountability and responsibility. Authority is delegated within
clearly defined parameters ensuring efficiency in achieving
our mission. The VTC’s management and committees
operate at three levels:

(a) Macro-level management: the
responsibility of the Council, together
with its committees and boards;

(o) Day-to-day management: the
responsibility of the Executive Director,
supported by the Caucus and various
committees; and

(c) Academic advisory and management:
the respective responsibilities of the
Vocational Education and Training (VET)
Advisory Committee and VET Academic
Board, with its committees and boards.

The Council is the highest authority in the VTC and is
composed of 22 members, including senior Government
officials and non-governmental representatives from the
industrial, commercial, service, labour and educational
sectors. The appointment of all members is determined
by the Chief Executive of the HKSAR with the exception
of the Executive Director, who sits on the Council as an
ex-officio member.
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The Council is assisted by 21 Training
Boards and five General Committees,
whose membership consists of
stakeholders in nearly all the major
economic sectors of Hong Kong.
Together, they advise the Government
on labour market conditions in their
respective sectors and ensure that
VPET is keeping pace with projected
workforce requirements and changing
talent pools. They also advise the VTC
on curriculum development, course
planning and quality assurance.

The VTC’s day-to-day management
comes under the purview of the
Executive Director, who reports to the
Council via its Chairman. The Executive
Director is supported by the Caucus
team, who guides and manages the
overall operation of the VTC’s services.
The Executive Director also chairs the
Quality Assurance Steering Committee
and Strategic Plan Implementation
Steering Group.

The VET Advisory Committee, chaired
by a prominent industry leader,
consists of members from industry,
education and the public sector. Its
function is to advise the Council on
the broad direction and strategy of
the VTC’s academic development, and
its provision of quality VPET to meet
projected talent requirements. The
VET Academic Board, chaired by the
Executive Director, formulates major
academic management policies.

09

BEg s TRE2LEIRZES

T E— &iﬁamﬁlﬁ ZEEX
HABTFETENROEES - B L
%EﬁlfﬁﬁﬁiﬁAﬁm%%ﬂ
MEBERIEZ BRVICHEBXZE
Tﬂalﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ%%Aﬁ%*O
%%'*i@ﬁﬁwcmﬁﬁﬁﬁ‘
wiEREINBERBRHEER

HITHERFEREVICHE BEE
BEEIFERNESSERTF - REZR
SHPATHFEEEMEIEVICIEMH
MRS ATHFENETCEREER
ELZEeMRBIEANTEELZRS

FE o

EXEHEBIENEZEeRERBE
HEEE - KERXRETARTE: BE
ﬂ&%ﬁ%’ﬂﬁﬂwcé$%Fm
BEFAMERE  UAERHEERE
#Tﬂﬁ%ﬁMmAﬁ%Aﬁ%*%
FTH G MESeRHER - EREHE
%Ehwﬂﬁééﬁ-wmﬂﬂﬁi
EAXE BEHFIENEBKER
1265

il
g

F

3



Dr Clement CHEN Cheng-jen
(Chairman)

Mr Eric YIM Chi-ming
(Deputy Chairman)

Mr Conrad WONG Tin-cheung
(Deputy Chairman)
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By providing high quality programmes and
realising the untapped values of vocational
and professional education and training,

we are connecting the dots and empowering

our students through skills.
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CHAIRMAN'S
FOREWORD
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VTC-ITE International
Student Seminar 2015

At a time when Hong Kong is experiencing
significant social and economic change, and
seeking new roles in a rapidly-changing regional
and global environment, the need for a strong
framework of vocational and professional
education and training (VPET) has never

been greater. | am proud that the Vocational
Training Council (VTC) has made good progress
in achieving its goals during 2015/16, as
illustrated in this Annual Report.
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Connecting the Dots

VPET is aimed at equipping people

with the practical knowledge, skills and
competencies they need to succeed in
today’s challenging world. It is a powerful
tool for change and a backbone of social
and economic growth. We are encouraged
to see its importance gaining steadily
increased recognition, with the HKSAR
Government having stepped up its efforts
to raise the status and quality of VPET.

By providing high-quality programmes and
realising the untapped values of VPET, we
are connecting the dots and empowering
our students through skills.

A Positive Push for VPET

In 2015, the Government’s Task

Force on Promotion of Vocational
Education issued a report making

27 recommendations, including the
rebranding of vocational education and
training to VPET for education up to
degree level, and an extension of the
VTC Earn & Learn Scheme.

These recommendations align perfectly
with the VTC’s third eight-year strategic
plan, which covers the period from
2015/16 to 2022/23 and will help
the Council scale new heights in the
implementation of VPET.

It was equally encouraging that all of
the Task Force’s recommendations were
endorsed in the 2016 Policy Address.
The Government has earmarked a

site for us to build a mega-campus
that can support and inspire our
students to pursue excellence; and

funds have been assigned to provide

tuition fee subsidies for three cohorts
of VTC students admitted to selected
professional part-time programmes.

New Generation of
Professional Workforce

A successful economy hinges on

a highly-skilled and professional
workforce. To maintain and enhance
its global competitiveness, Hong

Kong needs people who encompass a
wide range of capabilities at different
knowledge and skill levels. Our goal at
VTC is to nurture high-quality manpower
for Hong Kong through the provision of
transformative learning opportunities.

During the year, we rolled out a number
of significant VPET initiatives, aimed at
helping young people reach their full
potential and prepare themselves for
the demands of the 21st century world.
These included implementing dual-
track VPET in Hong Kong, enhancing
the educational choices and pathways
available to students, and pursuing
research excellence.

Echoing the Government’s call, we also
promote STEM (Science, Technology,
Engineering and Mathematics)
education and encourage our students
to develop creativity, innovation and
entrepreneurship, as well as adopting
positive values and attitudes.

The positive feedback to our Earn &
Learn Scheme and a steady growth

in numbers of our local and non-local
students on the campuses demonstrate
that we are on the right track.
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Boosting Facilities

In 2015/16 we invested significant
resources in campus development.
Capital projects completed during the
year include a new halls of residence
at our Tsing Yi campus.

Meanwhile we are establishing

STEM Education Centres at various
campuses and equipping new training
workshops with virtual reality-based
simulation systems, which will
facilitate authentic learning.

Enhancing Values
Forging Partnerships

As another means of advancing Hong
Kong’'s VPET capabilities, we are
creating win-win partnerships with
local and overseas organisations to

achieve greater synergies in vocational
education and research.

Our strong ties with governments and
other partners around the world allow
us to offer our students enriched
learning opportunities, whilst also
enhancing the competencies of our
staff and other VPET practitioners.

One notable example in the past year
was the establishment of Guangxi-
Hong Kong Vocational Education
Development Alliance, a joint venture
between the VTC and Guangxi Zhuang
Autonomous Region Department of
Education. It offers a platform for
the VTC to share its expertise with
institutions in Guangxi and promotes
the development of VPET across the
ASEAN region.
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The Journey Ahead

Globalisation has affected every sector
of the world’s economy. Meanwhile,
advances in technology and the advent
of the fourth industrial revolution

are challenging traditional industries
and business models, leading to
unprecedented changes in the
economic and social landscape. This
calls for new forms of education to
foster the skills that societies need,
today and tomorrow.

To this end we continue to enrich

our curricula, utilising advanced
technologies and innovative teaching
methods, while encouraging more
cross-disciplinary collaborations. We
aim to strengthen the soft skills of our
students, and empower and equip them
for success in life.

Like all successful organisations, our
strengths and achievements come from

our people. | should like to extend my
heartfelt appreciation to all parties who
have contributed to the VTC’s success
over the past year: members of our
Council, Committees and Training
Boards; the HKSAR Government,
industries and other supporters in

the community; and of course our
dedicated staff. | thank them all for
their unfailing support.

In the coming year, the VTC will

be entering its 35th year of
establishment. We are looking
forward to celebrating this significant
milestone with all of you.

Dr Clement CHEN Cheng- jen, SBS, JP
Chairman
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1 We aim to take our students into the future
by offering them holistic training that enables
them to step into industry as value-adding,

confident and skilled professionals.
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EXECUTIVE

DIRECTOR'S
REVIEW

The past year has seen encouraging growth and progress in
the development of vocational and professional education and
training (VPET) in Hong Kong, as well as in the Vocational
Training Council (VTC) itself.

Vocational education plays a vital role in nurturing a new
generation of talented people for Hong Kong’s industries and
facilitating long-term expansion of the city’s economy. The
HKSAR Government has reaffirmed the importance of VPET
and set clear directions for promoting its development. As a
statutory body mandated to provide the city’s workforce with
high-quality, lifelong learning opportunities, the VTC is keen to
contribute to the growth of VPET and the betterment of Hong
Kong society at large.

In 2015/16, we took important steps towards achieving these
goals, notably by strengthening and diversifying our range of
programmes to meet the changing global environment, and by
better preparing students for the world of work.

20

BE—F BEBEZETHERAEBE -
RF - MBEIRE (VIC) Z 7 T,
MESERR  RIBRE2HUER -

BEHERBEN RATEEN R 4
AESEREBEAGNRRER  HREE
B BEFRBA - BRBABREESHEN
BR2EE  UAILEBEWMAERT M © 1F
RORTERE  VICE AN BERBATRER S
PERE RBREZEITHENERAELE
Bl REFR AT EEDR L -

2015/16F E - HMENEEBZ - EfE
BERIRBEMNE (L IBERXRT TSR 280E 0 &
B8 A B\ B35 (B B4 -

Promotion of VPET

Echoing the Government’s strategy and
guided by our third eight-year strategic
plan, we formulated a community-based
strategy to promote VPET to all sectors
of society.

Major initiatives included the launch
of a multimedia publicity campaign
highlighting the professional image
and ‘through-train’ progression
pathways of VPET. We also took
part in a number of large-scale local
and international events, including
the WorldSkills Competition in Sao
Paulo, Brazil, and organised diverse
community outreach activities.

In addition, building on our strengths
in apprentice training, we expanded
the scope of dual-track education in
Hong Kong by introducing the VTC
Earn & Learn Scheme. This approach
sees workplace training integrated
into the curriculum with a view to
enriching students’ studies and
enhancing their learning motivation. In
a pioneering move, we will launch two
newly-developed dual-track Diploma
programmes in the engineering field for
corporate organisations in late 2016,
offering certification at Level 3

of the Government’s Qualifications
Framework.

Advancing 21st Century
Skills

While a certificate may open doors

for employment, it is students’
professional knowledge and skills that
ultimately determine their capability
to adapt to new challenges, new
technologies and new opportunities.

At the VTC, we aim to take our students
into the future by offering them holistic

training that enables them to step into

industry as value-adding, confident and
skilled professionals.

In 2015/16, we continued to

enhance the quality of our market-
driven programmes, putting equal
emphasis on the social and emotional
competencies that are mostly required
in the 21st century of our students.
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Flying the Flag
Internationally

During the year, many of our students
received recognition in international
competitions. Our ‘think-and-do’
approach allows students to develop
their professional skills and exploit
their potential to the full.

A notable example was the selection
of The Drifter, self-written and directed
by one of our Hong Kong Design
Institute students, for screening at
the Cannes Festival Short Film Corner.
Another was the success of our Hong
Kong Institute of Vocational Education
students in the Asia Pacific ICT Alliance
Awards 2015 in Sri Lanka, where they
won the highest number of awards
among all participating Hong Kong
tertiary institutions.

These results not only underline the
value of VPET, but also tell us that
success in the 21st century lies not
in how much a person knows, but how
he or she uses that information to
innovate constantly and come up with
new ideas.

We continue to provide abundant
opportunities for our students to
learn new skills, explore different
perspectives and acquire a global
mindset through a wide-range of
supporting programmes, including
internships, exchanges, conferences,
seminars and research projects in

collaboration with like-minded partners.
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One signature event was the biennial
VTC-ITE International Student Seminar
which brought together some 600
students from the VTC, the Institute of
Technical Education (ITE) of Singapore
and other overseas institutions

for innovative exchanges on youth
participation in the community and
the world.

Meanwhile, we continue to invite
overseas professionals to Hong
Kong under our International Visiting

Fellows/Scholars Scheme, enhancing
the knowledge and skills of our
students and staff.

In 2015/16, some 8,500 students
went on exchange programmes in over
30 countries.

To enrich students’ learning experience
and enhance the effectiveness of
skills-based training, we integrated
innovative technologies such as
augmented reality and virtual reality
into our teaching and learning.
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Forging Stronger Ties
with Partners

Local, regional and global engagement
remained an important strategic
objective of the VTC in 2015/16.

Through our strong networks with local
industry partners, we were able to
provide about 10,000 students with
industry attachment opportunities
during their studies, allowing them to
apply their knowledge and skills to a
real work setting and enhance their
competencies for future employment.

New partnerships have been forged
with renowned national and global
institutions in Austria, China, Denmark,
Finland, Italy, Mexico, Norway, Sweden
and the UK.
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Enhancing Infrastructure
and Human Resources

During 2015/16, construction of a
new halls of residence in Tsing Yi
was completed, enabling it to come
into full operation in September
2016. It will provide students with
modern residential living space and a
welcoming, inclusive community life.

Construction is meanwhile under
way of new campuses for the
Technological and Higher Education
Institute of Hong Kong in Chai Wan
and the International Culinary Institute
in Pokfulam, scheduled for completion
in 2017 and 2018 respectively.
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Conscious that software is every bit
as important as hardware in providing
an effective learning environment

for our students, we continue to
organise comprehensive capability-
building programmes for our staff. We
also encourage them to participate

in research activities, exchange,
experience-sharing and international
collaborations so that they can keep
abreast with the fast-changing global
environment and educational scene.

Hand-in-hand Towards a
Better Future

During the past year, as always, | have
felt constantly proud and encouraged
by the ‘can-do’ spirit and dedication

of our staff members. In closing,

| should like also to recognise our
supporters in the community who have
generously donated funds to the VTC,
enabling us to meet and exceed our
targets. With the staunch support of
our stakeholders and a strong team of
some 6,000 professional staff, we are
ready to take the VTC to new heights!

Dr Carrie YAU, GBS, JP
Executive Director
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OF THE YEAR

The VTC Symphony Orchestra and
Chorus presented the‘Romancing in
New York’concert at the Hong Kong
Cultural Centre Concert Hall under the
baton of the world-renowned conductor
Dr Henry SHEK. The concert drew a
full house and was enthusiastically
received by the audience.

VIC REZB R ABEEEREX P LEE
BER (BEAQ) %8 25EELF -
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A Memorandum of Understanding (MoU)
between the VTC and the Association
of Construction Materials Laboratories
was signed, marking the debut of the
VTC Earn & Learn Scheme for the
Testing and Certification industry.

VTC B2 B TR S 1EE TR
He 08I K iRFE 2 VTC Earn & Learn B2
BE-R
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The learning resources centre at the
campus of Hong Kong Institute of
Vocational Eduction (IVE) (Sha Tin) was
named the Rotary International District
3450 Learning Resources Centre

in recognition of the local District’s
generous donation and support for the
VTC.

BEREHEZR (VE) (LA WEBER
A& [BIBR RS 3450 i@ 2% &R
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A ceremony was held to mark commencement
of the superstructure for the new campus of the
Technological and Higher Education Institute

of Hong Kong (THEI), with HKSAR Secretary for
Education Mr Eddie NG as officiating guest.

EESSEHENRBRTHED FIREBT LETIR
BHITHE  HERRRARBELEEETIEEE -

A flag presentation ceremony was held for
the largest-ever Hong Kong delegation to
WorldSkills Sao Paulo 2015. The event was
graced by the presence of HKSAR Financial
Secretary Mr John TSANG.

EBERKRELFE205EmEREL RREKRE
K 2BHAREFABEREREZTE - MK A
AREEFELEBIRIR - BOUBKEIEME -
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The VTC hosted the biennial VTC-ITE International
Student Seminar, bringing together some 600
students from the VTC, the Institute of Technical
Education (ITE) of Singapore and other overseas
institutions for innovative exchanges on youth
participation in the community and the world.

VTC EMMF —E R VICITE R B LM E - 600% 4R
B VTC * ¥ TEHE 2t (ITE) F1% FIg N 2 4
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An 18-member WorldSkills Hong

Kong team met and shared their
unforgettable experience with HKSAR
Chief Executive Mr LEUNG Chun-ying at
Government House.
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A ‘Youth-Up’ Development Scheme Commencement
Ceremony was held, marking the VTC’s collaboration
with Lantau Development Alliance and Mu Min Network
Service Centre in launching a tailor-made Foundation
Diploma programme for students in the local area.

(BT BFERFAEEMAZRE  BF
VTC B2 A IR | 1) 3% f B B AR A8 4% AR 7% 1
WETE SEASBERHIRFERREX

THEiI and UK Sheffield Hallam University entered into
a partnership to advance student exchanges and joint
academic development.

THEI EEREHIFBIERBEAB RN
BE - AMBERNAE  HHBMER -

At the invitation of the Hong Kong Economic and Trade
Office in Brussels, Belgium, a delegation comprising culinary
instructors, master chef graduates and students of Chinese
Culinary Institute presented a Chinese Cuisine and Belgian
Beer Pairing gala dinner at Egmont Palace in Brussels.

REFEEREFAFHNTRRERARLFNSHTEERLSENES
WMELREGE O RETEEE - KERERENBEAKNRE - A
EMBEERLRBRAETERRE - AP LA LR R o
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VTC students and teachers
showcased various innovative applied
research projects at InnoCarnival
2015. The officiating guest, HKSAR
Secretary for Commerce and
Economic Development, Mr Gregory
SO, inspected the VTC exhibits and
exchanged ideas with students.

VICREIF BRI E 2015 R Z AR
EHRFENESHHEARFIRE - B RE
BERBRARHFBRELEETTIRES B
EVICH2REMR - BEALZRAHELS -

IVE Engineering students successfully
completed a 3,000 km race across
the Australian outback at the World
Solar Challenge 2015 with their self-
developed, fifth-generation solar-
powered car Sophie V.

IVEIREMBAMENERLRAGREE
B Sophie VEDEM - BBt R A8
KB E2015 RBDIBERE  KIHTK
3,000 R EEIE -
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Hong Kong Design Institute (HKDI)

and IVE (Lee Wai Lee) collaborated

with international museums and
organisations from Denmark, Switzerland
and Spain to organise three international
design exhibitions of typography, urban
regeneration and architecture. A Grand
Inaugural Ceremony was held at the
Design Boulevard of the campus to
launch the four-month-long exhibitions,
which are aimed at inspiring local design
talent and the public.

B HME R 28 (HKDI) RIVE(FEA)
BFE - Tt R YE ST 0 BRR G 5 K AE A
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TR EMRESEE - BB RG AT
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At the 2015 VTC Graduation
Ceremony, over 21,000 graduates
were conferred with academic
awards. At the same occasion,
Chairman of the Education
Commission Mr Tim LUI, the
Guest of Honour, presented the
VTC Honorary Fellowship to seven
distinguished people.

VICE1T2016F EE X H12 BB
21,0002 X+ RBRERF - B F
MEZESIREIRELEETIRRE
F - WAL HEE A TR VICKREL
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The VTC participated in the
Education and Careers Expo
organised by Hong Kong Trade
Development Council to provide
one-stop information on further
studies, training and professional
development. An interactive
‘Skills Excellence Zone’ was set
up there for the first time, giving
visitors the chance to try a range
of innovative activities, such as a
badminton-playing robot.

VIC2REBEZEHRRBHE MBEE
R AAR  HIIRBERER
Bl FERRVEDRERERR A
FAI2RZIEHRRE) - MR T IR
PARITPEEK -
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The VTC organised its second
International Fortnight under the
theme Link Local, Go Global. The
two-week programme staged in
various VTC member institutions
featured over 40 activities to foster
cultural exchange and broaden
students’ global vision.

VICEME _EERER  AIERAN
B EBREER]RTE RIBBEKE
BIREREBA0SHBEIEE  REX
e300 - RmBEBERRE

The Maritime Services Training
Institute signed its first MoU with
Warsash Maritime Academy of
Southampton Solent University, UK,
to foster collaboration in developing
a joint programme for nurturing
maritime professionals.

BEIIERB (MSTI) BREFEZ EERR
FHABRREHSBEEREERITAFERS

8 SMEERBLRE  BIEEEES -
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The 2015 Outstanding Apprentices
Award Presentation Ceremony was
held to honour the outstanding
performance of a total of 30
apprentices. At the same ceremony,
the VTC and Construction Industry
Council signed an MoU for further
collaboration and providing industry
training.

VTC &1 2015 4 [E 4 th B¢ 28R =1 &
MREZEUE - BT 30 A G H 2 4E - VIC
HEEXBERS R SRR
ERE - BEFUEIAT -
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THEi and the Hong Kong Rugby Union
co-developed the Elite Rugby Training
Centre at the Kowloon Tong Campus
of THEI to provide professional
training facilities for rugby players
and enable THEIi students to apply
specialised knowledge and skills in
real-world contexts.

THEI B BBIRE S E1E - ENERE
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BROADENING
VOCATIONAL AND
PROFESSIONAL

EDUCATION AND TRAINING
BXETHE
AL R

The Vocational Training Council (VTC) provides a holistic
educational process which is designed to equip students with
the requisite knowledge and skills for the ever-changing 21st
century world of work. In line with the Government’s direction,
the VTC has stepped up its efforts to promote and strengthen
vocational and professional education and training (VPET) in
Hong Kong. Significant progress was achieved across many
fronts in 2015/16.

BEJIRBVICO)IREZFULHE
Bl RESLEZREEENZER
B BMRMMPEZSEERESEHN
T—tHLEEkBSTRATRK BBa
BRRBRELR - BB OHEER
HWEBEESTHE ZEREARNR -
2015/16 FE * HMAEEHFHEHNZ
HIEHRBERER °
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Through Train for All

In line with its mission to provide
valued choice to students while
offering valued support to industry,
the VTC offers through-train
vocational education to learners with
different backgrounds and abilities.

Pioneering a
Dual-track Approach

The dual-track approach to learning
features the integration of workplace
training into the programme curriculum
with a view to enriching students’ studies
and enhancing their learning motivation.
Making reference to the best practices of
the dual-track vocational education and
training systems operated effectively in
several European countries, the VTC has
built on its strengths in apprenticeship
training to push forward the dual-track
system in Hong Kong. Of particular note
are two dual-track Diploma programmes
in the engineering field, newly developed
to meet the needs of local corporate
organisations. Offering certification

at Level 3 of the Government’s
Qualifications Framework, they will be
launched in late 2016 and represent a
pioneering development for Hong Kong.
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The VTC Earn & Learn Scheme targeting
Secondary 3 to 6 students and eligible
adult learners was launched through
the tripartite efforts of the Government,
industry and the VTC. The Scheme
provides structured training and a clear
career progression pathway in addition
to a stable income for students.

The VTC has been piloting the Scheme
since 2014 in industries with keen
manpower demand, including the
automobile, construction, electrical

and mechanical engineering, printing,
retail, watch and clock, testing and
certification industries. The first

cohort of students, who received their
18-month training as the inaugural
class of the Foundation Diploma (Retail)
programme under the VTC Earn & Learn
Scheme, graduated in March 2016.

In view of the encouraging response,
the VTC Earn & Learn Scheme will be
further extended, with some 2,000
more students expected to benefit.

The VTC also administers
apprenticeship schemes that offer
school-leavers valuable choices

to receive systematic workplace
training and equip them with the
competence and skills needed for
their professional development. In
2015/16, over 2,000 participants
joined these apprenticeship schemes,
which cover more than 70 trades.
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In 2015/16, the VTC also launched
an Extended Industry Attachment
Scheme, which is being piloted in two
Higher Diploma (HD) programmes in
the Information Technology Discipline.
Taking the form of three days of
study and three days of workplace
attachment, the Scheme gives 50
students the opportunity to undertake
an eight-month attachment programme
in large telecommunications
companies nhamely PCCW Solutions,
Hutchison Telecommunications

Hong Kong, Wharf T&T and Global
Technology Integrator.

Professionals of these supporting
corporations also participated in co-
teaching and co-assessment of the
related student projects in the HD
programmes. Such learning extension
gives students sufficient time to
acquire industry knowledge and skills
while making meaningful contributions
to the company’s work.
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The wide selection of our VPET
programmes Opens up humerous
educational and career possibilities for
our students. In 2015/16, a total of
57,900 local and non-local students
were enrolled in pre-employment
programmes. The VTC’s pre-employment
programmes are continually reviewed
and updated to ensure they evolve
with the changing pedagogical and
economic landscapes.

During the year, new programmes
were offered at the HD level in such
areas as Medical Centre Operations,
Stage and Set Design, and Testing
and Certification. We also introduced
an Elderly and Rehabilitation Services
stream in the Diploma of Foundation
Studies programme, under which
graduates will be recognised by the
Social Welfare Department and eligible
for registration as health workers.

In addition to these HD programmes,
the VTC offers Degree programmes with
a strong vocational and professional
orientation through Technological and
Higher Education Institute of Hong
Kong (THEI), adding to the diversity of
higher education in Hong Kong. During
the year, it continued this commitment
by introducing new programmes in
surveying, retail management, and
information and communications
technology, which will admit students in
the 2016/17 academic year.
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Evidence that the THEi programmes
serve Hong Kong well can be seen
from the fact that six of them were
included in the dozen programmes
selected for the Government’s Study
Subsidy Scheme for Designated
Professions/Sectors in 2015/16.

Top-up Degrees were offered during
the year to meet the aspirations of
HD graduates and other sub-degree
holders for higher qualifications.

In the year under review, 56 Top-up
Degree programmes from the School
for Higher and Professional Education
(SHAPE) were offered in collaboration
with 11 partner universities, together
serving over 4,000 students. Alongside
these, Master Degree programmes
were offered in partnership with the
University of Warwick in the UK.
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To help students appreciate the value of VPET and
plan ahead for their future studies and careers,
the VTC actively promotes VPET in the secondary
education sector through Applied Learning

(ApL) courses and various community outreach
programmes for Hong Kong Diploma of Secondary
Education (HKDSE) students, such as taster and
career planning programmes. In 2015/16, over
2,100 secondary school students were engaged in
ApL courses in various areas of study.

More than 410 talks outlining a range of study
opportunities for secondary school leavers were held
in 250 schools. Through hands-on activities, industry
visits and the taster and career planning outreach
programmes, students have gained valuable
introductions to VPET and their career aspirations.
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Committed to providing equality

of opportunity to all students, the

VTC continued to offer Vocational
Development Programmes to young
people who might not otherwise receive
the benefit of training opportunities.
About 600 non-engaged youths
participated in these programmes in
2015/16. In collaboration with the
Social Welfare Department, we also
offered about 700 training places

on tailor-made VPET programmes for
residents of the Tuen Mun Children and
Juvenile Home. In addition, we teamed
up with the Correctional Services and
Social Welfare Departments to provide
vocational training courses.

Provision of training to students with
special educational needs (SEN)
serves to prepare them for employment
opportunities or further education.
During the year, about 650 full-time
and 400 part-time places were offered
by the Shine Skills Centre. Separately,
over 1,000 SEN students were enrolled
in pre-employment programmes such
as Degree, HD, Diploma of Foundation
Studies and Diploma of Vocational
Education programmes offered by other
VTC member institutions. Adapted

ApL courses were offered to about

110 senior secondary students with
intellectual disabilities.

Currently, about 20 dedicated
full-time and part-time VPET
programmes are offered for non-
Chinese speaking students to cater
for their specific needs. About 800
students were enrolled in these
programmes in 2015/16.
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The VTC continued its staunch
support for the Government in the
implementation of the Qualifications
Framework (QF). During the year, a
total of 26 brand-new QF-recognised
programmes were developed and
launched. They are all Specification
of Competency Standards-based
programmes, covering a wide range of
industries including automotive, beauty,
hairdressing, elderly care services
and information and communications
technology, as well as testing,
inspection and certification.

Riding on the QF platform, the VTC has
charted articulation and progression
pathways that enable learners of
different backgrounds to upgrade
themselves from skills acquisition to
achieving professionalism through
continuing education and training.

Apart from administering and
conducting a variety of trade tests and
vocational assessments for various
sectors, the VTC has maintained its
role as the Approved Assessment
Agency for conducting the Recognition
of Prior Learning mechanism for a total
of 11 industries.
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We pride ourselves on our commitment
to maintain a robust quality assurance
system. Based on a ‘fitness for
purpose’ approach, this system helps
ensure our VPET programmes and
services are meeting the evolving
needs of the industries concerned
and our students.

In 2015/16, the Hong Kong Institute
of Vocational Education (IVE), Hong
Kong Design Institute (HKDI), Maritime
Services Training Institute, Hotel and
Tourism Institute, Chinese Culinary
Institute and International Culinary
Institute (ICI) were re-accredited by the
Hong Kong Council for Accreditation
of Academic and Vocational
Qualifications (HKCAAVQ) and granted
Programme Area Accreditation (PAA)
status at QF Level 4. The PAA status
has now been extended to cover five
additional programme areas, hamely
Banking, Insurance, Automotive,
Precision Trades, and Textile and
Clothing Technology.

Currently the PAA status of the VTC
covers a total of 30 programme
areas under the New Classification
of Areas of Study and Training in the
Qualifications Register. This status
allows the VTC, within an approved
period, to develop, quality assure and
offer programmes within these areas,
without further accreditation by the
HKCAAVQ.

During the year, three new VTC Degree
programmes, namely Information and
Communications Technology, Retail
Management and Surveying, were
accredited by the HKCAAVQ. These
new programmes are to be launched
in 2016/17 to meet students’ and
industries’ demands.

45

BB NEFRENERRENE - N
[P1&ME | BRAI HRVICHBER
THERENRERNBENRINTE -

2015/16 F [ ' VICE THEEHEEH
B BB (IVE) « BB MERETERT (HKDI)
BEIRER - BE MRS - PE
BEEL - B EFESfICHBRTE
BEMEBEERTIERNRZEE
NEEFREFNFNERGETEE
e EHTEERBLERERT R
% RE LR BEITE - PEAIRE
BHY A (B -

@ ) 0 B 5 ) 0 B T 5
% + VICIR B A p S L 0GB SP R A 4R
BEH 30 ERHBE - ZRRMAER
ROEMEER - BRAMBENRE
TETEEEERELERNS  BA
EHEBRTE -

FRN - VIC=EZFELTRE - BEEM
KiBaEhy - TEERE 2B E6B
FEBIE - HWERZHN2016/17F
FHE - IRABERERNTRK -



VTC = psn 1

EBREES

“One Examination, Multipl
Certific

VIClR T REXATRHRERZER

& THESBETHNDEEEER
In addition to offering skills recognition e @!;Zf;ﬁi TE@:T iﬁ{ =1
for professionals, the VTC continues (PEAK) Eﬂjﬁ;{xﬁﬁﬂa&iﬁijﬂi% . iq; ,
to provide a wide variety of in-service E’FAhKfM;?;:E iiE’\]DVTCjEiE:%@_; =F9EY
training programmes through the MAREEEREHNEEBE -

Institute of Professional Education And

PEAK TMEZE BPERE - SMEXRRE
Knowledge (PEAK). The VTC Tao Miao e o . N N
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Institute, operated by PEAK, offers
professional education and training
programmes for practitioners of the
catering industry.

BIFEKHFEE - REERFEXRF -

The high standard of PEAK’s services
was recognised when it received the
Excellent Huawei Authorised Learning
Partner 2015 award for providing
quality programmes in support of
Huawei’s professional certification.

The future of our city hinges upon the quality of its EENARERAEBES A EH X

people. It is one of our major goals to upskill the o MERMFIIRGIEAASIEE
workforce and nurture a culture of skills excellence HEEIEM  2VICH—KBIE -
through quality training and services.
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The VTC has stepped up its in-service [ERR RG] I 2 4 TR TS + 35
support endeavours, which include vocational BEERERTNENIETS - 2T
R E Vi N A

assessments for various service industries. LA = TR
. B WX BNERKF -
These provide a citywide competency assessment

platform for enhancing the professional standards 2013 F R ER LB ¥ ET

of industry practitioners. feeh 0 [ — RS F R - AT
In collaboration with the Guangdong Occupational [—SlZE | 58 REERTREEM
Skill Testing Authority (GD-OSTA) and an E1TRHIT - 25 EBNT700BE LR
international professional organisation, the ‘One AN Hhak R 2R INFEE - 2 F BB A
Examination, Multiple Certification’ (OEMC) BERRAREZLERIB260A c BER
System was launched in 2013 with Beauty Care BEN[—3ZF] 522015 FH#
and Hairdressing as pilot industries. Since then, H oo

around 700 candidates have taken the assessment
either in Hong Kong or in the Mainland, and over
260 individuals successfully gained recognition of
achievement during the past year. OEMC for Elderly
Care was launched in 2015.
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To support Government’s efforts to
promote technological transformation
and enhance the quality of its VPET
programmes, the VTC has intensified
its efforts to advance innovation and
research excellence.

In 2015/16, THEI successfully
secured funding of HK$12.9 million
from Hong Kong's Research Grants
Council to conduct applied research
activities in a number of subject areas
and to establish a central research
office within THEI. During the year, 20
projects have been supported by the
VTC research seed funding scheme for
conducting pilot research activities.

A Research Fellow/Visiting Fellow
Scheme has also been established to
support research activities, particularly
in the three priority areas of Vocational
Education and Training, Social
Innovation for an Ageing Population and
Environment and Sustainability.

Staff capacity to conduct research is
continuously being enhanced through
participation in collaborative research,
training workshops, seminars and
symposiums. In November 2015, a
research project called ‘Smart Robotic
Companion for the Elderly’, developed
by VTC teaching staff and students,
was showcased in the InnoCarnival
2015 organised by the Innovation and
Technology Commission.
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We believe that teaching and learning

is best achieved in a well-equipped

and supportive environment. The VTC
has invested substantial resources in
campus and infrastructure development.

Good progress has been made during
the year on a number of capital
projects. Among them, the construction
of a new halls of residence in Tsing

Yi was completed. The 800-bed hall
accommodation will come into full
operation in September 2016 and

will provide students with modern
residential living space and a
welcoming, inclusive community life.

Meanwhile, construction continues

on the new THEi campus in Chai Wan
and the ICI campus in Pokfulam, with
planned completion dates of 2017 and
2018 respectively.
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New Training Facilities

To keep our students abreast of the
latest developments in industry and
enable them to be conversant with the
tools and technologies of tomorrow’s
workplace, various new training facilities
have been planned or established in
different campuses. The advancement
of campus facilities has added further
momentum to the VTC’s endeavours.

Amongst the new initiatives is the
establishment of STEM Education
Centres on the campuses of the Youth
College (Kowloon Bay), IVE (Tsing

Yi) and IVE (Chai Wan) in late 2016
and early 2017. They will support

the learning and teaching of STEM
(Science, Technology, Engineering

and Mathematics) and serve as a
platform for students and staff in these
disciplines to explore related trade

and cross-disciplinary projects. A key
feature of the Centres will be virtual
experience learning zones, making

full use of augmented reality (AR) and
virtual reality (VR) technologies. They
will provide students with an immersive
simulated environment for a virtual
workplace experience.

To increase student engagement and
enhance the effectiveness of skills-
based training, the VTC has been active
in creating digital learning environments
and adopted innovative technologies

in its teaching and learning. A pilot
study on AR/VR-assisted Learning and
Teaching was initiated in June 2014,
and three practical training areas were
identified, namely Building Services
Engineering, Aircraft Maintenance and
Arboriculture. A VR-based simulation
training system was launched in

the Youth College (Kowloon Bay) in
November 2015, allowing students to
explore real-life immersive experiences
in a simulated engine plant room.

A new Human Resource Assessment
Centre was opened during the year at
IVE (Kwun Tong), providing an interactive
environment for training students as
human resources professionals.
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Building Awards

Our strategic development of campuses
has not only provided a dynamic,
state-of-the-art learning environment
for our students, but also gained
recognition from academic bodies in
the construction industry.

HKDI’s stunning campus won the
prestigious Chinese Structural Steel
Golden Award 2015 (Hong Kong

and Macau SARs), jointly conferred
by the Hong Kong Constructional
Metal Structures Association and the
Macau Society of Metal Structures.
The new THEi campus, which has
many impressive environment-friendly
features, was awarded provisional
‘BEAM Plus Platinum’ certification,
the highest under the Building
Environmental Assessment Method
(BEAM Plus).

51

BERIE

B PR E R R R T8 BB )
Bt ENRRLBBES  hESRE
REEEENEE -

HKDIF) BRI & a2 [ R B il 418
S (BERIE) 2015 2 —HBAE S
BECBABH AR eBEEHS
HEIBEEEERSS o THEIRFTR S A& %18
FFEIRREFARBAAEIRET (BEAM Plus)
TG RESZERFIRAS TR -



OUR

GOLLABO

FOI‘QGING VALUABLE ALLIANCES




THRIVING TRUSTED
PARTNERSHIPS
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Partnerships with industry organisations

and institutions are central to the Vocational
Training Council(VTC)'s agenda. Aspiring

to be a trusted partner of Government,
business, industry and the community, so as
to ensure our students continue to benefit
from authentic learning opportunities, we
are keen to forge strong, mutually beneficial
alliances and build networks with like-minded
global, regional and local organisations while
maintaining close ties with our stakeholders.
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Local Linkage

During the year, the VTC continued to
work closely with industry in providing
quality and market-driven manpower
training. Through these robust
partnerships, the VTC is able to boost
the competitiveness of many different
sectors as well as the local workforce,
enhancing Hong Kong’s value-added
development. In appreciation of its
contributions to the development

of local small and medium-sized
enterprises, the VTC once again
received the Best SME Partner Award
presented by the Hong Kong General
Chamber of Small and Medium
Business in 2015.

Industry Collaborations

During the year, we entered

into strategic partnerships with

a number of organisations. A
Memorandum of Understanding
(MoU) with the Construction Industry
Council was signed on training and
course development. Articulation
arrangements will be strengthened to
raise skill levels and professionalism
of the industry.

The establishment of new training
platforms in collaboration with
industry partners was another
example. These included the

Elite Rugby Training Centre at the
Technological and Higher Education
Institute of Hong Kong (THEI) with the
Hong Kong Rugby Union and Image
Lab 360°, an experimental space for
image design established by the Hong
Kong Design Institute (HKDI) and
Image Lab. Management Co. Limited
at PMQ.

At the same time, our students
continued to benefit from various

joint initiatives such as the YIC Youth
Education Programme initiated by The
Hong Kong Young Industrialists Council
(YIC) and the Careers China Project,

a collaborative project between the
Federation of Hong Kong Industries and
the VTC. Through these programmes,
our students had the opportunity to
undergo industry attachments in Hong
Kong and the Mainland.
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Donations and
Sponsorships

We are encouraged by the strong
support of industry in the form of
donations and sponsorships. In
2015/16, several new donations were
received from charitable foundations
and organisations.

These included the Rotary International
District 3450, which established

the “Rotary Hong Kong Vocational
Scholarship” to support the learning
needs of VTC students; the Bright Future
Charitable Foundation, which funded
progression scholarships to support
Diploma of Foundation Studies students
moving on to Higher Diploma (HD) and
Degree study at THEi; and Café de
Coral, which provided scholarships for
THEI students. Also, The Hong Kong
Jockey Club offered scholarships to
support our HD graduates to pursue
undergraduate studies in fields related
to aviation and marine engineering
studies and design, at overseas
institutions.

Wu Jieh Yee Charitable Foundation
made a second donation to provide
financial support to 100 students of
the Hong Kong Institute of Vocational
Education (IVE) and HKDI from less
privileged backgrounds, and Muses
Foundation for Culture and Education
sponsored HKDI design students to
join exchange programmes at the
ecole cantonale d'art de Lausanne
and the Royal Danish Academy of Fine
Arts. Meanwhile, the HSBC Vocational
Education Scholarship and Shao Ming
Lo Foundation Scholarships both
reward our HD students for outstanding
performances.
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Honouring
Industry Achievers

Honorary Fellowship is the highest
honour awarded by the VTC. In
2015/16, we conferred the title

of VTC Honorary Fellow on seven
prominent individuals in recognition
of their significant contributions to

the VTC and the community. They are:

Mr CHAN Wing-chan, BBS
Honorary President,

Eating Establishment Employees
General Union

Mr Barney CHENG
Founder and Director,
Yenrabi Limited

Ir James KWAN Yuk-choi, JP
Independent Non-executive
Director, Towngas

China Company Limited

Dr Stella KWAN Mun-yee
Managing Director,
Ngong Ping 360 Limited

Dr Joseph LEE Chung-tak, GBS,
0SstJ, JP

President, Wofoo Social Enterprises
Chairman, Wofoo Foundation Limited

Mr Benson PAU Kit-kwan
Founder and CEO, Wings Trading
(HK) Company Limited

Dr Patrick POON Sun-cheong
Chairman, Harvest SCP Group
Company Limited
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Mainland and
Regional Connections

Engagement with Mainland China

and countries in the vicinity of Hong
Kong is important for the development
of the VTC. During the past year,
significant efforts have been made

in establishing closer ties with
institutions and organisations on the
Mainland and expanding our reach to
major cities and provinces including
Beijing, Guangdong, Guangxi, Ningbo,
Shanghai and Sichuan. Liaison with
nearby Southeast Asia countries, such
as Singapore, Thailand, Indonesia and
Malaysia, have also been developed.
Through this extended network and a
series of collaborative activities, joint
programmes and exchanges, we are
able to share the experiences on the
development of human capital with our
country and the region.
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Strategic Alliances

In 2015/16, the VTC expanded the
number and scope of its partnerships
with renowned institutions to provide
our students with more opportunities
to engage in internships and exchange
activities. These included Sichuan
Changjiang Vocational College, Ningbo
College of Health Sciences and
Qingyuan Polytechnic.

Several MoUs were also signed

to promote collaboration. HKDI

signed agreements with a number of
prominent Mainland design institutions
including Guangzhou Academy of Fine
Arts School of Innovation Design,
Shenzhen University College of Art and
Design, and Beijing Institute of Fashion
Technology.

ETHIANEN 1y
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Joint Projects

September 2015 marked the official
opening of the Guangxi-Hong Kong
Vocational Education Development
Alliance, a joint venture between the
VTC and Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous
Region Department of Education.
Located on the Nanning College for
Vocational Technology campus, the
Alliance offers a platform for the VTC
to share experience in vocational and
professional education and training
(VPET) with Guangxi institutions as well
as those from the ASEAN countries,
as Guangxi is the base of the China-
ASEAN Vocational Education Forum.

The VTC and The Friends of Sichuan
Association also spearheaded the
5+5+5 Reciprocal Exchange Project,
whereby five inbound and five
outbound tours were organised for
the VTC and Sichuan students from
five leading vocational institutes,
benefiting a total of 150 students
from both sides. These interactions
afforded Sichuan students the chance
to learn more about Hong Kong
vocational education and Hong Kong
students the opportunity to gain a
better understanding of Sichuan
society and culture.
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Visits and Conferences

During the year, over 80 delegations were
received from the Mainland, comprising
more than 1,900 representatives from
government, academia and industry.
They participated in a wide range

of topical exchange sessions and

had fruitful professional sharing of
experience with local experts in VPET
and public administration. Other regional
delegations visiting the VTC during the
year came from Australia, Korea, Macau,
Pakistan and Taiwan.

At the same time, the VTC was an
active participant in conferences,
forums and exhibitions held in the
Mainland and the Asia region to
facilitate knowledge exchange and
cooperation. Among the events joined
were the China (Shenzhen) International
Cultural Industries Fair, the Ningbo-
Hong Kong Education Forum, the Bett
Asia Leadership Summit, LEARNTech
Asia and the Singapore International
Technical and Vocational Education and
Training Conference.
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Global Network

On the international front, the VTC continued to
widen its linkages with leading global universities
and overseas professional institutes and
organisations. These expanded connections
added further international opportunities for our
students and staff.

Academic Partnerships

In 2015/16, we established strong partnerships
with counterparts from around the world through
new MoUs, including from Argentina, Austria,
Brazil, Denmark, Finland, France, Germany, ltaly,
Mexico, Norway, Portugal, Spain, Sweden and
the UK. Amongst the partnerships forged were
articulation agreements with Coventry University
and University College Birmingham in UK.

A collaboration agreement with CESSA Universidad,
Mexico was signed in October 2015 to signify the
parties’ joint commitment to promoting culinary
culture in Hong Kong and Mexico.
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BRENRANERE WIAHENH
IVE information Technology

Japan Study Tour
The 8th ACM SIGGRAPH
conference and Exhibition 2015

Date: 2 Nov -6 Nov 2015

Participation in
Global Events

During the year, representatives of
VTC member institutions regularly
organised and participated in industry-
wide conferences and competitions
locally or overseas, in order to keep
tabs on industry developments. These
included the International Foundation
of Fashion Technology Institutes (IFFTI)
17th Conference 2015 in Italy and

the 8th ACM SIGGRAPH Conference
and Exhibition 2015. Networking
opportunities were also provided for
future collaboration.
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Bringing Home World
Insights and Knowledge

The International Visiting Fellows/
Scholars Scheme continued to bring

in professionals from overseas. This
year, renowned experts came to Hong
Kong from Australia, Canada, Germany,

Japan, South Korea, Spain, Switzerland,

Taiwan, the UK and the US. They

shared their expertise with our staff and

students on environmental technology,

image design, jewellery design, marine
technology, railway engineering, food and
wine pairing, physical training for ageing
and international etiquette. These
inspiring professionals not only enhanced
the knowledge and skills of our staff

and students, but also helped nurture a
culture of mastery at the VTC.
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EOPLE

BUILDING HUMAN CAPITAL




STRENGTHENING

HUMAN CAPITAL
DEVELOPMENT

The Vocational Training Council (VTC) understands the
importance of providing global education to its students so that
they can truly become global citizens and socially responsible
leaders. With this in mind, we provide students with an
authentic and vibrant learning environment offering innovative
and stimulating exchanges, as well as extra-curricular and social
programmes.
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Nurturing 21st Century
Work-ready Talent

In 2015/16, over 5,000 students
visited the Mainland as part of
outbound exchange activities under
different schemes, including the Pilot
Mainland Experience Scheme for Post-
Secondary students.

Learning Overseas

Over 3,000 students travelled overseas
to participate in exchange programmes,
including some who spent a full
semester at their host institutions in
Australia, Japan and the UK. Other
popular destinations for visits were
Germany, Singapore, South Korea,
Spain and Taiwan.

The experience of these fruitful
exchanges with overseas countries

and regions enables VTC students

to develop essential knowledge,
competence and creative thinking skills
with international exposure.

66

Whole Person Development
for Transferable Skills

To extend students’ learning beyond
the classroom and further develop their
potential, a series of cross-campus
projects was organised for students.

In the past year, some 12,000 Diploma
of Foundation Studies and Higher
Diploma (HD) students joined different
projects according to their personal
interests and development needs.
These included VCare, a social service
programme to promote volunteerism

in which over 500 students were
inculcated with a caring attitude and
received training that enabled them to
design 25 service learning projects for
the under-privileged in society. Another
programme, Speak for Success, helped
students enhance their communication
skills and build resilience. In 2015/16,
over 1,400 students joined various
workshops and seminars to enhance
their Chinese and English oratory and
presentation skills.

The challenge-based programme Road
to Marathon is aimed at building
students’ resilience and perseverance
through intensive training to prepare
for long-distance running events.
Some 450 students participated in
26 long-distance races. In addition,
30 students participated in the Korea
Gyeongju Cherry Marathon Tour 2016.

Skills Competitions

The VTC encourages students to
participate in local, regional and global
competitions, which provide them with
opportunities to hone their skills and
gain international exposure.

In August 2015, a Hong Kong team
including VTC students and alumni
took part in the 43rd WorldSkills
Competition held in Sao Paulo, Brazil,
and brought home seven Medallions
for Excellence.
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To sharpen students’ language skills,
over 30 study packages of English
modules for HD students were
developed in collaboration with Pearson
Education Asia Limited. A pilot delivery
was conducted in May 2016 and full
implementation will take place in the
coming year.

Since the VTC admitted its first batch
of overseas students in 2012/13,
much diversity has been added to its
campuses. In 2015/16, over 40 non-
local students from the Mainland,
Asian and European countries were
admitted to the VTC’s Degree and HD
programmes.

Riding on the success of the inaugural
event last year, the second International
Fortnight was held across VTC member
institutions for students to embrace
internationalisation and cultural
diversity. Under the theme Link Local,
Go Global, 47 activities were organised

as part of this Council-wide programme,
including International Youth Chat at
the Opening Ceremony, International
Yummies co-presented by students and
a Michelin-starred chef, SILK x STEEL
fashion and car show, international
etiquette seminar and friendship
basketball competition. Students and
staff of the VTC were thrilled with the
chance to gain exposure to different
cultures, which broadened their
horizons and encouraged intercultural
communications.

Over 20 new International Student
Ambassadors were recruited this
year. These new ambassadors have
joined forces with 19 pioneering
students from the first cohort to
promote internationalisation across
VTC campuses, to receive and engage
with incoming exchange students,
and to promote the VTC at various
international events, including UNESCO
Hong Kong Peace and Sustainable
Development International Youth
Festival and Worlddidac Asia.
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To ensure its students stay up-to-date
with industry developments and are
ready to work upon graduation, the
VTC maintains close relationships with
industry partners to explore practical
learning opportunities for them. As a
mandatory component in the curricula
of all HD programmes, industry
attachments provide students with the
opportunities to apply their knowledge
and skills in a real work setting and
enhance their competencies for future
employment. In 2015/16, about
10,000 students undertook industry
attachments during their studies.

Multi-faceted efforts have been put into
supporting students in planning their
future careers. The Structured Whole
Person Development Programme, which
is incorporated into the curriculum,
inculcates positive attitudes and values
in students and enhances their soft
skills. The Career Booster programmes,
targeted at graduating students, help
to sharpen their interview skills in
preparation for further studies and
employment.
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HKIAAT Accounting & Business Management Case
Competition 2015-16

Champions & Best Business Proposal (Tertiary
Institute Group)

CHU Wing-yin, FAN Man-hong, FUNG Hiu-ying and
TAM Siu-hang

Department of Business Administration, IVE
(Kwun Tong)

Best Presenter

CHU Wing-yin

Department of Business Administration, IVE
(Kwun Tong)

Young Chef Olympiad 2016

Eighth
Percy CHAN Chun-ho
Higher Diploma in Culinary Arts, ICI

The 32nd Hong Kong Watch and Clock Design
Competition

Champion (Student Group)
CHAN Cheuk-yan
Department of Product and Interior Design, HKDI

UNICEF Inclusive Play Space Design Ideas
Competition

Champions (Student Category)

LAW Yat-man, CHENG Hiu-lam and

LAM Ching-hang

Bachelor of Arts (Honours) in Landscape
Architecture, THEI
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DFA Hong Kong Young Design Talent Awards 2015

CreateSmart Young Design Talent Award
(Apparel & Accessory Design)

Calvin CHAN King-hei

Department of Fashion and Image Design, HKDI

CreateSmart Young Design Talent Special Award
(Product & Industrial Design)

Cyril LEE Yik-ching

Department of Product and Interior Design, HKDI

HKDI Young Design Talent Award
Darren TSANG Che-fung
Department of Fashion and Image Design, HKDI

Young Design Talent Special Mention Award
(Apparel & Accessory Design)

Michelle LIN

Department of Fashion and Image Design, HKDI

A&D Trophy Awards 2015

Best of the Best Trophy, Best of Category and
Certificate of Excellence (Interior Design)

Forest LAl Yip-lam

Department of Product and Interior Design, HKDI

2015 One Show China Youth Creative Festival

Best of the Show and Gold Awards

CHEUK Pui-shing, Kelvin CHAN, Anthea WONG,
YEUNG Chun-hay, YU Hoi-tung, CHAN Yuk-yi and
CHOI Yu-leung

Department of Communication Design and
Digital Media, HKDI
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The 17th Hong Kong Eyewear Desigh Competition

Champion (Student Group)
LAU Man-yam
Department of Product and Interior Design, HKDI

Hong Kong Fur Design Competition 2016

Overall Winner (Full Fur Category) and Best
Sketch Award

YAN Tsz-ching

Department of Fashion and Image Design, HKDI

Overall Winner (Fur Combination Category)
WU Suet-hin
Department of Fashion and Image Design, HKDI

Commercial Award
YU Sze-ki
Department of Fashion and Image Design, HKDI

2016 Cotton Design Competition

Champion
Lorraine TAM
Bachelor of Arts (Honours) in Fashion Design, THEi

Project Campus 2016

Overall Champions

CHAN Hang-wa, MA Shu-na, Jason LEE,

CHAN Chung-kei, LI Sing and LUNG Ka-yi
Bachelor of Arts (Honours) in Fashion Design, THEI
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IET Young Professional Exhibition & Competition
Hong Kong 2015

Overall Champions

PAU Kwok-lun, CHAN Kai-wa, TONG Pang-tat,
MAN Chun-king and CHAN Wai-yin

Department of Information Technology, IVE (Tsing Yi)

IET Present Around The World 2015 (Asia Pacific Final)

Merit

PAU Kwok-lun, CHAN Kai-wa, TONG Pang-tat,
MAN Chun-king and CHAN Wai-yin

Department of Information Technology, IVE (Tsing Yi)

Asia Pacific ICT Alliance Awards 2015

Merit (Tertiary Student Project Category)

WONG Ka-lok, Gloria LAU, CHAN Kong-sing and Roy LAU
Department of Information Technology, IVE (Lee Wai Lee)
Catherine CHOW Wing-mei, FONG Ka-sin, LAM Wing-yi, and
Rebekah LEE

Department of Information Technology, IVE (Tsing Yi)
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Samsung Solve for Tomorrow 2015 Challenge Award
= £ Solve for Tomorrow 2015 KB4 EHRER
First Runners-up RETHLE

Tiffany TAM Tsz-ling

Bachelor of Science (Honours) in Health Care,
THEI

Wing KWOK King-wing, Woody CHAN Yu-tung and
Sunny LEUNG Yiu-sun

Bachelor of Science (Honours) in Multimedia
Technology and Innovation, THEI

Equal Opportunities Micro Film Competition 2015

Champion

MAK Ka-ho, LUNG Sum-yi, YUEN Chor-yan,
WONG Sheung-yu, MOK Kwok-ching,

MOK Kwok-chi, LI Chun-kai, MOK Yan-kit,

YUEN Chun-ming and CHAN Yin-tsun (Design &
Desktop Publishing Programme),

Shakeel AHMED (Office Practice Programme),
LEE Wing-chun, CHIU Chun-him, WONG Pui-shan,
HO Yuen-yee and Noman MOHAMMAD (Catering
Service Programme),

OR Yiu-pong, NG Shek-pui (Programme Assistant
Practice Programme),

Shine Skills Centre (Tuen Mun)
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WorldSkills Sao Paulo 2015

Medallion for Excellence (IT Software Solutions
for Business) and Best of Nation Award

— Hong Kong

LAW Ming-fai

Department of Information Technology, IVE (Tsing Yi)

Medallion for Excellence (Mechatronics)
LEUNG Wai-kit and YEUNG Hon-lung,
Department of Information Technology, IVE (Tsing Yi)

Medallion for Excellence (Graphic Design
Technology)

CHAN Shing-chung

Department of Communication Design and
Digital Media, HKDI

Medallion for Excellence (Visual Merchandising
& Window Dressing)

SO Ka-yu

Department of Product and Interior Design, HKDI

Medallion for Excellence (Beauty Therapy)

LAU Ho-ying

Diploma of Vocational Education (Beauty Care),
Youth College

Medallion for Excellence (Hairdressing)

LAU Ka-ho

Diploma of Vocational Education (Hairdressing),
Youth College
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Business Administration o

IEER

Nicole KAR Tsz-wing =rem
Department of Business Administration, IVE (Kwai Chung) I/V\E (;‘;“%)I?ﬁ%ﬁ%?
=/ (=] R

Alvin CHAN Wai-ho B (a2
Department of Business Administration, IVE (Kwai Chung) IVEuzg‘%)Iﬁ%ﬂE?
= /| =] RN

Eric TAM Wai-ming (5 AP

RS

Diploma of Foundation Studies (Business),

E5 ) ERRIEOR (%
IVE (Haking Wong) IVE (Eﬁﬂf‘u) WERFEX (Fﬁ%)

YR RERMERY

{5216
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Childcare, Elderly and Community Services

Kayley HER Ka-yi
Department of Childcare, Elderly and Community Services,

IVE (Sha Tin) s

Design . EUERL
Wilson CHOI Hung-shing HKDIRS SR RV
Department of Fashion and Image Design, HKDI Iz

Engineering et

BEIERERT

\IIT

Issac LAl Ka-yiu

MSTI BIE - R Rk
Hotel, Service & Tourism Studies . EIRE

|VE I AN . 2k \F\ﬁ?@/\
Jennifer TSANG Pui-yee (5I)BIE - MRS Kk 5

Department of Hotel, Service & Tourism Studies, - RFE
IVE (Chai Wan) ICI FES HUR
Filip LAl Pak-hang BB
. .. . . e . Higher Diploma in Culinary Arts, ICI
8th Asian Rope Skipping Championship ENEIEMNBAEREE . OB
e Information of Technology IVE () &R &
Gold (15 or above Male Team) . 2 (15ERU L BFE) (D H) ErPH R
WONG Lok-yin b B - Nicholas TSUI Ching-yuen
Diploma of Vocational Education (Fitness and BFERPEHE R (R RES) Department of Information Technology, IVE (Sha Tin)

Sports Studies), Youth College

EREFRETE 2015 2 E RN
Gold Award Certificate (Hong Kong Award for .
. BER
Young People) REBE
IVE (5£)8) BARHE R
TSANG Yin-lun
Department of Information Technology, IVE
(Chai Wan)
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Number of students of the VTC member institutions in 2015/16:

2015/16 F[E VIC B E 24 AH:

Member Institutions

BEXE

Technological and Higher Education Institute
of Hong Kong

ERESHUENEER
Hong Kong Institute of Vocational Education,

Hong Kong Design Institute,
School of Business and Information Systems

EREXHERR ERAERTERR
ITEHEMBRR
Youth College
EEEn
Pro-Act Training and Development Centres
FHEAEE PO
Automobile /TE %
Electrical B #3
Electronics &1 %
Fashion Textiles FF 5 47 45 5
Gas RESHAEL 2
Jewellery TR B %
Mechanical # 3
Precision Engineering &% T12%
Printing ENffl %
Welding (&5 %
Chinese Culinary Institute
hEFESR

Hotel and Tourism Institute

B E R b 2 B

International Culinary Institute

B &2

Maritime Services Training Institute

BEIREER

Institute of Professional Education And Knowledge

B IEE S 205

School for Higher and Professional Education
EeEYEER

Integrated Vocational Development Centre

EMASEXRBRPL

Shine Skills Centres

REREREP O

Total #2E

Type of Programmes :Ri2EHE

Pre-employment 5 A7

2,310

36,750

9,570

400

850

750

80

2,550

3,990

650

57,900
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In-service Training 7EEK3Z3/I

210

94,280

4,280

9,930

770
3,810
870
1,340
380
260
820
550
130
1,000

1,360

3,820

910

3,650

99,170

1,940

2,740

390

222,680

Wallace LO is a young rising star among
sommeliers in Asia. In 2013, he was
Champion in the Best Sommelier
Greater China and Best Sommelier
Hong Kong competitions. In 2015,

he set a milestone for the Hong Kong
wine industry by finishing first runner-
up in the ASI Best Sommelier of Asia-
Oceania competition, the first prize
Hong Kong has ever earned in this
contest. In 2016, Wallace again scaled
new heights for the industry being the
first Hong Kong representative of Asia-
Oceania region to participate in the
International Sommelier Competition.
He is now the Head Sommelier at Le
Comptoir Group in Hong Kong.

WONG Tin-shing has been fond of
film making since he was young.

The short film Drifter written and
directed by him was honoured for

The Best Script Student Division at
the Fresh Wave 2014 - International
Short Film Festival organised by the
Hong Kong Arts Development Council.
This highly commended work, one of
the Hong Kong original short films

to be presented, was also selected
for presentation at the Short Film
Corner of the Festival de Cannes after
rigorous screening.
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We are using integrated channels to
enhance our alumni network and build
enduring relationships with our alumni
to encourage them to keep giving the
VTC their support.

During the year, more than 100 alumni
enthusiastically volunteered their
valuable time and energy to participate
in our mentorship programmes and
professional seminars, and to offer
students industry attachments and

job opportunities. By sharing their
insights, experiences and professional

success in the real world, the

alumni are reciprocating their own
learning experience and providing
comprehensive and enriched life-
learning guidance to today’s students.

Infused with a ‘pay-it-forward’ mindset,
the VTC alumni community has been
growing up steadily, and will continue
to cultivate the culture of giving and
wholehearted contributions among
its peers.
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At the VTC, we recognise our staff as a
precious asset. They are the key to our
sustainable organisational performance
and the future development of
vocational and professional education
and training in Hong Kong.

As at 31 March 2016, there were 5,980
full-time staff at the VTC, comprising
3,830 teaching and administrative
staff and 2,150 technical and
supporting staff.

nll

In 2015/16, staff members at

all levels benefited from a wide

range of learning and development
activities to provide continuous
enhancement of their professional

and personal competencies.

They also participated actively in
various international conferences,
exhibitions, familiarisation visits,
academic exchanges and attachment
programmes to share their expertise
and strengthen collaboration with local
and overseas partners and institutions.
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The Staff Excellence Awards recognise
staff members and teams who have
made exceptional contributions to

the VTC through their dedication,
competence, ingenuity and
conscientious performance.

The recipients for 2015 are:

WorldSkills Hong Kong Secretariat Team

Mr Simon TANG Wai-hung*
Project Manager, Headquarters
(Industry Partnership)

Mrs Deanna TO LAU
Senior Assistant Executive Director,
Headquarters (Industry Partnership)

Ms Sara TA Sau-lei
Manager, International
Development Office

Mr TANG Kin-ching
Assistant Manager, International
Development Office

Ms Karen LEE Ka-wan
Project Officer, Headquarters
(Industry Partnership)

Mr Vincent TAM Wing-sing
Assistant Project Officer,
Headquarters (Industry Partnership)

Ms Fannie KWOK Sun-hung
Assistant Project Officer,
Headquarters (Industry Partnership)

Transmedia Team

Mr LAM Wai-keung*

Senior Lecturer, Department of
Communication Design and Digital
Media, Hong Kong Design Institute

Mr Perry LEUNG Ka-yan
Lecturer, Department of
Communication Design and Digital
Media, Hong Kong Design Institute

Mr Antony YIN Si-yuen

Lecturer, Department of
Communication Design and Digital
Media, Hong Kong Design Institute

Ms Joan CHAN Chung-chung
Lecturer, Department of
Communication Design and Digital
Media, Hong Kong Design Institute

(*Group leader)
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The Teaching Excellence Award is
established to give recognition to
outstanding teachers while promoting
the sharing of best practices in

teaching. The recipients for 2015 are:

Ms CHEUNG Yee-ling
Lecturer, Student Development

Office, Youth College (Tin Shui Wai)

Ms Vienna MAK Kit-yi
Lecturer, Student Development
Office, Youth College (Kwai Fong)

Mr Jeffrey MAN Wing-hang
Lecturer, Language Centre, Youth
College (Kwai Fong)

Mr Herman WONG Wing-kwong
Lecturer, Integrated Vocational
Development Centre (Lai Chi Kok)

During the past year, recognition was
given to 63 staff members for their
30 years of dedicated service to the

VTC. A further 101 and 207 staff were

commended for having completed 25
and 20 years of service respectively.
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Long Service Award Presentation Ceremony
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Promoting Good
Corporate Citizenship

The VTC attaches great importance

to corporate social responsibility

and environmental protection. Staff
and students were engaged in many
meaningful community and social
activities during the year, benefiting the
needy and others in society.

Green Practices and
Corporate Social
Responsibility

Various in-house practices are in

place to conserve resources, with
specific progress targets set for
achieving environmental goals. VTC
was honoured with a Gold Award

and an Excellence Award under the
school category of the Yan Oi Tong
Plastic Recycling Partnership Scheme
2015/16, as well as receiving ‘Friends
of Ecopark’ recognition.

To help promote and facilitate
environmentally-friendly practices in
schools, we were a co-organiser of the
Hong Kong Green School Award, which
covers Pre-school, Primary School and
Secondary School categories. The
Child Education Centre for Teaching
and Learning of IVE Childcare, Elderly
and Community Services Discipline
developed and provided environmental
education resources to 150
kindergartens through the ECF-funded
Kids’ Greenway initiative.

On the energy-saving side, the VTC was
a named partner for promoting green
buildings in the Government’s Energy
Saving Plan released in May 2015.

We have been collaborating with the
Hong Kong Green Building Council to
promote green building and related
environmental programmes.
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Participating in
Community Services

To promote care and concern to

the needy in our community, as

well as foster a sense of social
responsibility among students, over
13,000 VTC students and staff
supported the citywide Volunteer
Movement organised by the Social
Welfare Department. Together they
have recorded over 276,000 hours of
service to the local community.

Promoting Inter-generational
Harmony

In view of the soaring number of silver
hair residents in Hong Kong and their
specific needs, the VTC launched

an Elder-friendly Design Campaign

in 2015. Students from various

disciplines were invited to design either
hardware or software for a Model Hotel
Suite for the Silver-hair Market at the
T-Hotel under the Hotel and Tourism
Institute, or travelling packages tailored
for the accommodation and travelling
needs of senior citizens.

The Campaign facilitated cross-
disciplinary collaboration with

the application of design thinking
throughout the competition. It also
served as a successful platform for
students to conduct research and
study on the various needs of senior
citizens, exercise their vocational and
professional knowledge and skills in the
learning process, be aware of the great
potential of the silver-hair market, and
show respect for the elderly.
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OVERVIEW OF OPERATING RESULTS

= ERR B

Consolidated Financial Statements

The Council has prepared Consolidated Financial
Statements for the year 2015-16 presenting the operating
results and financial position of the Council and its
subsidiaries (the Group) for the year. Total income of
HK$4,912.3M (2014-15: HK$4,705.6M) and total
expenditure of HK$4,560.1M (2014-15: HK$4,301.2M)
were reported.

Operating Results

Out of the total income of HK$4,912.3M, HK$2,921.8M
was government subventions, HK$1,770.6M was tuition
fees and training charges, HK$219.9M was interest
income and other income. As compared with 2014-15, the
increase in income was mainly attributed to the increase
in Government subventions largely for pay adjustments,
increase in tuition fees income from degree and top-up
Degree programmes.

Total expenditure of HK$4,560.1M incurred in the year
included staff expenses of HK$3,310.9M and other
operating expenses of HK$1,249.2M. The increase
in expenditure was mainly due to the increase in staff
expenses resulting from pay adjustments, increase in staff
and other operating expenses for the provision of additional
student places in Degree programmes and increase in
trainee allowances for VTC Earn & Learn Scheme.

The financial result of the subsidiaries showed total income
of HK$859.4M and total expenditure of HK$772.3M. The
Group as a whole achieved savings of HK$352.2M, reported
as surplus for the year 2015-16, of which HK$192.9M was
transferred to the Council’s Reserves for implementation of
new initiatives and other developments.
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Building Programmes and Capital Items

For the year 2015-16, a total of HK$898.3M was incurred
on building programmes and capital items. These projects
included the construction of halls of residence in Tsing
Yi, Technological and Higher Education Institute of Hong
Kong campus in Chai Wan, International Culinary Institute
in Pokfulam, purchase of office premises in Billion Plaza
as well as other alterations, additions and improvement
projects.

Financial Statements

The Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 31 March 2016 and the Consolidated
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2016 are set out in the
following pages.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2016

HE 2016 £F3 A 31 HIEFENEZEE2EWER

INCOME

Government Subventions

Tuition Fees and Training Charges
Interest Income

Donations

Other Income

Total Income
EXPENDITURE

Staff Expenses

Full-time Staff Expenses
Part-time Staff Expenses
Temporary Staff Expenses
Other Staff Expenses

Other Operating Expenses
Consumables, Equipment and Library Books

Accommodation and Related Maintenance Expenses

Hire of Services and Professional Fees
Student/Trainee Grants and Activities

Training Boards/General Committees’ Expenses
Staff Development and Visits

Other Expenses

Total Expenditure

SURPLUS AND TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME FOR THE YEAR

TRANSFER TO:
Reserves
Specific and Other Funds

LON

R
SENRIZER
FLEHA
1B
HAdA
DN

X

ETRX

PHETIHRY
BB THY
FeRE B ThiS
HMETHX

HittEERx

EREYSm  REMEE
&Rt M ERRERX

BXRBER
2L/ BEMB MRS

JIREEE/ —REES

BTk AR
HAFEs

AEERBBRKEHEKERE

EERE
(Eka
FEREMEMES

2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
2,921,811 2,770,407
1,770,599 1,694,634
55,150 70,905
29,081 39,052
135,672 130,614
4,912,313 4,705,612
2,866,290 2,757,419
114,762 112,520
302,076 269,673
27,734 25,405
3,310,862 3,165,017
317,017 283,466
565,338 541,066
66,910 59,705
108,170 87,091
38,690 33,056
19,030 18,347
134,036 113,473
1,249,191 1,136,204
4,560,053 4,301,221
352,260 404,391
192,909 253,276
159,351 151,115
352,260 404,391

The Group had no components of comprehensive income other than “surplus for the year” in either of the years presented. Therefore, the

Group’s “total comprehensive income” was the same as the “surplus for the year” in both years.

BT [RNEERHR] I ARBERERFALREEMEE NS - ARARERZEFEN [NEEAHK] BER [2EKREEE] -
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 MARCH 2016
2016 &£ 3 A 31 HREEERER

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, Plant and Equipment
Loans to Staff

Deposits

CURRENT ASSETS

Loans to Staff

Employee Retirement Benefits Assets

Accounts Receivable, Prepayments and Other
Receivables

Bank Deposits with Maturity over Three Months

Cash and Cash Equivalents

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable, Accruals and Other Payables

Provision for Employee Benefits
Loans Payable within One Year
Deferred Income

NET CURRENT ASSETS
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Provision for Employee Benefits
Loans Payable after One Year
Deferred Income

NET ASSETS

Represented by:
Reserves
Specific and Other Funds

TOTAL FUNDS

Approved and authorised for issue
by the Vocational Training Council

on 15 August 2016
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Dr Clement CHEN Cheng-jen, SBS, JP
Chairman

Vocational Training Council
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2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
3,029,721 2,425,259
1,205 1,738
5,835 5,87
3,036,761 2,432,134
894 926

- 9,132

85,426 132,019
4,510,147 4,711,307
785,900 706,417
5,382,367 5,559,801
1,248,619 1,149,205
400,071 386,652
2,185 2,745
276,369 306,306
1,927,244 1,844,908
3,455,123 3,714,893
6,491,884 6,147,027
8,765 10,449
427,148 427,148
1,432,234 1,437,953
1,868,147 1,875,550
4,623,737 4,271,477
330,286 264,499
4,293,451 4,006,978
4,623,737 4,271,477







THE COUNCIL
BEINRDESS

As at 31 March 2016
HZE2016 F3 A31H

Chairman
Dr Clement CHEN Cheng-jen, SBS, JP
Deputy Chairmen

Mr Conrad WONG Tin-cheung, BBS, JP
Mr Eric YIM Chi-ming, JP

Members

Prof Philip CHAN Ching-ho, BBS

Ms Karen CHAN Ka-yin

Mr Victor CHAN Kok-wai

Mr Paul CHONG Kin-lit, MH

Dr Jacob KAM Chak-pui

Ir Alkin KWONG Ching-wai, JP

Mr Ronald LAM Siu-por

Mr LEUNG Kai-lik, MH

Mr Kennedy LIU Tat-yin

Ms Winnie NG Wing-mui

Mr Bruce POH Geok-huat

Ms Samanta PONG Sum-yee

Mr Tony TAI Chark-tong

Ms Candy TAM Lai-chuen, MH

Mr Gary YEUNG Man-yui

Deputy Secretary for Education (or his representative)
Mr Brian LO Sai-hung, JP

Commissioner for Labour (or his representative)
Mr Donald TONG Chi-keung, JP

Director-General of Trade and Industry (or his representative)
Mrs Hedy CHU POON Kit-man

Executive Director, Vocational Training Council
Dr Carrie YAU, GBS, JP
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COUNCIL AND ITS COMMITTEES
BEINFRREZERETEES

An Overview of Committees and Boards (as at 31 March 2016)

ZETRIIKREESHE (BE2016FE3H31H)

VOCATIONAL TRAINING COUNCIL B ¥R B EEE

Standing Committee FEZ 8 &
Administration Committee THZ E &

Audit Committee BiZZE
Estates Committee EXEIEELE
Finance Committee 81 1§Z&

==
5 &

Training Boards

dREE S

Accountancy Training Board
etglazae

Automobile Training Board
AEENREES

Banking and Finance Industry Training Board
RITReRFIRES S

Beauty Care and Hairdressing Training Board
EREEIREZEG

Building and Civil Engineering Training Board
TARTRERBEXIREES

Chinese Culinary Institute Training Board
PEFESGIIREE S

Electrical and Mechanical Services Training Board
KETRXIIREES

Electronics and Telecommunications Training Board
BrEREMEIREES

Hotel, Catering and Tourism Training Board
BIESE  RERERIREXIIREES
Import/Export/Wholesale Trades Training Board
HAQRMEENREER

Insurance Training Board

RERFEIRZESR

Maritime Services Training Board
BERBEIREE S

Mass Communications Training Board
AREREXIREZE S

Metals Training Board

CEFIREES

Plastics Training Board

BEEGEER

Printing and Publishing Training Board

ENffl % MR IR E B &

Real Estate Services Training Board
EiERGEIREE S

Retail Trade Training Board
TEFIREES

Security Services Training Board
RERBHEIREES

Textile and Clothing Training Board
PR R FNREES S

Transport Logistics Training Board
VREERIREES

95

General Committees

Committee on Apprenticeship and Trade Testing

—REET

Btk lREE g

Committee on Information Technology Training and Development

EABRIIREREZES

Committee on Management and Supervisory Training
ERRESIREES

Committee on Technologist Training

REMIREE R

Committee on Vocational Training for People with Disabilities

ERATREIREZR S



COUNCIL AND ITS COMMITTEES
REINGRREZIRETEZES

Standing Committee
BHBEEY

Chairman
Dr Clement CHEN Cheng-jen, SBS, JP
Members

Mr Conrad WONG Tin-cheung, BBS, JP

Mr Eric YIM Chi-ming, JP

Ms Karen CHAN Ka-yin

Ms Winnie NG Wing-mui

Ms Samanta PONG Sum-yee

Mr Tony TAI Chark-tong

Dr Roy CHUNG Chi-ping, BBS, JP

Dr Joseph LEE, GBS, JP

Dr Carrie WILLIS, SBS, JP

Deputy Secretary for Education (or his representative)
Mr Brian LO Sai-hung, JP

Executive Director, Vocational Training Council
Dr Carrie YAU, GBS, JP

Elected Staff Member

Mr Kenneth WONG Lai-yin
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COUNCIL AND ITS COMMITTEES

BEINFRBEZTERETEZES

Administration Committee
THZEES

Chairlady
Ms Karen CHAN Ka-yin
Members

Mr LEUNG Kai-lik, MH

Mr Kennedy LIU Tat-yin

Ms Samanta PONG Sum-yee

Ms Candy TAM Lai-chuen, MH

Deputy Secretary for Education (or his representative)
Mr Brian LO Sai-hung, JP

Executive Director, Vocational Training Council
Dr Carrie YAU, GBS, JP

Elected Staff Member

Dr William YIP Wing-tat
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COUNCIL AND ITS COMMITTEES
REINGRREZIRETEZES

Audit Committee
EREET

Chairman
Mr Conrad WONG Tin-cheung, BBS, JP
Members

Mr Eric YIM Chi-ming, JP
Mr Victor CHAN Kok-wai
Mr Kennedy LIU Tat-yin

Ms Winnie NG Wing-mui
Dr Stella KWAN Mun-yee

Estates Committee
EXEIBEEET

Chairman
Mr Conrad WONG Tin-cheung, BBS, JP
Members

Mr Eric YIM Chi-ming, JP

Mr Victor CHAN Kok-wai

Prof Philip CHAN Ching-ho, BBS

Dr Jacob KAM Chak-pui

Mr Martin N HADAWAY, JP

Director of Architectural Services (or his representative)
Mr Anthony LEUNG Koon-kee, JP

Executive Director, Vocational Training Council
Dr Carrie YAU, GBS, JP

Elected Staff Member

Mr Kenneth YAM Chi-kin
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BUERAS A, JP
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PR IE SR, BBS
IEEE L
BEEmLE, P
EEREZER (HERR)
REESE, JP
BEJIMENTHE
T2 REEL, GBS, JP
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COUNCIL AND ITS COMMITTEES

BEINFRBEZTERETEZES

Finance Committee
HHEEET

Chairman
Mr Eric YIM Chi-ming, JP
Members

Mr Conrad WONG Tin-cheung, BBS, JP

Mr Paul CHONG Kin-lit, MH

Ir Alkin KWONG Ching-wai, JP

Ms Samanta PONG Sum-yee

Mr Tony TAI Chark-tong

Deputy Secretary for Education (or his representative)
Mr Brian LO Sai-hung, JP

Executive Director, Vocational Training Council
Dr Carrie YAU, GBS, JP

Elected Staff Member

Miss Joyce YUEN Tszyin
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TRAINING BOARDS AND GENERAL COMMITTEES

REEGN—REST

Accountancy Training Board
gt XIREESG

TRAINING BOARDS AND GENERAL COMMITTEES

R EZEGN—REET

Automobile Training Board
AEXEIKREZEE

Chairman EE Chairman EE

Mr Terence CHEUNG Kwong-tat REBELE Ir LEUNG Tat-ming PR T F2R
Members Z8 Members Z8

Dr Eva CHAN Yee-wah PRATEEH T Mr CHAN Hon-hung BROEME ST E

Mr Francis CHENG Man-piu B A Mr lan CHAN Wai-hung PR {2 2 ST A

Prof Stella CHO LUNG Pui-lan T BEM BRI Mr Frank CHEUNG Chun-hung SRR A

Mr CHOW Chun-keung A8 S & Mr Frank FUNG Kwok-chu RSB ST A

Dr Alice CHUI Pui-ling RMIRE L Mr LAM Hing-cheong MES LA

Ms Faith DEL ROSARIO EHE LT Mr LAM Tin-fu MR SEE

Dr Sammy FUNG Lai-kin e st Mr Ted LAU Kai-sing £l tas

Dr John FUNG Yat-chu B—EEL Mr LIU Keung B85t &

Mr Nelson LAM Chi-yuen MERTE Mr MOU Yun-nin BEFELEE

Ms Rhoda LIU Mei-ling BERLZt Ir Madison TANG Wing-hong Bk % TA2RM

Mr Roy LO Wa-kei EERELA Ir Dr TONG Kwok-kei ZEREB L - TI2AM
Ms Brenda NG Wai-po REELZ L Representative of the Director of BETEEBERAR
Ms Carmen TING TaxzZt Electrical and Mechanical Services

Ms Fanny WONG TR+ Representative of the Director of Environmental Protection REREZEBERAR
Mr WONG Wai-hong HERLAE Representative of the Commissioner for Labour BTHRERERRE

Mr Bernard WU Tak-lung RiEREILE Representative of the Commissioner for Transport BRHEERAR

Ms Karmen YEUNG Ka-yin BT Representative of the Executive Director of BEIImBEPATHERR
Representative of the Director of Accounting Services EHREERRE the Vocational Training Council

Representative of the Commissioner for Labour BITRERRE

BEIRBATHERE

Representative of the Executive Director of
the Vocational Training Council
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TRAINING BOARDS AND GENERAL COMMITTEES
dREEEgNM—RESSG

TRAINING BOARDS AND GENERAL COMMITTEES
AIREEEgNM—RESSG

Beauty Care and Hairdressing Training Board
EREEINIHKREZET

Banking and Finance Industry Training Board
RITREMEINIREZES

Chairman FE Chairman xFE
Mr David KWOK Sek-chi HHERE Mr PANG Kam-chiu TRl &
Members =8 Vice-Chairlady BEFE
Mr Jeffrey CHAN BRI B A Ms Juliana YANG Hui-chun BEELL
Mr Mark FAN Wai-man BRI EE -
Prof FONG Wai-ming AR LzES €5 Members Z8
[ Wei-| B4
M AN e EE%‘;%& Ms Sindy CHAN Mei-heung BREBLL
Mr lvan LAM Wai-hang MERLE i
. T Ms Angela CHAN Sau-yee BRAE L+
Ms Candy LEUNG Suk-ching 2R E L+ : [
. : v, Ms Liza CHEUNG R
Mr Patrick POON Mo-yiu BRESLE N O e GG BRI o A
Mr Anthony Ward RUSHTON Mr Anthony Ward RUSHTON rorpheus o e
: . ‘hEETA Ms Candy CHU Chi-ping RLEZ £
Ms Jennifer SHUM Wan-ling LRI At _ o
. a1 Mr Joseph HO Shiu-chung AR B4
Mr Chris TSE Yue-hong AR R ST . e
. e Ms Amy HUI Wai-fung ArEE LT
Ms Amy WONG Lai-wah EEELL R B\ i
Representative of the Chief Executive of the Hong Kong BEBRGREEFTBR AT rEAU Rado S
o Py Ms April LAU Yuk-tong B ERLZ L
Exchanges and Clearing Limited ITBHRRE K i LEE Chun A
Representative of the Chief Executive of the Hong Kong ERCRERBRARAR s Fanny LEE Chun-ong -
. Ms LI Yuk-mei TEELL
Monetary Authority Ms Shellv LUK Wai-f BEE A+
Representative of the Chairman of the Securities and BHENPEEREREZE S s one'ly -1ong )
o . . Mr Ray NG Koon-ting REELEE
Futures Commission FREAK e o AR e BT At
Representative of the Executive Director of BEIERBATHSNKE S Ruby -arhung e
the Vocational Training Council S SR AL
Mr William TANG Wai BhE A&
Mr Thomas WONG Kwok-wah FTEERE
Ms Vajra WONG Siu-ying mAoELL
Representative of the Consumer Council HEEZESARRK
Representative of the Commissioner for Labour BITRERRE

BEIRBATHERE

Representative of the Executive Director of
the Vocational Training Council
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TRAINING BOARDS AND GENERAL COMMITTEES

REEGN—REST

Building and Civil Engineering Training Board

IAIEREBREZRIREZES

Chairman
Mr Eddie LAM Kin-wing
Members

Ir Kenneth CHAN Sheung-yan

Ir Dr CHENG Yung-ming

Ir Wilson CHEUNG Yiu-sun

Cr Paul CHUNG Koon-man

Mr IP Kai-yin

Sr Raymond KAM Ka-fai

Mr KWOK Tung-keung

Prof LO Siu-ming

Ir MAK Shu-hei

Mr Peter NG Yau-yee

Ir Dr Derrick PANG Yat-bond

Mr Edward SHEN

Mr Kyran SZE

Mr Hermes WONG Kin-sun

Mr WONG Ping

Ir Andy YIU Chi-sang

Representative of the Director of Buildings

Representative of the Secretary for Development

Representative of the Director of Housing

Representative of the Commissioner for Labour

Representative of the Executive Director of
the Vocational Training Council
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TRAINING BOARDS AND GENERAL COMMITTEES

R EEGN—REST

Chinese Culinary Institute Training Board

PEFEBRIIKREZES

Chairlady

Mrs Monica LEE-MULLER (since 15 June 2015)
Vice-Chairman

Mr YEUNG Wai-sing, MH

Members

Mr CHAN Chun-kit

Dr CHAN Shou-ming

Mr Freddy CHEUNG Shing-fat

Mr Eric CHIU

Ms Mei CHOI

Ms Becky IP (up to 27 January 2016)

Mr Sam IP

Mr Lawrence KOO Kin-yip

Mr KWOK Wang-hing

Mr LEE Man-sing

Mr LEUNG Fai-hung

Mr Michael LI Hon-shing, BBS, JP

Mr James LI Kwok-yee

Dr SU Jing

Mr Wilson WU Wai-tsuen

Representative of the Secretary for Labour and Welfare

Representative of the Executive Director of
the Vocational Training Council
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TRAINING BOARDS AND GENERAL COMMITTEES

REEGN—REST

Electrical and Mechanical Services Training Board

BEIRRIGEEZES

Chairman
Mr Paul CHONG Kin-lit, MH
Members

Ir Weller CHAN Kwok-wai

Ir Geoffrey CHAN Loong

Mr CHAN Yun-fu

Ir Dr CHUNG Wai-nang

Mr LAl Wah-hing

Prof David LAM Chuen-chun

Mr Fernando LEUNG Chung-fai

Mr Brian NG

Ir Albert TO Wang-kam

Ir James TO Wing-ming

Ir TO Yip-lam

Ir Gilbert TSANG Hing-cheung

Ir WAI Yip-kin

Ir Dr WONG Chun-sing

Ir WU Chi-fai

Mr YIU Chow-leung

Mr YU Hing-wai

Ir CHAN Chi-ming (since 15 June 2015)

Representative of the Director of
Electrical and Mechanical Services

Representative of the Commissioner for Labour

Representative of the Executive Director of
the Vocational Training Council
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TRAINING BOARDS AND GENERAL COMMITTEES

R EZEGN—REET

Electronics and Telecommunications Training Board

EFEKRERXIREZET

Chairman

Mr Johnny YEUNG Chi-hung, MH

Vice-Chairman

Mr Christopher TSE Hung-keung

Members

Dr Lawrence CHEUNG Chi-chong
Mr Kenny CHEUNG Wai-kuen
Mr CHU Hon-chung
Mr Sam HUI Kin-sang
Dr Measure HUNG Kim-fung
Mr KWAN Man-lung
Ir Ricky KIWONG Wai-chuen
Dr LAM Hiu-fung
Ir Wicky LAW Man-hoi
Mr Sylvian LEE Chi-hung (up to 11 May 2015)
Dr LO Tai-chin
Mr MA Fung-on
Prof Philip MOK Kwok-tai
Ir Johnny POON Chung-yin
Mr William TSE Wing-nam
Representative of the Director-General of Communications
Representative of the Director of
Electrical and Mechanical Services
Representative of the Director-General of Trade and Industry
Representative of the Executive Director of
the Vocational Training Council
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TRAINING BOARDS AND GENERAL COMMITTEES

REEGN—REST

Hotel, Catering and Tourism Training Board

BIEE - RBEERIRERINREZE S

Chairman
Mr Larry TCHOU Ming-kong
Vice-Chairman

Mr Michael LI Hon-shing, BBS, JP

Members

Mr Urs Viktor BESMER
Mr Stephen CHAN Choy-wing
Mr Victor CHAN Kok-wai
Mr Marco CHEUNG Chi-fai
Ms Cecilia HO
Mr Lawrence KOO Kin-yip
Ms Rebecca KWAN
Ms Lavinia LAU (up to 1 September 2015)
Mr Paul LEUNG Yiu-lam
Mr Wallace LI Chin-hung
Prof Bob MCKERCHER
Mr James TUNG Pui-chuen (up to 11 January 2016)
Mr Cramond WONG Yiu-cheung
Mr Wilson WU Wai-tsuen
Mr Joseph YUNG
Representative of the Commissioner for Labour
Representative of the Commissioner for Tourism
Representative of the Executive Director of
the Vocational Training Council
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TRAINING BOARDS AND GENERAL COMMITTEES

JIREEEN—REEE

Import/Export/Wholesale Trades Training Board

HAORMERNREES

Chairman

Mr Benson PAU Kit-kwan
Vice-Chairman

Ms Florence FUNG Ka-pik
Members

Mr CHAN Lap-tak

Mr Joe CHAU Kwok-ming

Mr CHEUNG Ching-fung

Dr Dominic CHU Chun-ho

Mr Raymond GOH

Mr Wilson LEE Kwong-ching

Mr LI Kin-man

Mr LO Kai-sing

Mr Vincent MA

Prof NGAI Wai-ting

Mr PAK Kwok-ming

Mr Byron WONG Tsz-wan

Mr Desmond YAU

Representative of the Director-General of Trade and Industry

Representative of the Executive Director of
the Vocational Training Council
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TRAINING BOARDS AND GENERAL COMMITTEES
dREEEgNM—RESSG

Insurance Training Board
REXEIREZEE

Chairlady £33

Mrs Agnes KOON WOO Kam-oi EtieE Lt

Members £8

Ms Charity AU B 2 I 22+

Mr Patrick CHAN Chi-kong PRI S

Mr Herman CHEUNG Chi-fai REBAEA

Mr CHEUNG Yiu-kwong SRIB ST

Mr Dominic LAM Wai-kuen, MH MERER S, MH

Mr Clarence LAU Chun-pong LR

Mr Thomas LEE Mun-nang ZmEES A

Prof LI Jing-yuan THEHX

Mr Andy MA Chun-kei BEELAE

Mr Jimmy POON Wing-fai BB L

Mrs Michelle TEASEL Mrs Michelle TEASEL

Mr Lewis TSE Kwok-po H S &

Mr WONG Yuk-loi BERRSEAE

Mr Allan YU Kin-nam REEEE

Representative of the Commissioner of Insurance RERFEEREESREK

Representative of the Commissioner for Labour BITRERRE

Representative of the Managing Director of BHIMEAEEEEERANITESEAE
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority

Representative of the Executive Director of BEIERBATHSNKE

the Vocational Training Council
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TRAINING BOARDS AND GENERAL COMMITTEES

R EEGN—REST

Maritime Services Training Board
BERGEIREZES

Chairman
Mr Arthur BOWRING
Members

Ms Yvette CHAN Yuk-lin (up to 1 September 2015)
Mr Demen CHEUNG Kwok-wai
Mr FAN Keung
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Mrs Doris LUK FUNG Yim-to
Dr Kelvin PANG Ka-liong
Capt Ben WONG Kam-fai
Mr David WONG Yui-cheong
Capt WU Kwok-hau
Capt YIP Kwok-lee
Representative of the Commissioner for Labour
Representative of the Director of Marine
Representative of the Commissioner of Police
Representative of the Executive Director of
the Vocational Training Council
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TRAINING BOARDS AND GENERAL COMMITTEES

REEGN—REST

Mass Communications Training Board
AREBEEEIGREZES

TRAINING BOARDS AND GENERAL COMMITTEES
AIREEEgM—REST

Metals Training Board
ETBEIREZEG

Chairlady EE Chairman EE

Ms Bianca MA Kin-san Bt u+ Dr Dennis NG Wang-pun, BBS, MH R 7R L, BBS, MH
Members =8 Members =

Mr Rico CHAN Kai-to BRESE T Dr Sunny CHAI Ngai-chiu ERBELT

Mr Gary CHEUNG Ka-wai RRELRE Ir Dr CHAN Luen-chow PREGMIE L -~ TIZ2RD

Ms Maria CHEUNG Yat-sum (up to 29 February 2016) SR—O+ (BE2016F2 A29H 1) Mr Peter CHAN Wing-yun PR R IR ST A

Ms Bonnie CHIU Lai-yu Bzt Ms Grace CHO Bagzt

Mr CHIU Wai-piu EEEELE Mr HO Tak-ming fAI{2ARE &

Mr DAI Chi-kit L Mr Vincent KONG Hon-po TDER &

Dr FU King-wa BREFLT Mr Jimi KWOK Ngok-wing SEEESE

Ms Celine HO Ming-wai /A + Mr Alex LAl Chi-ho REREE

Mr Keith KAM Woon-ting HEEsE Ir Thomas LEE Kwok-keung 258 THZRM

Mr Jackson KWOK Yiu-fai SPIRIE A Mr LEE Yuen-fat TIREE L

Mr Ross LAl BRFEE Mr LEUNG Chun-sing REBTE

Ms Winnie LAU 2FkiE R+ Ms Irene LEUNG Wing-yan RKA R+

Mr Stanley LEUNG Kam-hung RIRIE S E Dr Calvin OR Ka-lun MEmiET

Dr Will MA Wai-kit BEAELT Mr SUEN Fai-chuen FRER S A

Mr POON Siu-kuen EDESE Ms Jennifer TSUI TREKIR AL

Mr Edgar SO Kai-chi BRRUE A4 Mr YU Tak-ming RIERLEE

Prof Mike WONG Ka-fai =R EHIF Representative of the Director-General of Trade and Industry TXEBEFEERRRK
Mr WONG Wing-hang KT AL Representative of the Executive Director of BEIImBEPATHERR
Mr Patrick YU Kin-wah REBESLSE the Vocational Training Council

Mr YUEN Chi-wai REREEE

Representative of the Director of Broadcasting EREERERRER

Representative of the Director of Information Services BRFERERRE

BEIRBATHERE

Representative of the Executive Director of
the Vocational Training Council
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Plastics Training Board
BREXINGREZES

TRAINING BOARDS AND GENERAL COMMITTEES

R EEGN—REST

Printing and Publishing Training Board
R KR EREINREZES

Chairman EE Chairman xFE
Mr Stanley CHEUNG Tat-choi SREM T Mr YAN Tak-chung IR A
Members =8 Vice-Chairman BIEE
Mr Alfred AU Kit-ho Bl ST Dr LEE Ka-kui FREE L
Ms Martha CHAN Man-chi RS 2+ =
Dr CHIN Kwai-sang SHEEELT Members %8
Mr D HON hiu-pi TR g
o o CHONG Chiu-ping Hj@$§$ Mr Eric CHAN Tad-kin FREER S A
r John CHOW Hon-kong IS A Mr Dicky CHOY 58 298 - Pt
Dr CHUNG Sai-wing BN EL y _ ST
Mr Leton LEE Yuk-pui I jeiE e et AULE IERehliny BRI
Mr Eddie LEUNG Tin-fu RKRE S Mr Corey HO Kin-wa e
: el Mr Peter LAU Man-pong 2 HBEAE
Prof Robin MA Lok-wang SR BHIR : e
Mr Andy NG Ka-ho St Mr Clemence LEUNG Ka-kei REESE
s (2 o -mi =R
Ir Samson SUEN Kwok-wai B T2R0 Ml RGN XY TS FE E%i
Mr Warren SUN Yung-liang HRERESE 55 LA R et iﬁiﬁﬁi
Mr Calvin TAN Che-keung RS Ml S Sl BERRL
Mr Daniel WONG Ho-kar EAELL il UL NE) BRI QU AL
. o sk . Dr Allen SHI Lop-tak, MH, JP S {EE T+, MH, JP
Representative of the Commissioner for Labour BTk RAR e £ {28 4k A
Representative of the Director-General of Trade and Industry TXEBEFEERRRK Mr o aCPgJO o ﬁ;ﬁé;@%i
Representative of the Executive Director of BEIERBATHSNKE Mr PotnraTSE - ? L—(sum %%T“E%EE
the Vocational Training Council rreter ota Eniy
Ms Isa WONG Han =+
Dr Sharon WONG Yin-yue ERAE L
Representative of the Director of Government Logistics B iRGEERREK
Representative of the Director-General of Trade and Industry THEHEERNREK
Representative of the Commissioner for Labour BITRERRE
Representative of the Executive Director of BEIIRBPATHERR

the Vocational Training Council
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TRAINING BOARDS AND GENERAL COMMITTEES
AIREEEgNM—RESSG

Real Estate Services Training Board Retail Trade Training Board

BHMERBGRINREZE S

REXIREES

Chairman E Chairlady EE

Ir Alkin KWONG Ching-wai, JP REPIE /& TH2RT, JP Dr Stella KWAN Mun-yee AgeE L
Vice-Chairman EES Vice-Chairman EES

Dr Joseph LAU Kwong-yiu 2yt Mr WAI Yau-on BEREE
Members Z8 Members Z8

Mr Henry CHAN Sai-lun PR IR ST A Ms Ada CHAN PR FL R &+
Sr Dr Lennon CHOY Hung-tat ZISEB T - A=EM Mr Calvin CHAN PREESTE
Mr Waillen CHUI Wai-lan EREfmiLtE Ms Albe CHOI Pui-shan 2 {mitat
Dr Lobo FUNG Kwok-hung SR E T Ms Winnie CHOW Wai-yee FEELL
Sr HO Chin-choi AR R ERD Mr lan CHOY Jing-man HERSEA
Mr Anthony KWOK Chong M Mr Dennis LAU Hak-bun 25 A&
Mr Eric LEE Chun-ming IR A Mr TANG Cheung-sing RS T
Mr LEUNG Kam-leung AR A Ms TSE Man-fung X B2+
Ms Enid NG So-fun REFLL Ms Alice WONG Nga-lai EVid-
Mr Simon SHAM Sik-shing WEZY s Ms Ruth YU Lai-yiu REYZ T

Sr SUNG Shu-hung
Sr Augustine WONG Ho-ming, JP

R A5 R Z A
=HERIEED , JP

Dr Daisy YEUNG Kam-lan BeEELT
Mr YU Ka-ki REELAE

Representative of the Chief Executive Officer of

the Estate Agents Authority

HERIEEE RITBHEEIRR

Representative of the Director of Housing BEEEERAE
Representative of the Commissioner for Labour BIRERRE

Representative of the Executive Director of
the Vocational Training Council
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Security Services Training Board
RERBFRIREESG

TRAINING BOARDS AND GENERAL COMMITTEES

R EEGN—REST

Textile and Clothing Training Board
MEBRNKREINIREZES

Chairlady EE Chairman EE
Ms Jane Curzon LO BILE LT Mr Richard LOK Kee-loong LHBREEE
Members £8 Members £8
Mr Gary BUKOWICKI Mr Gary BUKOWICKI Mr CHU Tse-kwan REEIREAE
Dr Johnnie CHAN Chi-kau, BBS, JP PREIKIE L, BBS, JP Prof HU Jin-lian A& B
Ms Janna CHENG On-ki 2 2+ Dr David HUI PRI L
Mr Daniel CHUI Yiu-hung TRIBIE A Mr Matthew LAI REpEEE
Mr Percy KONG Tat-fun TEREEE Mr Tony LAU Kim-on Elrallatas
Mr Eddie LAM Koon-fu MEBRE Mr Benjamin LAU Man-tung BN R
Mr Bruce LEE Yu-yim THRKSEE Mr Roger LEE Kuo-chuan FEESE
Mr John NG Sheung-lok REGEE Mr Michael LEUNG Lai-yin REBERAE
Ms Enid NG So-fun REHBZL Dr Roger NG Keng-po RFFELT
Mr Douglas RENWICK BRI AE Mr Arkin NG Ping-kin REEBEA
Mr Simon SHAM Sik-shing Wil itas Mr Spike NGAI Chi-man BMENEE
Ms Dennis TANG Ming-tan BRS S 20+ Mr TAM Chin-ming ERALE
Representative of the Director of Housing BEEEERRE Ms Linda TSANG Chi-man BEN LT
Representative of the Commissioner for Labour BITHRERERRE Mr Terence WONG Kwok-sing =R AE
Representative of the Commissioner of Police LR m k&K Mr Wallace WONG Pok-man FEEAE
Representative of the Executive Director of BB ITHERE Mr William WONG FEEE
the Vocational Training Council Mr Andrew YU Yau-kuen EERELE
Representative of the Director-General of Trade and Industry TXEBEFEERRRK
Representative of the Commissioner for Labour BTHRERERRE

BEIRBATHERE

Representative of the Executive Director of
the Vocational Training Council
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Transport Logistics Training Board
MRAEEXINIREZEE

TRAINING BOARDS AND GENERAL COMMITTEES

R EEGN—REST

Committee on Apprenticeship and Trade Testing

Bl Rk BREE S

Chairman £33 Chairman xFE
Ir Dr David HO Chi-shing, JP A ERIEL - TH2RM, JP Mr WONG Kit-loong mEREESE
Members £8 Vice-Chairman BIEE
Mr Eddie CHO Chi-cheong EESRE Mr SO Hon-choi AR Lk
Mr Terry CHU Likfei RAOMITE -
Mr Emil LAl Cheung-kwong BAREN S Members Z8
ictor LAI Kong:yi RE #1524 B h
M Victor ongying i@‘;mi% Mr Jimmy CHAN Yiu-hung BeR MR ST A
Ms Theresa LAl 2RIKB ﬁi o EVEUNE T EEp L
Dr Francis LEUNG Kit-nam BT ' arieung A
2 o Mr James CHIM Pun-ngon EmakE
Dr Leon LI Yuk-on FELEL _ : ey
. i Mr Daniel FUNG Man-kit iR &Y e
Ms Alice LUI Yuen-nga =B fE R+ e Bl 1S 0 Sy
Mr Ryan TANG Chi-yan (up to 1 October 2015) BECEE (E2015F10 A1 HLE) S racher LEE el iy
. o Mr LEUNG Ping-him RFEAMRITE
Mr Eric WONG Man-sum BXRESE T e (LTG0 Ry
Mr Thomas WONG Tak-kwong FEHaE rArinKy /Ing-Kel BN
. . . S n Ms Polly PANG Ka-yi TRBTT
Mr Simon YAP Thian-chai R ELE e
A o oo 28 Mr Joe TSUI Yan-cho REMASLE
Mr YEUNG Lin-pik HEE L o s /2
beanne Mr Henry YIP Cheuk-tak HleEEA
Mr Thomas YIP Lung-sun S-S _ _ . .
. . HE 2t Representative of the Secretary for Education HERBRAEK
Ms Alice YIP Wai-chong HERLT B B N WETREEEAE
Representative of the Executive Director of BEIImBPATHERR epresentative ot the Lirector ot R
the Vocational Training Council R 5
Representative of the Commissioner for Labour BITRERRE

BEIRBATHERE

Representative of the Executive Director of
the Vocational Training Council
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Committee on Information Technology Training and Development
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Chairman

Ir Sunny LEE Wai-kwong, JP

Members
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Mr Raymond CHENG Siu-hong
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Dr Measure HUNG Kim-fung
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Mr Dennis LEE Chun-keung

Mr Gordon LO Siu-chung

Prof Helen MENG Mei-ling
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Mr Tony TAI Chark-tong

Prof TAM Kar-yan

Dr WONG Chung-kiu, MH

Mr Cedric YEUNG Chun-lam

Representative of the Government Chief Information Officer

Representative of the Executive Director of
the Vocational Training Council

122

ESE3

FENTIERD, JP

Z£8

WINE L
B/
HEfgrt
EEABL
HRIEE LT
i BIEIE
RSB E
ZDBSEE
SERHIK
ZrHRE
BRI L
FEEAANE 5 65

=fFEEL,

HERRELE

BT &R AR
BEIRBATHERE

MH

TRAINING BOARDS AND GENERAL COMMITTEES

R EEGN—REST

Committee on Management and Supervisory Training

ERNRESIGREES

Chairman
Dr Kevin LAU Kin-wah, JP
Members

Mr Jimmy CHIU Chi-ming

Dr Stephen KO Chi-chung

Mr Fred KWAN Yau-fat

Mr Wilson KWONG Wing-tsuen

Ms Connie LAM Tsui-wa

Mr LAU Kar-wah

Mr Gary LAU Sun-tao

Mr David LI Chi-ming

Mr Peter LIU Sin-shing

Mr Peter MOK Wah-fun

Mr York MOK

Mr David TING Tit-cheung, MH

Dr Danny WAN Tak-fai

Representative of the Civil Service Training and
Development Institute, Civil Service Bureau

Representative of the Executive Director of
the Vocational Training Council
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Committee on Technologist Training
REMNREEE

Chairman
Dr Edwin KWONG Kwok-wah
Members

Mr Raymond CHAN

Dr Lawrence CHEUNG Chi-chong

Mr Felix CHOI

Mr Hugh CHOW

Prof KI Wing-hung

Mr LEUNG Kam-man

Ir Simon LIU Sing-pang

Mr Dennis NG Kwok-on

Ir Dr Philip PONG Wing-tat

Ir Dr George SZE Lee-wah

Mr Ken TSUI Wai-hung

Ir WAI Yip-kin

Mr Eric YEUNG Chuen-sing

Ir Dr YIU Hing-leung

Representative of the Secretary for Development

Representative of the Commissioner for
Innovation and Technology

Representative of the Vocational Training Council

Representative of the Executive Director of
the Vocational Training Council
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Committee on Vocational Training for People with Disabilities

BEANTHRZIREZESS

Chairman

Mr CHEUNG Kin-fai, MH
Vice-Chairman

Dr James Joseph LAM, JP

Members

Ms Christina CHAN Shuk-han
Mr Herman HUI Chung-shing, SBS, MH, JP
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MANAGEMENT STRUCTURE OF
THE VOCATIONAL TRAINING COUNCIL

R R EERE

As at 31 March 2016 Council
BZE 20163 A31A HEe

Council Committees
BEEZBETIXZEY

Executive Director
HITHRE

Deputy Executive Director (A) Deputy Executive Director (B) Deputy Executive Director (C)
BIHITRRE (A) BlHITHE (B) BIHMITEE (C)

Deputy Executive Director (D)

BIBITHE (D)

Principal, School President, Head, Head, Senior Principals, Principals, Principal, Head, Senior Director, Director, General Project
for Higher and Technological Information Research Assistant IVEs & HKDI Youth College School of Estates, Assistant Maritime Institutional Manager, Manager,
Professional and Higher Technology Support Unit Executive Business and Health Executive Services Advancement Qualifications Office of the
Education Education Services ks y Director, Information and Safety Director, Training Office Framework Director of
Institute of Division Headquarters Systems Division Headquarters Institute Secretariat Apprenticeship
Hong Kong (Academic : (Academic & S
Sk g o Development) B

Services)

Legend:

CCl: Chinese Culinary Institute o2 B 2257

HKDI: Hong Kong Design Institute &6 AN %5120
HTI: Hotel and Tourism Institute ;& i 5 i % £ F

ICI: International Culinary Institute EFE B =4 2305
IVE: Hong Kong Institute of Vocational Education &6 B2 A £

¥
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Head,
Central
Services
Division

B

Head, Senior Principal, Director, Director, Director, Senior Head, Head, Head, Director,
Centre for Assistant HTI / CCl / ICI Vocational International Quality Assistant Finance and Human Internal Audit External
Learning Executive Training for Development Assurance and Executive Supplies Resources Unit Relations

and Director, - People with Office Accreditation Director, Division Division EERE Office
Teaching Headgquarters th Disabilities BE Office Higher and 817 EER T E
HEm ) (Industry Office Professional

ET Partnership) Education

3§ Office

Notes:

1) Pro-Act Training and Development Centres and Vocational Development Programme Office are under the purview of the Youth College.
2) Integrated Vocational Development Centres are under the purview of the Headquarters (Industry Partnership).

3) The Institute of Professional Education And Knowledge is under the purview of the Higher and Professional Education Office.

4) Shine Skills Centres are under the purview of the Vocational Training for People with Disabilities Office.

5t
1) SHEHHED O RBEE R BN ERMEFRREE -
2) B EEBRE L @NER (TEAE) B8 -

3) BREESRERS R EERERES -
)

4) REBRBEERT O BBERA TBEREEE -
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For enquiries &3 External Relations Office
Vocational Training Council
B2 AR B NS R

Address bt VTC Tower, 27 Wood Road
Wan Chai, Hong Kong
EHREEE 27 SRBENR B KE

Tel E5F (852) 2836 1000
Fax {8 (852) 2838 0667
Website #3E http://www.vtc.edu.hk
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OVERVIEW OF OPERATING RESULTS

Consolidated Financial Statements

Following the prevailing accounting principles in Hong Kong, the
Council has prepared Consolidated Financial Statements for
the year 2015-16 presenting the operating results and financial
position of the Council and its subsidiaries (the Group) of the year.
A total income of HK$4,912.3M (2014-15: HK$4,705.6M) and
total expenditure of HK$4,560.1M (2014-15: HK$4,301.2M) were
reported.

Operating Results

As compared with 2014-15, the increase in the Group’s income was
mainly attributed to the increase in Government subventions largely
for pay adjustments, increase in tuition fees income from degree and
top-up degree programmes.

The increase in expenditure was mainly due to the increase in staff
expenses resulting from pay adjustments, increase in staff and other
operating expenses for the provision of additional student places
in degree programmes and increase in trainee allowances for VTC
Earn & Learn Scheme.

The operating results of the major activities in 2015-16 are set out
in the paragraphs below.

Consolidated Income (2015-16)
2015-16 F EHRE WA

5%

36%

® Government Subventions

® Tuition Fees and Training Charges

BERREEMN

Other Income

Hl A

2 Vocational Training Council B34 =

ZEMRHRR
BEE(EB ARG RADEmS 2015-16 FE4HKE MK
Wk RAFRBEIRD (GBEBIED) REWBELQ
B (B AEE) NEBERRFY BT o REERKEE
REBWABBEEL49/E1,230 B T (2014-15FEAB
M ATES60E T) r BHX A BB 45F6,010B T
(2014- 15 FE A B 431208 T) °

SERER

822014-15FEMLL - AEBHRAE NEZRBEBA
WS EEINBERBE I HMAR BB FB N
HIERIEME B AL -

AEERANABRX LA TERFMAZ  FEZ2L
B RRRRHENREMEINNE TAMEMEER M
VTC Earn & Learn 251212 B RYEREIE N -

THERIE 201516 FETETHENEERR -

Consolidated Expenditure (2015-16)
201516 F EHRE X H

8%

12%

® Staff Expenses
ETHX

® Accommodation and Related Maintenance Expenses

RERERBBREMXI

® Consumables, Equipment and Library Books

HEMYm - REREE

Other Expenses
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Activities Financed by Government Recurrent Subventions

Total income for the year 2015-16 amounted to HK$3,541.6M,
of which HK$2,528.0M was recurrent subventions from the
Government, HK$853.6M from tuition fees and training charges,
and HK$160.0M from bank interest and other income. Total
expenditure for 2015-16 amounted to HK$3,348.7M. The savings
of HK$192.9M was transferred to the Council’s Reserves for
implementation of new initiatives and other developments.

Activities Financed by Other Specific Government Grants

In addition to the Government’s subventions, the Council
successfully obtained grants under a number of specific Government
Funds. These mainly included the Manpower Development Scheme,
VTC Earn & Learn Scheme, Construction Industry Council Incentive
Programme to enhance the Apprenticeship Scheme for Electrical
and Mechanical Industry and Project JUMP. Total income for the
year amounted to HK$160.5M and expenditure amounted to
HK$166.9M.

Self-financing Activities

In 2015-16, the Group ran its self-financing activities mainly through
the operation of the VTC School of Business and Information
Systems, the VTC School for Higher and Professional Education,
Institute of Professional Education and Knowledge, Technological
and Higher Education Institute of Hong Kong (THEi) and Integrated
Vocational Development Centre. Total income generated from the
self-financing activities for the year was HK$1,026.9M and total
expenditure incurred was HK$909.6M.

Building Programmes and Capital Items

For the year 2015-16, a total of HK$898.3M was incurred on
building programmes and capital items. These projects included
the construction of halls of residence in Tsing Yi, THEi campus in
Chai Wan, International Culinary Institute in Pokfulam, purchase
of office premises in Billion Plaza as well as other alterations,
additions and improvement projects.

Retirement Schemes

Other than the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (MPFS) set up
under the Hong Kong MPFS Ordinance, the Council’s retirement
schemes also included the VTC Provident Fund Scheme (1999) and
the VTC Retirement and Death Gratuity Scheme for Minor Staff. These
schemes were registered under the Occupational Retirement Schemes
Ordinance and granted exemption pursuant to the MPFS Ordinance.

New Technology Training Fund

New Technology Training Fund (the Fund) was established by the
Government to finance the New Technology Training Scheme (the
Scheme). The Council administers the Scheme and holds the Fund
on trust for the Government. The balance of revenue fund as at 31
March 2016 was HK$4.8M.

Dr Clement CHEN Cheng-jen, SBS, JP
Chairman
15 August 2016
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE VOCATIONAL

TRAINING COUNCIL (THE COUNCIL)

HBEXINRBEBNBBILZAEMK S

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of the
Vocational Training Council (the Council) and its subsidiaries
(together the Group) set out on pages 6 to 63, which comprise the
consolidated and Council balance sheets as at 31 March 2016, the
consolidated and Council statements of comprehensive income,
the consolidated and Council statements of changes in fund
balances and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then
ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Council’'s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Council is responsible for the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Vocational Training
Council Ordinance and for such internal control as the Council
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with section 18 of the Vocational
Training Council Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’'s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the Council, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

4 Vocational Training Council BZFI%&k B
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Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the financial position of the Group and of the Council as
at 31 March 2016 and of the Group’s and the Council’s financial
performance and the Group’s cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the Vocational Training
Council Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

15 August 2016
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2016
H#EXZ2016 F3H31ALEEFEEN GEZ2ZEHKRE R

Note 2016 2015
M HK$'000 HK$’000
INCOME ON
Government Subventions BB 3 2,921,811 2,770,407
Tuition Fees and Training Charges ZERREEN 4 1,770,599 1,694,634
Interest Income FIEUA 55,150 70,905
Donations B 5 29,081 39,052
Other Income Hibg A 6 135,672 130,614
Total Income A4z 4,912,313 4,705,612
EXPENDITURE X
Staff Expenses BTIMX 7
Full-time Staff Expenses TREIRX 2,866,290 2,757,419
Parttime Staff Expenses FEBEIRX 114,762 112,520
Temporary Staff Expenses == g 302,076 269,673
Other Staff Expenses HMEITHX 27,734 25,405
3,310,862 3,165,017
Other Operating Expenses Hir&8Mx
Consumables, Equipment and Library Books SEHEMY M RENEE 317,017 283,466
Accommodation and Related Maintenance Expenses REFHEREBERERX 565,338 541,066
Hire of Services and Professional Fees HERKER 66,910 59,705
Student/Trainee Grants and Activities B4 BEHNEE 108,170 87,091
Training Boards/General Committees’ Expenses JRZzEE/ —REEEHX 38,690 33,056
Staff Development and Visits BTER AR 19,030 18,347
Other Expenses Hitpix 134,036 113,473
1,249,191 1,136,204
Total Expenditure A% 4,560,053 4,301,221
SURPLUS AND TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME TEERRK
FOR THE YEAR 2HKRAE 8 352,260 404,391
TRANSFER TO: ERE:
Reserves FHiES 10 192,909 253,276
Specific and Other Funds BEAZRRHMES 11 159,351 151,115
352,260 404,391

The Group had no components of comprehensive income other than “surplus for the year” in either of the years presented. Therefore,
the Group’s “total comprehensive income” was the same as the “surplus for the year” in both years.

BRTY TAFERR N AEERERFAALREHM2ENE  BRAEERZEFENAFERS | HERN2EHKEBE] -

The notes on page 13 to page 63 form an integral part of these financial statements.

JIHNEIBEEFIEZMERATHHRKR 2 —5FD °
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2016
B#EX2016FEZF3H31HEEFENZ2E KW= X

Note 2016 2015
Bt HK$'000 HK$'000
INCOME [LON
Government Subventions B 3 2,916,051 2,768,152
Tuition Fees and Training Charges BENEEER 4 938,435 910,075
Interest Income FIEWA 48,408 62,655
Donations B 5 32,730 38,093
Other Income Hetvlg A 6 326,720 332,059
Total Income WA % 4,262,344 4,111,034
EXPENDITURE X
Staff Expenses BTIMX 7
Full-time Staff Expenses 2HEIEX 2,470,538 2,363,996
Part-time Staff Expenses REETHY 41,041 34,271
Temporary Staff Expenses ERFETRY 284,846 258,381
Other Staff Expenses HMETITHX 25,457 24,119
2,821,882 2,680,767
Other Operating Expenses Hi&Emx
Consumables, Equipment and Library Books SHEMY M  RENREE 292,584 260,252
Accommodation and Related Maintenance Expenses ReREREBRERX 556,504 532,436
Hire of Services and Professional Fees BEXRKER 58,243 50,333
Student/Trainee Grants and Activities B4 BE@EEREE 101,479 78,626
Training Boards/General Committees’ Expenses JIREEE —REEEHX 38,616 32,982
Staff Development and Visits BIEIR N 16,203 15,935
Other Expenses Hiipik 112,641 117,837
1,176,270 1,088,401
Total Expenditure S 3,998,152 3,769,168
SURPLUS AND TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE TEERHBR
INCOME FOR THE YEAR 2H KRR 8 264,192 341,866
TRANSFER TO: ERE
Reserves #iEe 10 192,909 253,276
Specific and Other Funds BERZRHEMES 11 71,283 88,590
264,192 341,866

The Council had no components of comprehensive income other than “surplus for the year” in either of the years presented. Therefore,
the Council’s “total comprehensive income” was the same as the “surplus for the year” in both years.

BRTY [AFERSIN BARERFRILRARMEENRE  AUBRARZEFENAFEREG | HER [ 2EKRSERAFE] -

The notes on page 13 to page 63 form an integral part of these financial statements.

PIHRNEISEEFEIEZMERAUBHRKR 2 —82D °
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

AS AT 31 MARCH 2016

2016 £F3 A31HMNESE

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, Plant and Equipment
Loans to Staff

Deposits

CURRENT ASSETS

Loans to Staff

Employee Retirement Benefits Assets

Accounts Receivable, Prepayments and
Other Receivables

Bank Deposits with Maturity over Three Months
Cash and Cash Equivalents

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable, Accruals and Other Payables

Provision for Employee Benefits
Loans Payable within One Year
Deferred Income

NET CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Provision for Employee Benefits
Loans Payable after One Year
Deferred Income

NET ASSETS

Represented by:
Reserves
Specific and Other Funds

TOTAL FUNDS

Approved and authorised for issue
by the Vocational Training Council

on 15 August 2016
HEFIREESEMIRBEREE

Dr Clement CHEN Cheng-jen, SBS, JP
Chairman

Vocational Training Council
BB ERE

PREZ{_E L, SBS, JP

EEEBEREX

FREEE

MEE - MR ERE
EBIER

we

REEE

EIEX
EERKEBANEE
FEWBRIE - FAfTRUE R HAib
e BRIE

A BBB=RNRITER

RERREEEY

REBAE
FEAIBRIE ~ FERT S H R EAt
BRI

BERFERE
—FRREENER
UESE Y 35

RBEERE
EERERABAE
FRBEE
BERENER
—FREEENER
SRS Y 2s

BEFE
LAREDE
BT
BERBRHEMES

ESHRE

Note
Byt

12
15

15
14

16

17

18(a)
18(d)
19
20

18(d)
19
20

10
11

The notes on page 13 to page 63 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
3,029,721 2,425,259
1,205 1,738
5,835 5,137
3,036,761 2,432,134
894 926

- 9,132

85,426 132,019
4,510,147 4,711,307
785,900 706,417
5,382,367 5,559,801
1,248,619 1,149,205
400,071 386,652
2,185 2,745
276,369 306,306
1,927,244 1,844,908
3,455,123 3,714,893
6,491,884 6,147,027
8,765 10,449
427,148 427,148
1,432,234 1,437,953
1,868,147 1,875,550
4,623,737 4,271,477
330,286 264,499
4,293,451 4,006,978
4,623,737 4,271,477




BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 MARCH 2016
2016 3 A31HMNEE&RBMEAR

Note 2016 2015
BfEE HK$'000 HK$’000
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, Plant and Equipment M - R KRR 12 3,019,728 2,416,002
Investments in Subsidiaries HB L RNKRE 13 = -
Loans to Staff ETER 15 1,205 1,738
Deposits we 5,835 5,137
3,026,768 2,422,877
CURRENT ASSETS nREBEE
Loans to Staff ETER 15 894 926
Employee Retirement Benefits Assets EERKBAEE 14 - 9,132
Accounts Receivable, Prepayments and FEURBRIE ~ FETRIBR
Other Receivables Hi e BRIE 16 72,298 120,039
Bank Deposits with Maturity over Three Months FEHABB=EAMNRITER 4,510,147 4,711,307
Cash and Cash Equivalents HENREZEEY 17 778,487 700,630
5,361,826 5,542,034
CURRENT LIABILITIES wEAE
Accounts Payable, Accruals and Other Payables FE(SERIE » FEETXH R
Hit B ERIE 18(a) 1,791,723 1,595,402
Provision for Employee Benefits EEEFIERE 18(d) 390,187 379,112
Loans Payable within One Year —FEREEBENER 19 2,185 2,745
Deferred Income BN &= 20 267,435 305,416
2,451,530 2,282,675
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 2,910,296 3,259,359
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES EERERRBAE 5,937,064 5,682,236
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ErRBER
Provision for Employee Benefits BEEEFERE 18(d) 1,667 5,312
Loans Payable after One Year —FREEBENER 19 427,148 427,148
Deferred Income ELEW = 20 1,432,234 1,437,953
1,861,049 1,870,413
NET ASSETS EERE 4,076,015 3,811,823
Represented by: FRRELE
Reserves #EE 10 330,286 264,499
Specific and Other Funds BERRRHEMES 11 3,745,729 3,547,324
TOTAL FUNDS B 4,076,015 3,811,823

Approved and authorised for issue
by the Vocational Training Council

on 15 August 2016

M2016F8 A15H
HBEIRESESSRIREBEEER

Dr Clement CHEN Cheng-jen, SBS, JP
Chairman

Vocational Training Council
BRI EE

PREE{-fE L, SBS, JP

The notes on page 13 to page 63 form an integral part of these financial statements.

PJIHNEISEEFIEZMERAYBHRKR -0 °

Financial Report 817 % %2015/2016 9



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2016
BHE2016F3A31LBLELEENGREEZETRE

Specific and
Other Funds
Reserves (Note 11)
(Note 10) BERE
wES REMES Total
(MtEE10) (HsE11) b
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Balance as at 1 April 2014 2014 F AR 1 HEES 266,006 3,601,080 3,867,086
Inter-fund Transfers RIE SR (254,783) 254,783 -
Surplus and Total Comprehensive Income KEERBRR
for the Year 2 HIRREEE 253,276 151,115 404,391
Balance as at 31 March 2015 2015% 3 B 31 H&E6R 264,499 4,006,978 4,271,477
Balance as at 1 April 2015 2015F 4 B 1 A& 264,499 4,006,978 4,271,477
Inter-fund Transfers ABESHR (127,122) 127,122 -
Surplus and Total Comprehensive Income EEEBEBR
for the Year 2H KRR AR 192,909 159,351 352,260
Balance as at 31 March 2016 2016 F£3 A 31 A&t 330,286 4,293,451 4,623,737

The notes on page 13 to page 63 form an integral part of these financial statements.

JIHNEIBEEFIEZMERAYBHRKR 2 -2 °
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2016
B E2016 F3A31HLEFENEESTEFH KRR

Balance as at 1 April 2014
Inter—fund Transfers

Surplus and Total Comprehensive Income
for the Year

Balance as at 31 March 2015
Balance as at 1 April 2015
Inter-fund Transfers

Surplus and Total Comprehensive Income
for the Year

Balance as at 31 March 2016

2014F 4 B 1 BEES
REE S ER

AEERBK
FHKSRHE

2015F 3 B 31 B&s
2015F 4 A1 &8
REESER

AEERBRK
2HKERE

2016 £3 A 31 H#ER

Specific and

Other Funds

Reserves (Note 11)

(Note 10) BERR
wEE kEMES Total
(KfzE10) (BfaE11) EEG]
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
266,006 3,203,951 3,469,957
(254,783) 254,783 -
253,276 88,590 341,866
264,499 3,547,324 3,811,823
264,499 3,547,324 3,811,823
(127,122) 127,122 -
192,909 71,283 264,192
330,286 3,745,729 4,076,015

The notes on page 13 to page 63 form an integral part of these financial statements.

JIHNEE I3 EEF63HEZMERRIBHIRET 23D -
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2016
BHE2016F3A31HILEFENGESESHREERE R

Note 2016 2015
et HK$'000 HK$'000
Operating Activities RETEH
Surplus Btk 352,260 404,391
Adjustments for: FEIER
Subventions and Donations for Capital Projects ERIRMERIRER (183,553) (226,966)
Depreciation of Property, Plant and Equipment M WBERFEITE 262,300 278,657
Gain on Disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment HENE - BERRE2 W (156) (58)
Interest Income FEBA (55,150) (70,905
Operating Surplus before Changes in Working Capital BEELRHR LR 375,701 385,119
Decrease/(Increase) in Deposits and Accounts Receivable,  $RATEEIF: « FEUERIE -
Prepayments and Other Receivables BARER M EKRE
ZED /() 45,895 (54,688)
Increase in Accounts Payable, Accruals and FE{HERIE - R R
Other Payables Hib R IRE 238 99,414 108,516
Increase/ (Decrease) in Provision for Employee Benefits EERAEEZEM/(HD) 20,867 (79,798)
Increase in Deferred Income TEAE S 2 120 147,897 245,802
Net (Decrease)/Increase in Bank Loan for BETEINRITERZF
On-lending to Staff (Ri) /48 (560) 114
Decrease/(Increase) in Loans to Staff ETIERZRD/(52h0) 565 (134)
Cash Generated from Operating Activities LeTBMEL2RS . e8779 604,931
Cash Flows from Investing Activities REZTHZHAER
Payment of Capital Expenditure BERT AR (866,871) (439,948)
Proceeds from Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment HEMEE - TR EEIE 265 140
Interest Received BIHE 55,150 70,905
Decrease/(Increase) in Placement of Fixed Deposits with BTERENEBMABB=EA2
Banks with Maturity over Three Months B,/ (1810) 201,160 (660,811)
Net Cash Used in Investing Activities REETDFIEANRSEE (610296) | (1,029,714)
Cash Flows from Financing Activities METHZHER
Loan from Government BFER - 340,000
Net Cash Generated from Financing Activities RETHRELENReEE - 340,000
Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents BeRBSSEMZFEM/
(H4) 79,483 (84,783)
Cash and Cash Equivalents as at 1 April RABLBMBEERELEEN 706,417 791,200
Cash and Cash Equivalents as at 31 March R3A3LANRERBAEEEY 17 785,900 706,417

The notes on page 13 to page 63 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt %5 ¥R & MY 5E

(a)

(b)

BACKGROUND

E1=1=}
B

The Vocational Training Council (the Council) was established in Hong Kong under the Vocational Training Council Ordinance
(the Ordinance). Under Section 17(3) of the Ordinance, the Council has to cause to be prepared, after the end of each financial
year, a statement of comprehensive income of the Council during that financial year and a balance sheet of the Council on the
last day thereof.

BT E (AEEIIE) BB ZEIN R BRG] (BBZRG) EE BRI o ZIFRPIFE L7 Q)RR TE » BIIE ARS8 I
FEERE  GEBZHRFEZELALNZEAKRER  URREEBNEEAER -

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
TEGSER

Statement of Compliance
BREH

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(HKFRSs), which collective term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (HKASs) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA),
and accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong. A summary of the significant accounting policies adopted by the
Council and its subsidiaries (collectively the Group) is set out below.
REBHRRDIRBEBSTHMASAGHAEEAN(EBMBRESER) (BRAFERZENEBUBEREELL) (BB
B EARRE) UREBARSHEREA) MAERN - BIIBREMB AR (SBAKE) RANIESTTBERALNT -

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that are first effective for the current accounting period of the Group
and the Council. None of these developments have had a material effect on how the Group’s and the Council’s results and
financial position for the current or prior periods have been prepared or presented.
ERSMAGAME THIEREKEITHCEBMBREEL)  HEEREAEERBINEEA 2STHHBEREN - Z
SREITREHARERBIN B ERNHBEREANEERVBRAENEATE -

The Group has not applied any new standards or interpretation that is not yet effective for the current accounting period (see
Note 24).
AEBILBRAEME AR RSB E RN ER R 2R (F2HMWE24) ©

Basis of Preparation of the Financial Statements
MR R A R LB A

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2016 comprise the Council and its subsidiaries.

BE2016F3 A31 ALFENGRESMNBRREERIBREMBLF -

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial statements is the historical cost basis.

R BHRRZUBLRIDERTERR

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
ERAFE(ERMBREL) 2 MBHRKRE  ERBAFHEFESHERZEAREE  8F KARIHZIIHE
RRAE HIE ~ AT RER - ZEMFTREBRRIBRBEBRI2KBRECEEEEBATEBAENHEMEREMEL  HiE
HAEEBREEIRHMBRERTHAEEREENREABFHABRNER - BMAERTEBRINZEMET -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt %5 ¥ & MY 5E

(b)

(c)

(d)

14

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
g@;-fﬁﬁ (n\ﬁ)

Basis of Preparation of the Financial Statements (Cont’d)
MEmRNERERE (F)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are

recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision

and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

EZE’H“S?&*E%%1?&:&%3*%”;*@%\ o HETHATHETIER i BB REEBITATTNENE - BETTERERER - &8
AIFERNEHRUBREE BTSN ENRUEFERR

Subsidiaries
M A R

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group control an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only substantive rights (held by the Group and the parties) are considered.
MEARREAHBIEFNER - EXARBEEASHEREHNSNEBEEMRAEIZRAZERURERE HZEZEE
WA AIAKBIESIZER - TRMEAKBRSHEE LAIE N EZEE (ARERHEMISEE)BEEER -

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the consolidated financial statements from the date that control commences
until the date that control ceases. Intra-group balances and transactions and any unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-
group transactions are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.

HNBRARANRESHSEEFERABIAGESYBHRERA  EEZEFELLERIL - EBRRBA2HNERRRS - U

REBANR2HARZAEENARZRET  SRNERFSVBERRETUSEIEE - BBAQAZHRARZFEEN
AEBREEENRERETRNERT @ UKHERSRNENAR T AT LUK -

In the Council’s balance sheet, investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less provision for impairment losses (see Note
2(f)).
ERIIBzEEEERA  HRBLARNREURAIRRESERES T F2REME2()

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see Note 2(f)).

M3 - HBRNRBURSHRRINERBERSESIR F2HEME2(f)

Land and/or buildings owned or held under a leasehold interest by the Council which are leased to subsidiaries are classified
as campus used by a subsidiary in the Council’s balance sheet. Such assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses (see Note 2(f)).

B REERUBEERESEEE 2L R ST AUEAETFHEL a , ﬁFHﬁWII%ZéFﬁE%@EP"*E% Fft B8 2 B £ A
ZRE - ZEEEURARETITERBEBEIT G2 RME 2(1)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt %5 ¥R & MY 5E

(d)

(e)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
EEGEEER (8

Property, Plant and Equipment (Cont’d)
M - BB RRE (&)

The Group estimates the useful lives of various categories of property, plant and equipment on the basis of their designed life,
planned asset maintenance programme and actual usage experience. Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual value, if any, using the straight line method over their estimated
useful lives as follows:

AHBREBEREYE  BSERZEZRFTFEH > #ETIRERFERLR  RETHAUGCHEE - 913 - S REZHENIT
EREREAREREMATREERE (WEA) BUBIEAZFRUESETTE  UEHERA - FHAOT :

- Interests in leasehold land held for own use are depreciated over the unexpired term of lease.

REMAESE T 2 BRR BB THEBHERE -

- Buildings situated on leasehold land are depreciated over the shorter of the unexpired term of lease and their estimated
useful lives, being no more than 50 years after the date of completion.

URBEEL E BT REBRTHEMNENTERFR  EFZREKBRBES0F (MBEE) RAEHFE -

- Improvements works shorter of the unexpired term of lease and their estimated useful lives of 5-7 years
BFHETE BT WEHRBHAEAFR (5-7F) » UREERE

- Furniture and equipment shorter of the duration of the project and their estimated useful lives of 4-7 years
FKARKE HEWFERBRFETAIFERAER (4-7F)  UBEEAR%E

- Computer equipment shorter of the duration of the project and their estimated useful lives of 4-7 years
E B HEWFERBRFETAIFERER (4-7F)  UBEEAR%E

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, each part is depreciated separately. Both
the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.

%  MBERZENSBOWAEAFERTE  SBINTESEBHE EECTAFRREFRGER (WER) TS
REFETEE -

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment are determined as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and are recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income on the date of retirement or disposal.
ﬁraﬁﬁm%%%%%%&%ﬁﬁzuﬂzéﬁgiﬁﬁ?ﬁﬁﬁtlj%Fﬁ%ﬂﬁzAi%aﬁﬁﬁ@%ﬁ%ﬂﬁ@ﬁi%%ﬁ%ﬁé%  WHARBRHES
HIAZERKZEEZA °

Construction in Progress
EEIR

Construction in progress is stated at cost, which comprises accumulated costs of construction, professional fees and interest
expenses, if any, capitalised prior to the completion of the respective projects, less any impairment losses, and is not
depreciated. These costs for work carried out are based on interim certificates certified by professional personnel, which may
differ from the actual future settlement. Capitalisation of these costs ceases and the construction in progress is transferred
to the appropriate category of property, plant and equipment when the construction is completed and the asset is ready for its
intended use.

FRIBRUNKNBRBESEIER  EARTHEAHE - A ERFERFREER  SXEARIEBTRAIFTERLNRE
SH(EA) BEIRHARREBEXAESMBBNPHIEREEN - ELENNTEEERNEERRERMEA - B
IR EECAUEHEARK  BENAREFSELEERNML MERIRECSEAYE HERRERNEENERF -
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16

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
EEGEER (8

Impairment of Assets

EERE

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at each balance sheet date to identify indications that the following
assets may be impaired or an impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists or may have decreased:
AEBEESEAEIZZARNIRNEE  UBREUTEEREHRBENR » AIRUTIRIANHESELIBEER
CARD

- Property, plant and equipment (including campus used by a subsidiary);

M~ HBERERE (BENBARERZRE) |

- Construction in progress; and
FEIR K

- Investments in subsidiaries.

HNBARKIIRE ©

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An impairment loss is recognised in the statement
of comprehensive income whenever the carrying amount of such an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.
MREHBEBESS  ESEHEENTRESBENGET EEENRESESATREIHER  ESE2HKERERR
EE1E -

(i) Calculation of Recoverable Amount

AR e SRR

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. Where an asset
does not generate cash inflows largely independent of those from other assets, the recoverable amount is determined
for the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).
EENTWREHEARAAABEBHKRHERAEEAEEMEFNRSHE - RIMEERABER - MFTHARRESRE
DRIAERMBEHSIGESHEREEZRHERR 2 RAIMRE  BREHRE BEEETHBEYNHEMEE
EERERER  BUEBUELRERENR/ )N —HEE (TELRSEN) ABNEETREISEE

(i) Reversal of Impairment Losses

HERRERD

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a favourable change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount. A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the asset’s carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised in prior years. Reversals of impairment losses are credited to the
statement of comprehensive income in the year in which the reversals are recognised.
“ﬁ#&mT%@é%%ﬁ?ﬁﬁE@ﬁﬁh ERREFESRER - MBRMNBESEBUARREUNTIFERE
RBEEENEERESHERR - FEENRESEETREIBEENFEANTAZEKESR -
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(8)

(h)

(i)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
EEGEEER (8

Accounts and Other Receivables
FE U AR 18 Iz HL fth FE U FR 18

Accounts and other receivables are initially recognised at fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts, except where the receivables are interest-free loans made
to related parties without any fixed repayment terms or the effect of discounting would be immaterial. In such cases, the
receivables are stated at cost less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts.

EWERIER H B IE R A ABERR > HERERFREEENER  WHREERZERNBAEEEDER  HHE
WHRERETFHESTRERSEREFERINERRINELETK  BERRERERAAINBREBRERNWRBEEE
SRR o

Impairment losses for bad and doubtful debts are recognised when there is objective evidence of impairment and are
measured as the difference between the carrying amount of the financial asset and the estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the asset’s original effective interest rate where the effect of discounting is material. Objective evidence of
impairment includes observable data that comes to the attention of the Group about events that have an impact on the asset’s
estimated future cash flows such as significant financial difficulty of the debtor.

EERENERIRER  RERNAESEESHRER - RERNBAESERESHEENREEREMATRRRERENE
B MBENEEER AIFHR - RENTEEBEERE - LARNEE  BErRS4EREXELTHBERENMGETRRER
TRE  WEBABUBEE -

Impairment losses for accounts receivable included within accounts and other receivables whose recovery is considered
doubtful but not remote are recorded using an allowance account. When the Group is satisfied that the recovery is remote,
the amount considered irrecoverable is written off against accounts receivable directly and any amounts held in the allowance
account relating to that debt are reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously charged to the allowance account
are reversed against the allowance account. Other changes in the allowance account and subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off directly are recognised in statement of comprehensive income.

REWRER HAEWFRIES » APLWEHEREE  EXTAYEZRERIRENBEBESTHRNREBRA P - ERKE
RAMERENKEE +oBTE  MESEEREBEWREFEKR  EEEGRAPHNEETSSEHRD - KE S EHENRFEBRE
PHREBEERZERE FEE - HATEERE CESNRE CHEEER HEEN2EKERPER -

Cash and Cash Equivalents
HeREASEEY

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and in hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions,
and short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within three months of maturity at acquisition.
RERRESEYEFERTEFRRRE - FRRBITNEHMGBBERENTHER  UREFIRSREBMENIRE - BLRE
AILUBRRERCHNNRSHE  EESBFTEANRERTA  YEBAZ=EARNEIE -

Accounts and Other Payables

e RRIR e AL At S 7RIR

Accounts and other payables are initially recognised at fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

FBAIRER AMENRKENRR A A EERER - HEUBERARTIER - EiTRZET R - RIBIASIR

Financial Report 81 ¥ #:2015/2016 17



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt %5 ¥ & MY 5E

1)

(k)

18

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
EEGEER (8

Loans and Borrowings
ERREE

Loans and borrowings are recognised initially at fair value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
loans and borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any difference between the amount initially recognised and redemption
value being recognised in the statements of comprehensive income over the period of the borrowings, together with any
interest and fees payable, using the effective interest method.

ERREENHRERAAEEIREE XS HAER - A& ERREEUBERAIIIER - PrBEREELBEREE £
RERIAUEIMNNINERER  REHWaXRPUBRIRAE  LIREEFHER -

Employee Benefits
EEEF

(i) Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, leave passage and the cost to the Group of non-monetary benefits are
accrued in the year in which the associated services are rendered by employees of the Group. Where payment or
settlement is deferred and the effect would be material, these amounts are stated at their present values.

o FERS - AHFR - REKRERMRBSEFEEENNAE  EARBESREABRBNEERALR ° X
BENXASENZLEREEHTZEEEN  ARESEHUERENK -

(ii) Contributions to Mandatory Provident Funds as required under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance are recognised as an expense in the statement of comprehensive income as incurred.

REEFBCARFME LB ERFDN[REFELARF M LARSEHTN - MFRKEZERERABEI/FX -

(iii) The Group’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit retirement plans is calculated separately for each plan by
estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior
periods; that benefit is discounted to determine the present value and the fair value of any plan assets is deducted.
The calculation is performed by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method. When the calculation results
in a benefit to the group, the recognised asset is limited to the present value of economic benefits available in the form
of any future refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan.
AHEBHRERMNERGTERENER FERREEF B LFE » stEAEZRATHEEEE M ST R R ARE
Fﬁﬁﬂiiﬁiﬁmﬂﬂﬁ%ﬁﬁ ; ZRNREIRARE  XENRFTTEEEN D AREME o 4 %EEE BERBEMZBEE

BURAETE c EEERATKBTERNE - IRZANEE UGS IR EIMSNEMERSER IR KX B0
BENSZBERR -

Service cost and net interest expense (income) on the net defined benefit liability (asset) are recognised in the
statement of comprehensive income. Current service cost is measured as the increase in the present value of the
defined benefit obligation resulting from employee service in the current period. When the benefits of a plan are
changed, or when a plan is curtailed, the portion of the changed benefit related to past service by employees, or the
gain or loss on curtailment, is recognised as an expense in the statement of comprehensive income at the earlier
of when the plan amendment or curtailment occurs and when related restructuring costs or termination benefits are
recognised. Net interest expense (income) for the period is determined by applying the discount rate used to measure
the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the reporting period to the net defined benefit liability (asset). The
discount rate is the yield at the end of the reporting period on high quality corporate bonds that have maturity dates
approximating the terms of the group’s obligations

%mhﬁﬁﬁ/é?%%ﬁmmﬁeﬁ B IMABERNEERRRA o NFEREMAS R ANERE &S R
RN AERAMEEREZEMAR - Mt EINER NS EERRE - BEESUERBNERN 2 ZEE DR
ERERT BT RNIER  SETEBITRERSFREREARN AR EN L L HEERRF (URETRREEAE)E
2EKRRERERAES - HAWFANEXE WA REAERAEFRGAECEANSENEREEANERAEEFE
& BEMTE -WHREZREBEEEAFAESFNERKEBFNRREETE  I2ZQAREFNFHEAKEFNRER
FERRGH BRI FEIMEE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt %5 ¥R & MY 5E

(k)

M

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
EEGEEER (8

Employee Benefits (Cont’d)
EEER (&)

(iii) Remeasurements arising from defined benefit retirement plans are recognised in other comprehensive income and
reflected immediately in retained earnings. Remeasurements comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan
assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability (asset)) and any change in the
effect of the asset ceiling (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability (asset)).
REGNRITEELEZEFIESNHMZAREAER  LHFAMREBIARR - EFTEESHBEER - 5

BEENER(TEEEEEFAERAARE EEANEIESR) REELRNIMNE (TEEEEEREATERE
MNEE EEANWFAELHE) -

(iv) Termination benefits are recognised when, and only when, the Group demonstrably commits itself to terminate
employment or to provide benefits as a result of voluntary redundancy by having a detailed formal plan which is without
realistic possibility of withdrawal.

BRRIHERS TEZM%*%EIE% ERBERHE GIERERENEE M)  LHPRRTELKLEESHARE
QEEE%&D-I-iJWH\-U:{EEIZIM ﬂztﬂ%ﬁﬂﬂ‘lﬁgw%\ °

Provisions and Contingent Liabilities
EERIEEE

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or amount when the Group or the Council has a legal or constructive

obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the

obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is material, provisions are stated at the present

value of the expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

HESEBIBIEENCBRENSHAELIEREEERY  MBTZEBRANSEIZERBERENERING » EAE

%ﬂ%‘?ﬁﬁﬁgﬂ%  AEBESFRZFERBETENEGETHRER NREYREEEEXR  ARBEHAETEEIEXEH
VIRMEETSIZEH -

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

BB KBERRN éiﬁ?l»ﬁﬂ’rj EMRIE  IREEZHERAEFEELIENMGT  FEEZZBRE/IBEAE  BR
WEBEERIMROATREMEREARS c MRAKBNERERTFERIZRAAREURERETHEREFEHES > TR
BAYBAE  BRNEEERIMNRA AT EMBEERIRRI o
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(m)

20

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
ETEGEER (&

Income Recognition
WA TR

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group or the Council and the income and expenditure, if applicable, can be measured reliably, income
is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income as follows:

WEDZREWRERREZAABEITEZ - MRLERRTESRASTEESIRIG - MBAFIRA (MNER) XM %
HER  WAESRETIEEEZHRRRAER

(i) Government Subventions

B E

Government subventions consist of recurrent subventions, non-recurrent subventions and other specific grants
received from the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (the Government). Recurrent
subventions are recognised as income in the statement of comprehensive income when there is reasonable assurance
that the Group or the Council will comply with the conditions attaching to them and that the subventions will be
received. Non-recurrent subventions are recognised as income to the extent of the related expenditures incurred during
the year.

BB EEREREEEFINTHRBUN (BHEBUN) WEEHY - kKERDRAEMSERRER - EAUEE
BEARBIABIBEETERANTRERSSRIKCEFYSRERE  CELBDEESELEREREIBK
A EREMPEUFRABENETRAILSHEARBIRBBA -

Subventions and grants earmarked for capital expenditure purpose are initially accounted for as deferred income (see
Note 2(n)) and are subsequently recognised as income over the useful life of the related assets when the assets are
put into use, to the extent of the related depreciation expenses incurred for that period.
EEARERIEN@EDEREBERVESEWIIAREL R F2HEMTE2n)  HEAEZEEREARK > #heRk
BAESREBEEECTRAFHRUAZSBENEBTESHSBEARBEIRBBA -

Other specific grants without a condition for refund of any unspent balances are recognised as income in the statement
of comprehensive income when received, while for those specific grants that contain a condition for refund of any
unspent balances are recognised as income to the extent of the related expenditures incurred during the year.
REMFHERENBSEAREBN  BERURREZARER LEIB/WA - BLEERERENSEABRRR
SUFABRENEERIEBEARREREIBUEA

(i) Tuition Fees and Training Charges
BERREER

Tuitions fees and training charges are recognised as income on an accrual basis over the duration of the courses and
unearned fees and charges are treated as receipts in advance.
BERARERASRRABREERFBUETHAR  FAHEERKBARIRFEARFIE -

(iii) Interest Income

FEWA

Interest income from bank deposits is recognised as it accrues using the effective interest method.

RITEFAEREWARNAERRREFE LR o
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(m)

(n)

(0)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
EEGEEER (8

Income Recognition (Cont’d)
WA ()

(iv) Donations
BR

Donations are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income when the Group or the Council becomes entitled
to the donations and it is probable that they will be received, which is generally upon receipt of cash.

SNRIBBI R A MBI B A RN R WEGRIRIBEIE - BERUEBRSRAEZHERER LRRBBWA -

(v) Hire of Accommodation/Facilities from Operating Leases

REBENES RitZHERA

Rental income receivable under operating leases is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income in equal
instalments over the accounting periods covered by the lease term.
REAENRBHS WA THERMRENSTHBENR  UEBELHRERER

(vi) Services Income

BRAEULA

Services income is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income when the related services are rendered.

BBBAEEERFRERETZEREREI[RA -

Deferred Income
IEE W s

Government subventions earmarked for specific purposes are initially recorded as deferred income which is subsequently
recognised as revenue to the extent of the related expenditure or depreciation expenses charged to related assets are
incurred.

RERBNBRAEBENRERIADRELRE  ERUABERXIAREENTEHSBERMRBRA/WA -

Operating Lease Expenses
ReEHERH

Where the Group or the Council has the use of assets held under operating leases which do not transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership to the Group or the Council, payments made under the leases are charged to the statement
of comprehensive income in equal instalments over the accounting periods covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased asset. Lease incentives
received are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals are charged to statement of comprehensive income in the accounting period in which they are
incurred.

AHBIBIEEEBLELHE (REHEENEEHENEY  REBERIy EEEEGE 2 B K IREZE T AKS
XBHE)EAEE  ARFERHELEECELFEEAEARRMEZS &% [AUSREEEHFEENIR - £HE
FOREMETEBR  USBEE2ERBERNG - FENHEEEE  DEAERFHENREN—B2  E2EHRERE
RoREHENHEEEZETHHE  E2HKERPER -
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(p)

(a)

22

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
EEGEER (8

Borrowing Costs
IER= 1%

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset which necessarily takes
a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

Wig - EESEEEE (A E—BRRNEHREZEEHRTARS TUHENEE) IEENEEBLZBERRIIFTAZSE
BEZHAR -HBENTIREEZBEERAZE -

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the asset is
being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use or
sale are in progress. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when substantially all the activities necessary
to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.

WEEERBAX BERARETREAZRS TUHENEERMENTE  EELNEERLFSHRASEREENT
DA BHEEEARBLIETRAAEREETTARSHEER  NEEIFLEZBEEXNTEEL -

Related Parties
BRES

(i) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is related to the Group if that person:

BT AT » IZALTRERERNIRR LS EBEHE

(a) has control or joint control over the Group;

S L E S AN AR

(b) has significant influence over the Group; or

HAKRBEEASLE '

(c) is a member of the key management personnel of the Group.

AAKBNEIEEEAS -
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Bt %5 ¥R & MY 5E

(a)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
EEETER (R)

x

Related Parties (Cont’'d)

BES (F)

(i)

An entity is related to the Group if any of the foIIowing conditions applies:

M E THMEE—IER M - BB REA KB EREE

(@)

The entity and the Group are members of the same group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiary is related to the others).

ZEREAKEBE —#HEB KA (AIZFLF - WEBRARAKRERMKE A BRI EEEE

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of
a group of which the other entity is a member).

R-ERAS ERNBELTNSLELX(FE ERAREQAZMBETHEZHE RTINS ERSE) -

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

MEERIRE -—E=N28Eh% -

One entity isa joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

BAF=FER ALY ME—EBERAFE=FEEHE LT -

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group.

ZERAIHBNEI KB EEERIESENMRVBEBEEAETE -

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (i).

ZERZ () RAMA T EHISR L EES

A person identified in (i)(a) has significant influence over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

R()a) Bt ATHEREEAFEINBZER (FZERF QAR TEEEAE -

The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part, provides key management personnel services to the
Group.

ZERIEBEANTAAL A EBREBREERY

Close members of the family of a person are those family members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by,
that person in their dealings with the entity.

BERATHREARKEREHEERETRE N  RPTRFEZENA LRI ZERIATHENRERS -
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24

GOVERNMENT SUBVENTIONS
BFEE
Consolidated
me
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
Recurrent Subventions KEMYE 2,528,065 2,419,972
Non-recurrent Subventions IRERPE
— Capital Works Reserve Fund - IREREES
Major Capital Projects REEETRE 27,692 64,738
Minor Building Projects NIRRT 105,280 112,000
Non-recurrent Subventions IRERBE
— Capital Accounts -ZF%RE
Major Capital ltems REZERIER 14,077 6,239
Plant, Vehicles and Equipment R -~ B &REE 32,538 32,538
Capital Items for Skills Centres FReE R OERIER 3,966 6,046
Grants from Government Agencies BT HE B 1 R 151,645 139,584
Matching Grants (Note 3(a)) Bl¥ B € (FfisE 3(a)) 2,709 7,708
Other Capital Projects Fund * Hth@BRIEES* 35,926 (27,402)
Interest Subsidy on Loan from Government BRER 2R 228, 19,913 8,984
2,921,811 2,770,407
The Council
B3I E
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
Recurrent Subventions KE@E 2,528,038 2,417,921
Non-recurrent Subventions ERERHYE
— Capital Works Reserve Fund -ERIEMFEES
Major Capital Projects REZERTRE 27,692 64,738
Minor Building Projects NRBR TR 105,280 112,000
Non-recurrent Subventions ERERPE
— Capital Accounts -#ERRA
Major Capital ltems REVZERIEE 14,077 6,239
Plant, Vehicles and Equipment R - B KRRE 32,538 32,538
Capital Items for Skills Centres FeeRREROERIER 3,966 6,046
Grants from Government Agencies BT HB R 145,912 139,380
Matching Grants (Note 3(a)) Bi¥ B & (st 3(a)) 2,709 7,708
Other Capital Projects Fund * HhZRTREES * 35,926 (27,402)
Interest Subsidy on Loan from Government BRER 2R 2EE, 19,913 8,984
2,916,051 2,768,152
* Included in the balance are HK$198 million (2015: HK$212 million) being depreciation of capital expenditure during the year which

is released from deferred income and HK$162 million (2015: HK$239 million) being capital expenditure recognised as deferred

income (see Note 20).

AR AREETERS B 1(59,8008 ST (20155 © B 2{51,2008 7T
& B 283,900 B 7) WE AR B EBABIELWE (B2 20)
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(a)

GOVERNMENT SUBVENTIONS (Cont’d)

KB (48)
Matching Grants
EBH#HE
The matching grants comprise:
BB EE:
Consolidated and the Council
mERBIE
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
Pilot Mainland Experience Scheme for Post-secondary E_b 234tk ith B2 Eh S5 E =t 2 2,709 4,186
Students (Note 3(a)(i)) (B 3(a)(i))
Sixth Matching Grant Scheme (Note 3(a)(ii)) FEREOE S ETE - 3,522
(B E 3(a)(ii))
2,709 7,708
(i) Pilot Mainland Experience Scheme for Post-secondary Students (the Scheme)

E 2L AR LSS 8 (HETE)

A Pilot Mainland Experience Scheme for Post-secondary Students was launched from the 2011/12 academic year to
subsidise post-secondary students participating in short-term internship or learning programmes in Mainland China
on a matching basis. The Government matching grants and the related donations are separately disclosed below in
compliance with the requirement of the Scheme.

12011/12 8248 - BAFRTOE EEERHEBLEHE  URHFEHE LELNhERN S NEHET R
SBRTH - ARHEY S REMENEREBRRETESINHEEERSFAINRRMBRRA

The portion of the grants received which has not been utilised was recorded as government subventions under deferred
income. The grants are recognised as income upon utilisation to the extent of the amount of related expenditures
actually incurred. During the financial year 2015-16, HK$2,709,000 (2014-15: HK$4,186,000) was recognised as the
grants income and HK$10,944,000 (2014-15: HK$13,519,000) was included in deferred income.
BoeWzBRmMERERAIIARBEERSE 2 THENHEE - ZBRAEABUERBENEEXHESEAR
BRAWA - 2015-16 W EEER THWKRA LB 270.98 7T (201415 F : B¥ 4186 Bir) » MAE¥ 1,094.4
Bt (2014-15%F : B%1,351.987) BB A BIELUE o
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3. GOVERNMENT SUBVENTIONS (Cont'd)
BUFHEBhE ()

(a) Matching Grants (Cont’d)
EBH#HBE (&)
(i) Pilot Mainland Experience Scheme for Post-secondary Students (the Scheme) (Cont’d)
B 24 R Rt ETE (HBa) (&)

Consolidated

mae
Matching Matched
Grants Donations
[iNESE kR [iREEEEES
HK$'000 HK$’000
Balance as at 1 April 2014 2014 4 B 1 B2 &8k 9,727 2,236
Income g

Grants Received/Matched Donations [ 1l R =E 7,841 7,841
Interest Income FEWA 137 33
7,978 7,874

Expenditure met from Grants/Donations KRFEEE BRATSA

WERE A

Students Exchange Activities B4R RED 4,159 -
Students Training Activities BAIISHEH 1 -
Students Study Programmes BHERTE 26 -
Scholarships and Prizes RBERES - 6,261
Other Student Development Activities Hith B L 2 RITE - 236
Other Expenses Hib&EA - 405
4,186 6,902
Balance as at 31 March 2015 2015 ¥ 3 A 31 B 24tk 13,519 3,208
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3. GOVERNMENT SUBVENTIONS (Cont'd)
KB E (48)

(a) Matching Grants (Cont’d)
BB & ()

()] Pilot Mainland Experience Scheme for Post-secondary Students (the Scheme) (Cont’d)
E S84 RMERLEHE (FHEE) (&)

Consolidated

2 A
b2 =]
Matching Matched
Grants Donations
[iNESEG [iEEE=EN
HK$'000 HK$’000
Balance as at 1 April 2015 2015%F 4 B 1 Az 458k 13,519 3,208
Income &

Grants Received/Matched Donations BB BEEIER - =
Interest Income FIE WA 134 17
134 17

Expenditure met from Grants/Donations REMmBE BRATEAS

BRI E H

Students Exchange Activities BAEMNES 2,533 -
Students Study Programmes BEBETE 61 -
Students Industrial Attachments BAETHEE 58 -
Students Training Activities BAIJISES 35 =
Students Competitions BALLE 22 =
Scholarships and Prizes BEBERRES - 1,459
Other Student Development Activities HihEB A RREITE - 24
Other Expenses HiwEH - 3
2,709 1,486
Balance as at 31 March 2016 2016 ¥ 3 A 31 Az &tk 10,944 1,739
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt %5 ¥ & MY 5E

3. GOVERNMENT SUBVENTIONS (Cont'd)
BUiTHEBhE ()

(a) Matching Grants (Cont’d)
EHHEBE (&)

(i) Pilot Mainland Experience Scheme for Post-secondary Students (the Scheme) (Cont’d)
B S84 RMERLEE (BEE) (E)

The Council
B3R
Matching Matched
Grants Donations
[iNESE kR [iREEEEES
HK$'000 HK$’000
Balance as at 1 April 2014 2014 4 B 1 B2 &8k 9,727 2,000
Income g

Grants Received/Matched Donations [ 1l R = 7,841 7,452
Interest Income FE YA 137 33
7,978 7,485

Expenditure met from Grants/Donations KRFEEE BT

WERE A

Students Exchange Activities B4R RED 4,159 -
Students Training Activities BAIISHEH 1 -
Students Study Programmes BHERTTE 26 -
Scholarships and Prizes RBERES - 6,193
Other Student Development Activities Hith B L 2 RITE - 16
Other Expenses Hib&EA - 375
4,186 6,584
Balance as at 31 March 2015 2015F 3 A 31 B 24tk 13,519 2,901
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt %5 ¥R & M 5E

(a)

GOVERNMENT SUBVENTIONS (Cont’d)
KB E (48)

Matching Grants (Cont’d)
BB & ()

(i)

(i)

Pilot Mainland Experience Scheme for Post-secondary Students (the Scheme) (Cont’d)
E S84 RMERLEHE (FEE) (&)

The Council
BIE
Matching Matched
Grants Donations
[Nk [iE-EE=EAN
HK$'000 HK$’000
Balance as at 1 April 2015 2015%F 4 B 1 Az 458k 13,519 2,901
Income &

Grants Received/Matched Donations BB BEEIER - =
Interest Income FIEUWA 134 17
134 17

Expenditure met from Grants/Donations RS IBRATRAS

HIEREE H

Students Exchange Activities BAEMNEH 2,533 -
Students Study Programmes BLERTE 61 -
Students Industrial Attachments BAETHEE 58 -
Students Training Activities BAIJISES 35 =
Students Competitions BALLE 22 =
Scholarships and Prizes BBERES - 1,368
Other Student Development Activities HihEB A RRIEE - 6
Other Expenses HibE A - 3
2,709 1,377
Balance as at 31 March 2016 2016 ¥ 3 A 31 Az &tk 10,944 1,541

Sixth Matching Grant Scheme
FRWEH & T E

A 6th Matching Grant Scheme was launched from the 2012/13 academic year and covers both operations funded by
the Education Bureau (EDB) and self-financing operations of the Council on a matching basis. The private donations
and government matching grants are segregated in respect of EDB funded and self-financing operations in compliance
with the requirement of the Scheme.

H2012/1328F e » BFHTHE A WEHHDEHE  URHEEXRERINIEHHEREYRBELENIE - FA
ABREB RS #HBSRBETENEEAEZR  UHEREWEEFAKBELEF NS BIENUBHRERR -
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Bt %5 ¥ & MY 5E

(a)

30

Matching Grants (Cont’d)
BHHEBE (&)

GOVERNMENT SUBVENTIONS (Cont'd)
BUFHEBhE ()

Sixth Matching Grant Scheme (Cont’d)

BRWMEHHB S8 (F)

Balance as at 1 April 2014

Transfer between Operations
upon Actual Usage of Grants/Donations

Income

Grants Received/Matched Donations

Interest Income

Expenditure met from Grants/Donations

Teaching and Research Enhancement
Intemationalisation and Student

Exchange Activities
Scholarships and Prizes
Bursaries
Student Development
Capital Projects
Others

Balance as at 31 March 2015

Expenditure by Level of Study

Sub-degree Operations
Degree and Above

Vocational Training Council 5% 3|4k 5

0144125

RE#S/ B
ERERERNER

i
ElzRle/REE
RISHA

Ehmpe/ B3
FxNBREER
YEASRNZ
BREREERRED

REcRRe
hes
SLER
BRER
A

015F3A31 BeER

Xit (UEBEEDE)
HS1RE
ELgiLRE

Consolidated

nv‘\é

EDB-fun;jed Operatiqn Self—finqncing Opeyation Total

BERENEERT HEEERT it
Matching Matched Matching Matched Matching Matched
Grants Donations Grants Donations Grants Donations
Rappe RgER  Roppe REER  EHEHS REEH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
36,798 20,441 20,124 14,968 56,922 35,409
739 739 (739) (739) - -
37,537 21,180 19,385 14,229 56,922 35,409
2,104 2,316 1,418 1,502 3522 3818
536 217 261 186 797 463
2,640 2,593 1,679 1,688 4,319 4,281
747 - 831 - 1,578 -
4 3,532 199 1,609 203 5141
N/A - VA - VA -
520 942 435 546 955 1,488
N/A 250 - - N/A 250
117 2,592 224 2,184 RZAN 4776
1,388 7,316 1,689 4,339 3,017 11,655
38,789 16,457 19,375 11,578 58,164 28,035
1,388 7,316 612 3,768 2,000 11,084
- - 1,077 571 1,077 571
1,388 7316 1,689 4,339 3,017 11,655




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt %5 ¥R & MY SE

(a)

GOVERNMENT SUBVENTIONS (Cont’d)

EATEBNE (%)

Matching Grants (Cont’d)
BB & ()

(i) Sixth Matching Grant Scheme (Cont’d)

BRWMEHHE S (F)

Consolidated

&4
EDB-funded Operation Selffinancing Operation Total
HEREDEER BEEERA it
Matching Matched Matching Matched Matching Matched
Grants Donations Grants Donations Grants Donations
RHfEe REER RHfEe REER  Eofpe REREN
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Balance as at 1 April 2015 015F4 A1 2ER 38,789 16,457 19375 11578 58,164 28,035
Transfer between Operations upon Actual ~~ BEBHS /BHZ
Usage of Grants/Donations ERFERERmER 56 60 (56) (60) - -
38,845 16,517 19,319 11,518 58,164 28,035
Income i
Grants Received (Note 3(a)(i(1)) ghzwbe
(3T @) 1)) - - - - - -
Interest Income FMEMA 425 162 210 112 635 274
425 162 210 112 635 274
Expenditure met from Grants/Donations & FiBnS /B3
FxfEEER
Teaching and Research Enhancement UEHERHE - - - - - -
Interationalisation and Student AR REERTED
Exchange Activities 1,825 - 2374 - 4199 -
Scholarships and Prizes RESRRE - 1538 - 1,009 - 2547
Bursaries S N/A - N/A - N/A -
Student Development BIER 197 204 142 170 339 394
Capital Projects (Note 3(a)(i)(2)) BER (W 3(ai2) N/A (19) - - - (19)
Others =0 200 905 113 1,163 313 2,068
2,022 2,648 2,629 2,342 4,851 4,990
Balance as at 31 March 2016 2016 F 3B 31 Akt 37,048 14,031 16,900 9,288 53,948 23319
Expenditure by Level of Study Tt (AEEREDE)
Sub-degree Operations AELRE 2,022 2,648 1,626 2,331 3848 4979
Degree and Above Bl LEE - - 1,003 1 1,003 1
2022 2,648 2,629 2,342 4,851 4,990
(1) The 6th Matching Grant Scheme covered donations from 1 August 2012 to 31 July 2014 which had been fully matched and

received in 2014/15. There was no grant received in 2015/16.
ERMEH ST BIRE 20128 A1 HE 201457 A 31 RMHBK » WEH 2014/ 15 B F R EH KKK ° 2015/16
BERIZBRHEERA ©

Being adjustment relating to improvement works capitalised based on contractors’ claimed values of which was adjusted
upon finalisation of contract values.
NEERFE -

WIRBAPREERNIREBREMNBELIR  CRELKSE
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(a)

32

Matching Grants (Cont’d)
BHHEBE (&)

GOVERNMENT SUBVENTIONS (Cont'd)
BUFHEBhE ()

Sixth Matching Grant Scheme (Cont’d)

BRWMEHHB S8 (F)

Balance as at 1 April 2014

Transfer between Operations upon Actual

Usage of Grants/Donations
Transfer to Subsidiary

Income
Grants Received/Matched Donations
Interest Income

Expenditure met from Grants/Donations

Teaching and Research Enhancement

Intemnationalisation and Student
Exchange Activities

Scholarships and Prizes

Bursaries

Student Development

Capital Projects

Others

Balance as at 31 March 2015

Expenditure by Level of Study
Sub-degree Operations
Degree and Above

Vocational Training Council 5% 3|4k 5

NV14F4R 125

REmpE/ B
ERERERMES
BRENELT

i
BlzHbE/REEH
RISHA

Bamne/ B
R NEEER
YEHERIE
BRI REERRED

REsRRe
hes
BLER
ECE!
0

015F3A31 BeER

Xit (UEBEEDE)
Hg1RE
By LRE

The Council

EDB-funded Operation Selffinancing Operation Total
HEREYEERL BEEER ait
Matching Matched Matching Matched Matching Matched
Grants Donations Grants Donations Grants Donations
Rtitme REES  Eofhe REER  EHEye REER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
36,798 20,441 20,124 14,882 56,922 35,323
739 739 (739) (739) - -
- - (3,273) - (3,273) -
37,537 21,180 16,112 14,143 53,649 35,323
2,104 2,316 1,418 1,010 3522 3,326
536 217 261 182 797 459
2,640 2,593 1,679 1,192 4,319 3,785
747 - 106 - 853 -
4 3,532 199 1,338 203 4,810
N/A - N/A - N/A -
520 942 307 546 827 1,488
N/A 250 - - N/A 250
117 2,592 - 1,884 117 4,476
1,388 7,316 612 3,768 2,000 11,084
38,789 16457 17179 11,567 55,968 28,024
1,388 7316 612 3,768 2,000 11,084
1,388 7,316 612 3,768 2,000 11,084




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt %5 ¥R & MY SE

3. GOVERNMENT SUBVENTIONS (Cont’d)
KB (&)

(a) Matching Grants (Cont’d)
EHHEE (&)

(i) Sixth Matching Grant Scheme (Cont’d)
FRWEH BT E (&)

The Council
Bl
EDB-funded Operation Selffinancing Operation Total
YEREYEERS BEEERT At
Matching Matched Matching Matched Matching Matched
Grants Donations Grants Donations Grants Donations
RHhe REER gk [ [splk TR EE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Balance as at 1 April 2015 0154 A1 AZER 38,789 16,457 17479 11,567 55,968 28,024
Transfer between Operations upon Actual ~ RiEEENS /1852
Usage of Grants/Donations ERERERNER 56 60 (56) (60) - -
Transfer to Subsidiary ERZHELT - - (2452) - (2,15) -
38,845 16,517 14,971 11507 53816 28,024
Income W&
Grants Recelved (Note 3(al(ii(L) [SL 1
(HIEE 3(a)in(a)) - - - - - -
Interest Income HEWA 425 162 20 12 635 274
425 162 210 112 635 274
Expenditure met from Grants/Donations & eiEIS /B85
FxfREER
Teaching and Research Enhancement YEHERHR - - - - - -
Intemationalisation and Student BB REERTED
Exchange Activities 1825 - 1,480 - 3,305 -
Scholarships and Prizes RESRES - 1,538 - 1,009 - 2,547
Bursaries R N/A - N/A - N/A -
Student Development SRR 197 204 113 169 310 393
Capital Projects (Note 3(a)(ii(2) BEEA (3t 3(a)i2) N/A (19) - - - (19)
Others 2 200 905 33 1153 233 2,058
2222 2,648 1,626 2331 3848 4979
Balance as at 31 March 2016 2016F 3831 ALt 37,048 14,031 13,555 9,288 50,603 23,319
Expenditure by Level of Study Tt (AEEREDE)
Sub-degree Operations BELRE 2222 2,648 1,626 2331 3848 4979
Degree and Above Bl LEE - - - - - -
2222 2648 1626 2331 3848 4979

(1) The 6th Matching Grant Scheme covered donations from 1 August 2012 to 31 July 2014 which had been fully matched and
received in 2014/15. There was no grant received in 2015/16.
EAMEEHM ST ERE 201258818 E2014F 7A31BWIER > W EFE2014/15B F R A B E R UFK ©
2015/16 B FRMZ BRI ESUWA

(2) Being adjustment relating to improvement works capitalised based on contractors’ claimed values of which was adjusted
upon finalisation of contract values.

BTREAPHERNIREERENENAEZIRE  EERERSNEERTE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt %5 ¥ & MY 5E

4.  TUITION FEES AND TRAINING CHARGES
BENRIZER

Government-funded Programmes
Tuition Fees
Training Charges

Non Government-funded Programmes
Tuition Fees
Training Charges

Government-funded Programmes
Tuition Fees
Training Charges

Non Government-funded Programmes
Tuition Fees
Training Charges

5.  DONATIONS
=B

Designated to Student Development Foundation
Capital Projects

Scholarships and Prizes

Other Student Activities

34  Vocational Training Council B2 3|4k 5

AT B
2%
BEEm

FIH AR
2%

EYES- 4

B R
2
BREA

S B ATE BRE
2
BREA

BLruaRES
ZFRIEH
RESNRE

HtBLE RS

Consolidated

2 A
w3

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
816,132 786,049

37,545 32,651
868,510 822,510
48,412 53,424
1,770,599 1,694,634
The Council
)]

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
816,195 785,944

37,545 32,682
36,217 38,008
48,478 53,441
938,435 910,075
Consolidated
)

2016 2015

HK$’000 HK$’'000

10,195 8,329
- 5,405
18,449 19,377
437 5,941
29,081 39,052




DONATIONS (Cont’d)
B (57)

Designated to Student Development Foundation

Capital Projects
Scholarships and Prizes
Other Student Activities

OTHER INCOME
Hithig A

Application and Sundry Fees
Examination and Trade Test Fees
Sales of Goods

Hire of Accommodation/Facilities
Services Income

Miscellaneous Income

Application and Sundry Fees
Examination and Trade Test Fees
Sales of Goods

Hire of Accommodation/Facilities
Services Income

Miscellaneous Income

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt %5 ¥R & MY SE

BLruRRES
ZIEE

REGNRE
HttEE RS

RRERANEERE
ZHARKEERERLE
HESERWA
BERiEHEEWA
ARFEULA

HpA

RAEERANEENE
ZR R RR KW E
HEEmUWA
BE/RiEEEWA
ARAEULA

HApgA

The Council
BAE

2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$’000
10,195 8,329
- 5,405
18,372 19,304
4,163 5,055
32,730 38,093

Consolidated

—PAN
wh R

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
24,185 25,741
39,749 36,562
18,052 17,662
10,689 14,685
26,694 22,443
16,303 13,521
135,672 130,614

The Council

IS

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’'000
20,795 22,377
39,5689 36,406
18,055 17,658
75,744 74,603
158,402 167,066
14,135 13,949
326,720 332,059
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STAFF EXPENSES
BIM%

Salaries and Other Benefits
Contributions to Retirement Schemes

Salaries and Other Benefits
Contributions to Retirement Schemes

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt %5 ¥ & MY 5E

e R EMER
RRET B

& R HAER
RARET B

SURPLUS AND TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR

KAEERFFIEENmEEE

Surplus is arrived at after charging:

BEREHIBRUTIEE ¢

Interest Expense (Note 19)

Depreciation

Rental Expenses

Auditor’s Remuneration

Net Foreign Exchange Gain

Gain on Disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment

Interest Expense (Note 19)

Depreciation

Rental Expenses

Auditor’s Remuneration

Net Foreign Exchange Loss

Gain on Disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment

Vocational Training Council B2 3|4k 5

B (MFE19)

e

HE R

ZEE N

SN IR 2
HEMSE - BBERRE 2z WS

FEZH (FisE19)

e

HEXH

ZEEME &

HNEE R E R

HENZE  HBRREREZNE

Consolidated

=e
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$’000
3,094,511 2,951,061
216,351 213,956
3,310,862 3,165,017
The Council
B

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
2,612,800 2,472,919
209,082 207,848
2,821,882 2,680,767

Consolidated

)
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
19,913 8,984
262,300 278,657
50,938 51,975
736 732
(2,428) (93)
(156) (58)
The Council
BAI =

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
19,913 8,984
257,879 272,897
49,831 51,107
544 516

119 279
(160) (58)




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt %5 ¥R & M 5E

10.

TAXATION
M8

The Council and its subsidiaries are exempted from Hong Kong Profits Tax by virtue of Section 88 of the Inland Revenue
Ordinance.

RIBEBHBIRGIFE 881K BAIRBRAWBLAREHRRBMNEBRIER -

RESERVES
EEE
Consolidated and the Council
meakBIE
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$’'000
Balance at the Beginning of the Financial Year B E F &R 264,499 266,006
Amount Transferred to Specific and Other AEEEZBERAR
Funds During the Year (Note 11) REMES (MEE11) (127,122) (254,783)
Surplus Transferred from Statement of BEREEWRRRMVAER
Comprehensive Income 192,909 253,276
Balance at the End of the Financial Year BFEF AR 330,286 264,499

Reserves are any savings from the recurrent government subventions for activities (other than those in respect of the Shine
Skills Centres) arising from any reasons other than a curtailment or cessation of activity in the Annual Plan, a surplus in tuition
fee income where the fee levels are approved by the Government and which is required to be returned to the Government, or
reduction in remuneration for its staff as a direct consequence of changes in the civil service. The level of reserves shall not, at
any one point in time, exceed 15% of its annual recurrent subvention in the financial year. Amount in excess of the limit should
be returned to the Government in the following financial year.

FEETREILFEEHBASELEH S (REFREZERPORKRN) MEMNREHE (HR2FITIFEFEME TFEBEBUES
ERMEENREHE RRAREZZ2ERANBBEMXFERERANEEIETEERALAKEE ARG EE
FIR D WEEERR) - TREEARKE  RESNWEFEI T SEEBRIBEFELEHYEMN 15%  BEFIEEE T — @
HEERETHFN -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt %5 ¥ & MY 5E

11.

(a)

38

SPECIFIC AND OTHER FUNDS
BERGBRAMES

Fund Balances

BESHERR

Non-recurrent Subventions (Note 2(m)(i))
- Capital Works Reserve Fund

Non-recurrent Subventions (Note 2(m)(i))
- Capital Accounts

Other Capital Projects Fund

Projects Funded by Government Agencies

Projects Funded by Reserves

Selffinancing Activities

Donations

Other Specific Funds

Non-recurrent Subventions (Note 2(m)(i))
- Capital Works Reserve Fund

Non-recurrent Subventions (Note 2(m)(i))
- Capital Accounts

Other Capital Projects Fund

Projects Funded by Government Agencies

Projects Funded by Reserves

Self-financing Activities

Donations

Other Specific Funds

Vocational Training Council B2 3|4k 5

FEEHBE (HEE2m))

-BRIEMHEES

FEEHBE (HEE2m))

—ERRE
HitgRERES
BB EEIRE
fEEEEBER
HEBEER
B/

HitRERRES

FEERBIE (FIEE2m)()

-ERIRMEES

FEERBIE (KR 2m)()

—ZRHRE
HitERERES
HFTHBERRE
fEfEEEBER
BEBEEE
B/

HitSEREES

Consolidated

)
Transfer from/
(to) Statement of Inter-Fund
Balance asat ~ Comprehensive Transfers Balance as at
1.4.2014 Income (Note 10) 31.3.2015
20145 #y /(%) NEPE s 2015
4R1B8& 2ERER (ffEE10)  3B3LALH
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
742,334 36,085 - 778,419
64,159 (6,119) 3,145 61,185
818,327 (84,496) 274,021 1,007,852
1,893,797 175,384 (3,145) 2,066,036
70,597 11,171 - 81,768
11,866 19,090 (19,238) 11,718
3,601,080 151,115 254,783 4,006,978
Consolidated
)
Transfer from/
(to) Statement of Inter-Fund
Balance as at Comprehensive Transfers Balance as at
1.4.2015 Income (Note 10) 31.3.2016
2015 % #8/(2) RBELER 2016
4R 1 BES 2ENER (K&t 10) 3A31A&H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
- (2,071) - (2,071)
778,419 470,865 - 1,249,284
61,185 (6,350) 3,056 57,891
1,007,852 (303,008) 141,880 846,724
2,066,036 (20,047) (3,056) 2,042,933
81,768 5,458 - 87,226
11,718 14,504 (14,758) 11,464
4,006,978 159,351 127,122 4,293,451




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt %5 ¥R & M 5E

11.

(a)

SPECIFIC AND OTHER FUNDS (Cont’d)

BERGRMEMES (48)

Fund Balances (Cont’d)
B4 (&)

Non-recurrent Subventions (Note 2(m)(i))
- Capital Works Reserve Fund

Non-recurrent Subventions (Note 2(m)(i))
- Capital Accounts

Other Capital Projects Fund

Projects Funded by Government Agencies

Projects Funded by Reserves

Selffinancing Activities

Donations

Other Specific Funds

Non-recurrent Subventions (Note 2(m)(i))
- Capital Works Reserve Fund

Non-recurrent Subventions (Note 2(m)(i))
- Capital Accounts

Other Capital Projects Fund

Projects Funded by Government Agencies

Projects Funded by Reserves

Selffinancing Activities

Donations

Other Specific Funds

FEEFBE (HEE2m)i)

-ERIEFEES

FEEFBE (HEE2m)i)

—ERIRE
HitRaRES
BB EBER
fREEEBER
HERERE
E N
HitERBES

FEERBE (HEE2m)i)

-ERIEREES

FEERBE (HEE2m)i)

—ZRHE
HitZR R ES
HTHBERR R
RETEEIRR
BEBEER
B

HitEREES

The Council
B3R
Transfer from/
(to) Statement of Inter-Fund
Balance asat ~ Comprehensive Transfers Balance as at
1.4.2014 Income (Note 10) 31.3.2015
20145 #g/(%) AL E 2015 %
4R 1RER PHEKEE (KEE10)  3A3LAKH
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
742,334 36,085 - 778,419
64,159 (6,119) 3,145 61,185
818,327 (84,496) 274,021 1,007,852
1,496,668 112,859 (3,145) 1,606,382
70,597 11,171 - 81,768
11,866 19,090 (19,238) 11,718
3,203,951 88,590 254,783 3,547,324
The Council
BAR
Transfer from/
(to) Statement of Inter-Fund
Balance as at Comprehensive Transfers Balance as at
1.4.2015 Income (Note 10) 31.3.2016
2015 % gg/(®) RHBESER 2016
4B 1RER 2EWER (FtzE10) 3A3L B4
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
- (2,071) - (2,071)
778,419 470,865 - 1,249,284
61,185 (6,350) 3,056 57,891
1,007,852 (303,008) 141,880 846,724
1,606,382 (108,115) (3,056) 1,495,211
81,768 5,458 - 87,226
11,718 14,504 (14,758) 11,464
3,547,324 71,283 127,122 3,745,729
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11.

(b)

40

SPECIFIC AND OTHER FUNDS (Cont'd)
BERGBRAMER (B)

Nature and Purpose of Specific and Other Funds

BRERBRRAMES MEREN

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

Non-recurrent Subventions

FEEEYE

The non-recurrent subventions are one-off funds approved by the Government earmarked for capital expenditure
purposes relating to building projects, capital projects and capital items.

FEEMPERBF —AMENER  ZRPSAEETFIRE ERIENERAEMNELRH -

Other Capital Projects Fund
Hih@ZRIEEES

Other capital projects fund represents the balance of net book value of property, plant and equipment that are financed
by various fundings.

Htt 2R B ES DX - #BERRBREFENGS  LEEERTRNESRRED -

Projects Funded by Government Agencies

BUSH#EEEE

In addition to the Government subventions, specific Government grants have been obtained to support the
development of specific education projects.

BRTBUFHEBIES  THERERARNBFBERUAXEREREHE ZBE -

Projects Funded by Reserves

EEEEER

Projects funded by reserves are projects financed by the Council’s reserves, which are savings from the recurrent
subventions (see Note 10).

RETERERARIIBNRESEDN  ZRBSREELED SN RELGE F2HME10) -

Selffinancing Activities
BEREIEA

Selffinancing activities fund represents accumulated surpluses generated from the self-financed programmes and
activities.

BEREIRENEHRREZT AR ERPREHNRER -

Donations

B

Donations fund is used for the purposes specified by the donors.

BRENESERBREEME TWARRKERL -

Other Specific Funds
HiiSERARES

Other specific funds are subsidies obtained from organisations other than Government bodies designated for specific
purposes.

HtBEMRES RHAFBUTHFINABERN  ZEESHANEEEEN -
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Bt %5 ¥R & MY SE

11.

(c)

SPECIFIC AND OTHER FUNDS (Cont'd)
BERBRAMES (B)

Capital Management
EXREE

The Group is a not-for-profit organisation aiming to provide vocational education and training in the region. The Group defines
capital as including reserves and specific and other funds. These funds, including inter-fund transfers, are managed in
accordance with the Group’s financial management policies and procedures and the relevant funding conditions, where
applicable. The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital is to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern and to maintain a strong financial base to support the development of the Group.

THBRIFRTKE  SERUHEANEEHEEI - AHBNELAERRBEEREEAZREMES - ELXETEER
HELEE EREBEIEBNMBREERX  BFREBESHMTHRE (MNER)REEN  c AEBEERELRE  FE
EEARRIMBHREEFENKER ) REFEEMNMHERUSZIFAEBNERE -

There has been no change in the Group’s capital management practices as compared to prior year. The Group is not subject
to any externally imposed capital requirement.

BREFELE  AHEBYRERBEAETENME - ABEFTETETAIMNELRRE -
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Bt 5 R & M sE

12.

42

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Y ERR b

Cost

At 1 April 2014

Additions

Capitalisation Adjustment
(Note 12(a))

Transfer to Buildings/Improvement
Works upon Completion of Projects

Disposals

At 31 March 2015

Accumulated Depreciation
At 1 April 2014

Charge for the Year
Written Back on Disposals

At 31 March 2015

Net Book Value
At 31 March 2015

Cost

At 1 April 2015

Additions

Capitalisation Adjustment
(Note 12(a))

Transfer to Buildings/Improvement
Works upon Completion of Projects

Disposals

At 31 March 2016

Accumulated Depreciation
At 1 April 2015

Charge for the Year
Written Back on Disposals

At 31 March 2016

Net Book Value
At 31 March 2016
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A
2014F481R
BE
ERLER

(M 12(a))
BT iE R ER
2&$/&%IE

2015%3A318

2itE
2014F4818
TEERE
HERDR

2015F 38318

RAFE
2015%3A318

A

20154810

BE

ERLER
(FrzE12(a))

BT iEE B
BT /HEIR
i3

201653 A 318

ZiHE
20154810
TEERE
HERDE

2016F3 A 318

RAFE
2016%3A318

Consolidated

Ga
Construction Improvement Furniture and Computer
Buildings in Progress Works Equipment Equipment Total
&7 HRIR HEIR CEVET R @5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
1,741,251 103,910 1,314,700 289,607 306,372 3,755,840
- 268,265 122,006 27,210 22,618 440,099
(151) - - - - (151)
1,853 (27,671) 25,818 - - -
- - (11,761) (11,450) (16,835) (40,046)
1,742,953 344,504 1,450,763 305,367 312,155 4,155,742
191,094 - 865,787 191,678 243,231 1,491,790
46,125 - 170,147 35,404 26,981 218,657
- - (11,761) (11,386) (16,817 (39,964)
237,219 - 1,024,173 215,696 253,395 1,730,483
1,505,734 344,504 426,590 89,671 58,760 2,425,259
Consolidated
&a
Construction Improvement Furniture and Computer
Buildings in Progress Works Equipment Equipment Total
BT ERIE HEIR CEYET EERE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
1,742,953 344,504 1,450,763 305,367 312,155 4,155,742
526,663 230,920 40,727 35,771 33212 867,293
- - (416) - (6) (422)
115,420 (115,420) - 5 - -
- - - (3,326) (11,652) (14,978)
2,385,036 460,004 1491074 337,812 333,709 5,007,635
237,219 - 1,024,173 215,696 253,395 1,730,483
53,310 - 147,981 32,140 28,869 262,300
- - - (3,217 (11,652) (14,869)
290,529 - 1,172,154 244,619 270,612 1977914
2,094,507 460,004 318,920 93,193 63,097 3,029,721




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt %5 ¥R & MY 5E

12.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont’d)
M  thas Rt (18)

Cost

At 1 April 2014

Additions

Capitalisation Adjustment
(Note 12(a))

Transfer to Buildings/Improvement
Works upon Completion of Projects

Disposals

At 31 March 2015

Accumulated Depreciation
At 1 April 2014

Charge for the Year
Written Back on Disposals

At 31 March 2015

Net Book Value
At 31 March 2015

A
014E481H
g
EXfR
(B3 12(a))
FERRIEEERE
BT/ MEIE
HE

201534318
ZihE
014F4F1H
REERE
HERER
2015530318

REFE
2015530318

The Council
BB
Campus
used by a
Subsidiary
(Note 12(h))
GEE! Construction Improvement ~ Fumniture and Computer
ERz6E Buildings in Progress Works Equipment Equipment Total
(W& 1200) L E kEIR BEIE  HARRE Sk fait
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
207,242 1,534,009 103,910 1,313,404 275,724 289,217 3,723,566
- - 268,265 120,725 27,548 20,543 437,081
- (151) - - - - (151)
- 1,853 (27,671) 25818 - - -
- - - (11,761) (674) (12,337) (24,772)
207,242 1,535,711 344,504 1,448,186 302,598 297,483 4,135,724
44,132 146,962 - 865,012 181,219 234,179 1,471,564
4,906 41,219 - 169,726 33,145 23,901 272,897
- - - (11,761) (641) (12,337) (24,739)
49,038 188,181 - 1,022,977 213,783 245,743 1,719,722
158,204 1,347,530 344,504 425,209 88,815 51,740 2,416,002
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12.

(a)

(b)

44

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont’d)

M ~ SRR (48)
The Council
BiR
Campus
used by a
Subsidiary
(Note 42(h))
WELT Construction ~ Improvement  Furniture and Computer
BRZzRE Buildings in Progress Works Equipment Equipment Total
(frzE12(0) B¥ fRIR HETR FARRE KRR st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Cost S
At 1 April 2015 2015F4 718 207,242 1535711 344,504 1448186 302,598 297,483 4,135,724
Additions e - 526,663 230,920 39,024 35,648 29,455 861,707
Transfer to Buildings/Improvement ~ BERRHERERE
Works upon Completion of Projects % /HETR - 115,420 (115,420) - - - -
Disposals e - - - - (3289) (14,505) (14,794)
At 31 March 2016 2016F 38318 207,242 2177,79% 460,004 1,487,207 334,957 315,433 4,982,637
Accumulated Depreciation ZitiE
At 1 April 2015 2015E471H 49,038 188,181 - 1,022,977 213,783 245,743 1,719,722
Charge for the Year KEERE 4,905 48 405 - 147,086 31,693 25,790 257,879
Written Back on Disposals HEREE - - - - (3,187) (14,505) (14,692)
At 31 March 2016 2016F3A31H 53,943 236,586 - 1,170,063 242,289 260,028 1,962,909
Net Book Value FEFE
At 31 March 2016 201637318 153,299 1941208 460,004 317144 92,668 55,405 3,019,728

Capitalisation Adjustments
ERAE

Capitalisation adjustments relate to the building projects capitalised based on contractors’ claimed values which have been
adjusted following finalisation of contract values.

ERCARERENLEENRBAPHERNIREERENMNEFIRE  RFARRKENEEZ

g

g% o

=
Campus Used by a Subsidiary
MEARERAZRS

Use of the campus located at Tsing Yi is shared among the Council and the Technological and Higher Education Institute of
Hong Kong. The land on which the building erected is granted under Private Treaty by the Government for a term of 50 years
from 16 April 1991 to 30 June 2047 for the provision of education and training services. Because of the special restricted
purpose including specific uses and absolute prohibition against alienations, comparable market transaction and alternative
reliable estimate of fair value are not available and hence no reliable fair value of the property could be obtained.
URBXNREHBIBEEBSEHERNRERARER c ZTUFMABNLTXNBABFHE - HES50F » H1991F4
B16 HE£2047F6 B30H » AFREHKEREREIIRE - HRNERENRG (ERBERRRELER)  BEEEZ
MER S REMAISE 2T AREEIRER  BRBEAENARE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt %5 ¥R & MY 5E

12.

(c)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont’d)
M  thas Rt (18)

Interests in Leasehold Land
HET R

The Council holds interests in leasehold land and buildings associated with the following properties, the cost of which were
financed by government subventions or other sources of fundings, and were fully written off in prior years.

BIREEUTYREAELHREFTNES - HRAHABFEHERIEMESHKFMEY  YERUEFETEEH -

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Campuses completed prior to the setting up of the Council and taken over from the Government by the Council at nil
value which include the four campuses of the Hong Kong Institute of Vocational Education (Morrison Hill, Kwai Chung,
Kwun Tong and Haking Wong), Haking Wong Seafront Complex and Shine Skills Centre (Kwun Tong).
BARERTRIBRABIBRIASERNRSEE  DHEBEERELER (BHERR) cRE-BEE
28 BENERR  ERHEIREERERESREERFB O (BE) -

The VTC Tower, four campuses of the Hong Kong Institute of Vocational Education (Tsing Yi, Chai Wan, Tuen Mun and
Sha Tin), the VTC Kowloon Bay Complex, VTC Kwai Chung Complex, VTC Pokfulam Complex, Maritime Services Training
Institute and Shine Skills Centre (Pokfulam and Tuen Mun) which were constructed after the setting up of the Council
and financed by government subventions.

BEIRFEAE  OEREE R 2RE-FX - 5% - HPANYDHE  BEIRBAEERE BEIRFZHBRE
H&i%ﬁl?ﬁi%%ﬁﬁﬂ% BEIRERRESEEZERTO CEHRMRERM) IRBENER L ERILRABAHE
iﬁ o

The staff quarters at Chai Wan and the premises at Billion Plaza | which were financed by loan facilities, donations, and
other funds.

URAKRENBEBESRERES —HHNYE  YHER BRAKEMESER -

Most of the interests in leasehold land are restricted to own use by the Council.

REpHEELHHNERRAMABIREEA -

Financial Report 81 ¥ #52015/2016 45



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 5 R & M sE

13. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

HBEABRIRE
The Council
Bl
2016 2015
HK$ HK$
Unlisted shares, at cost LMY - AR 100 100
The particulars of the subsidiaries are as follows:
MiE D RMRFSAT ¢
Proportion of
Ownership Interest
FRERZLE
Place of
Incorporation Particulars of Issued Held by Held by
Name of Company and Operation and Paid Up Capital the Council Subsidiary Principal Activity
LARER AT REERY  DRARBERAR BiRRE  WEAERE IRED
VTC School of Business Hong Kong Limited by Guarantee 100% - Provision of vocational education and
and Information Systems B ERERAT training
BERRIHERZR RUBREERAIRRH
** - Yeo Chei Man Senior Secondary School School  Hong Kong Limited by Guarantee 100% - Provision of education at senior
Management Committee Limited B ERERAT secondary level
BIXEERREERRAT RUBHREHERE
Technological and Higher Education Institute ~ Hong Kong Limited by Guarantee 100% - Provision of career-oriented degree
of Hong Kong &k ERERLT programmes
BEBZHENRER RUNEXARNELZMRE
VTC Enterprises Limited Hong Kong 100 shares 100% - Investment holding
BERRLXARAA (3 Bt 100/ REER
VTC School for Higher and Professional Hong Kong Limited by Guarantee - 100% Provision of continuing education and
Education (SHAPE) &# ERERLA training
EREHEER RUEEEERIRRH
The Institute of Professional Educational Hong Kong Limited by Guarantee - 100% Provision of continuing education and
And Knowledge (PEAK) B ERERAR training
REEBER RUEEEERIRRH
% VC Training Company Limited Hong Kong 100 shares - 100% Provision of vocational education,
BEEIERLT B {3 100 professional training and development
Senvices
RUBREL - SRIRRURRY
* VTC Training Company Limited became dormant as from 1 April 2014. By virtue of Section 447 of the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance, a dormant company is exempted from the annual audit of the financial statement.

H2014F 481 0¥  BEZIERIDVBTEDLF - REDFMRAISE 4471k - NEB R AR FEMBERROFTS -

x Yeo Chei Man Senior Secondary School School Management Committee Limited was deregistered on 15 April 2016.
BFXESHERRESERARN 2016 F4 A 15 H MM ©
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14.

(a)

(b)

(c)

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS ASSETS
RERKEMNEE

The Council makes contributions to a defined benefit retirement plan. The plan is administered by trustees with their assets
held separately from those of the Council. Following the leaving of the last member on 31 August 2015 upon retirement, the
Scheme was terminated on 30 September 2015.

BB EO—ERENZRATEMELEMR - LB TZEEHSTTAETE  WHIFAZEEIHEE - EHE —BK
E7£2015F 8 A 31 HiEIKE » ZFTEIEN 2016 F 9 B30 HA L -

The plan is funded by contributions from the Council in accordance with an independent actuary’s recommendation based on
actuarial valuations. The latest independent actuarial valuations of the plan as at 1 January 2013 was undertaken by qualified
staff of HSBC Life (International) Limited, who are members of the Actuarial Society of Hong Kong.
BABKEBEEMNER  UBEMEFAERDEFEEHER - 2013F 1 A1 ARFNBYREAERHEBRE
Eaasr-NWESASRKE (BR) BRQBETHEN -

The Amount Recognised in the Balance Sheet are as follows:

EEEEBERTRANBHENOT .
Consolidated and the Council
meakBilE
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$’000
Present Value of Funded Obligations AEANESEBNRE - (462)
Fair Value of Scheme Assets FEIEENAAEE - 9,594
Employee Retirement Benefit Assets EERKERNEE - 9,132

Scheme Assets as at 31 March 2015 Consist Primarily of Bank Deposits.
R2015F3 AL BB EETERERITEHEN °

Movements in the Present Value of the Defined Benefit Obligations:

REFBZZH 2 HESEWNT
Consolidated and the Council
HmakBEIE

2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$’'000
Balance as at 1 April 4 B 1B4%8 462 418
Benefits Paid by the Scheme B8 THEF (497) -
Current Service Cost INF B AR A AR AR 9 21
Interest Cost F B R A 4 8
Actuarial Losses EEEE 22 15
Balance as at 31 March 3 B 31 H&eR = 462
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14.

(d)

(e)

48

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS ASSETS (Cont’d)

EERKENEE (&)

Movements of the Fair Value of the Scheme Assets:

SEIEEZARESBWE

Balance as at 1 April

Benefits Paid by the Scheme Assets
Actuarial Expected Return on Scheme Assets

Actuarial Losses

Refund of Balance Assets to the Council

Balance as at 31 March

Income Recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income is as follows:
EXHBERPEIHBALT :

Current Service Cost
Interest Cost

Expected Return on Scheme Assets

Gain on Settlements

Total Income

Actual Gain on Scheme Assets

The income is recognised under other income in the statement of comprehensive income.

WARZEKZERWEMBA TR
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4 B 1 B#sk

M=t SIE E AR F
SFEEENREERBER

BEER
BESEREBIE

3 A 31 B&eR

N B AR AS AR AN

R B A
sTEIEERTAHIEHR
mERNRE

WA RBEE

SFEEENERRE

Consolidated and the Council

HARBIIR
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$’000
9,594 9,511
(497) -
80 190
(61) (107)
(9,116) -

= 9,594

Consolidated and the Council

mEkBIE
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$’000
9 21
4 8
(80) (190)
83 122
16 (39)
19 83
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Bt %5 ¥R & MY 5E

14.

()

15.

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS ASSETS (Cont'd)
RERKEBMNEE (&)

The Principal Actuarial Assumptions used as at 2015 (Expressed as Weighted Average) are as follows:

R2015 FEANEEZRERR (LUNEFHIERT) O -

2015

Discount Rate A= 2% p.a. HE 2%
Long Term Average Expected Return on HEEENEEFEY

Scheme Assets JEHAE FR = 2% p.a. HE 2%
Long Term Salary Increase Rates RREFEFHIE

Within 1 year —FR 2 % p.a. BF2%

Thereafter H#% 2% p.a. HE 2%
Average Future Working Lifetime of TEINEWNTERFY

Scheme Members TYEEE] 1 year 15
LOANS TO STAFF
BTER

In conjunction with Hang Seng Bank Limited (Bank), the Council launched in April 1996 a Staff Loan Scheme to provide
financial assistance to members of the Council’s Provident Fund Scheme, part of which has subsequently been restructured
by setting up a new scheme called Vocational Training Council Provident Fund Scheme (1999) (collectively known as
the Schemes). An unsecured loan facility of HK$30 million has been arranged with the Bank for on-lending to qualified
staff members. The loans to staff are repayable in accordance with repayment schedules of which HK$894,400 (2015:
HK$926,400) is repayable within 1 year.

BASEEARITERA R (BERIT) &1F  R1996 F 4 BABIIBABEE (ERHEL  STRIL THEIRE L
BEFE(—hhh)  SRABSHE)WHERTEETIENGE  RUMBUIER - RITSRHESESAESBY 30008 TH
;\!igﬁ;ﬁ%x ;EEH‘E%?JH%EE%%%E%EI c ZEBIEMEARMEERE  MHEP B S9.448 T (2015F : B 92.64ET)
SR —FREE °

The loan granted to each staff member is limited to 60% of the individual’s provident fund benefit entitlement at the time of
application. In case of default on repayment, the Council can exercise its right to request the Trustees of the Schemes to retain
an amount equivalent to such indebtedness out of any benefits payable to the individual under the Schemes.
BEETUENENRE  THREBREABFFIZELABEEHENCO% - BEETAREMRBEN  BIRERERABEE
ENZTEA  REBEIELABEHEESHNEND  HREEFHEENEEE -
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16.

(a)

50

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
FEURERTE ~ TR A EURARIR

Consolidated

2 AN
wh R
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
Accounts Receivable (Note 16(b)) FEUR BR1E (BfEE 16(b)) 8,363 9,831
Other Receivables Hib e BR1E 41,048 48,154
Prepayments SEENETeE] 35,743 39,896
Prepayments for Purchase of Office Premises BERAZET® - 33,442
Utilities and Other Deposits KEREMZEE 272 696
85,426 132,019
The Council
BIIE
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
Accounts Receivable (Note 16(b)) FEUBRIE (BYEE 16(b)) 5,592 4,719
Other Receivables Hib e AR1E 39,318 46,777
Prepayments SEENETeE] 27,388 34,695
Prepayments for Purchase of Office Premises BERAET® - 33,442
Utilities and Other Deposits KERHMIEE - 406
72,298 120,039

Accounts receivable, other receivables, prepayments, utilities and other deposits are expected to be recovered or recognised
as expenses within one year.

FEWBRIR - HMUEWARIE  ANFUR - kEREMES  FHER-FARDRHEI B -

Impairment of Accounts Receivable
FEW BRI 2 R E

Impairment losses in respect of accounts receivable are recorded using an allowance account unless the Group and the
Council are satisfied that the recovery of the amount is remote, in which case the impairment loss is written off against
accounts receivable directly (see Note 2(f)).

FEUERIBMREBRASTHMEERS BRI HRBERBIBA AN BUIRRNEE + oW - BREBASHEERE
WERTE M SE (FE 2 BT EE 2(f)) ©

At 31 March 2016, none of the Group’s and the Council’s accounts receivable (2015: Nil) were individually determined to be
impaired.

MR2016F3A31H @ AMEREBIIENWERKRFERNEEALERE (2015 F : £) -
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16.

(b)

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Cont'd)
FEURERIR ~ TR TR R E A EURERIE (48)

Accounts Receivable that are Not Impaired
TMERE 2 B ERE

Accounts receivable are generally due within 30 days from the date of billing. Further details on the Group’s and the Council’s
credit policy are set out in Note 21(a).

FEWBRIE — R E e 3 B B HE AT 30 BN EIH - ABBRBIIREEBERFBC HIIRME 21(a)

The ageing analysis of accounts receivable that are neither individually nor collectively considered to be impaired are as
follows:

FEW AR IR R B B AL B AMERE - HiREDTT :

Consolidated

= A

wh =R
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$’000
Neither Past Due nor Impaired RBBHNRE 4,405 6,308
Less than 1 Month Past Due BHALHN—EA 2,525 1,941
More than or Equal to 1 Month Past Due ERBEZR—EA 1,433 1,582
8,363 9,831

The Council
B

2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$’000
Neither Past Due nor Impaired RABBEAFRE 2,374 2,257
Less than 1 Month Past Due BERDTA—{E B 2,096 1,217
More than or Equal to 1 Month Past Due ERNTBEZHR—EA 1,122 1,245
5,692 4,719

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a wide range of individuals for whom there was no recent history
of default.

REBHMARENEEFERRE LA OHNERELNERALHE -

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a number of independent individuals and organisations that have
a good track record with the Group and the Council. Based on past experience, management believes that no impairment
allowance is necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been a significant change in credit quality and the
balances are still considered fully recoverable. The Group and the Council does not hold any collateral over these balances.
2BHERBRENEYRIE R E —FEA AR R IlﬁﬁEﬁ%ﬂﬁfﬁ’ﬂ%ﬂl%miﬁﬁﬂ%ﬁgﬁﬂ’ﬂ o RIFBIELER
BRAZEREEGENZTE FEAGEEZREEANE  EEERANEBEAUZHEKE - AEEBERBIIFBREIRF I,Eh
BEAERR -
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17.  CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
RERRTEFEY

Deposits with Banks with Maturity
less than Three Months
Cash at Bank and On Hand

Cash and Cash Equivalents in
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

Deposits with Banks with Maturity
less than Three Months
Cash at Bank and On Hand

Cash and Cash Equivalents
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FHALR={EAH
RITEMF
RITEFARRE

REREREBRATH
RERBRSEEY

FHALR={EAH
RITEMER
RITERRRE

RERBRSEEY

Consolidated

2 A

wh R
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
400,000 640,000
385,900 66,417
785,900 706,417

The Council
BaE

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
400,000 635,000
378,487 65,630
778,487 700,630
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18.

(a)

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE, ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES, AND PROVISION FOR EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

FEATRRIA ~ FESTS U ~ B IIRIER(ES & 2H

Accounts Payable, Accruals and Other Payables

FERRIR BT H R H e ARIR

Accounts Payable

Accruals

Deposits and Retentions Withheld

Receipts in Advance

Subventions Repayable to Government
(Note 18(c))

Accounts Payable

Accruals

Deposits and Retentions Withheld

Receipts in Advance

Amounts Due to Subsidiaries

Subventions Repayable to Government
(Note 18(c))

BRI

st

ke RkRES

AW FRIE

ESEBFNEDE
(Ff5E 18(c))

FEFBRTIE

st

ke RkRES

FEUWFRIE

FERH B A B IE

ESRZERANEE S
(Ff5E 18(c))

Consolidated

~PN
wh 3
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$’'000
198,541 190,444
355,112 289,385
48,608 36,975
644,574 628,996
1,784 3,405
1,248,619 1,149,205
The Council
IS
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$’'000
172,548 159,832
349,239 278,556
48,608 36,975
341,217 330,895
878,327 785,739
1,784 3,405
1,791,723 1,595,402

Accounts payable, accruals and other payables are expected to be settled within one year. The contractual undiscounted value
of accounts payable, accruals and other payables as at 31 March 2016 and 2015 was the same as their respective carrying

values.

FEIRRIA ~ ST SZ R A bR BRIA TR

REMBEMIRES B ZREERZHRERFTEEME -

PR —FRL - R2016F3 831 HK 20153 8318 » FE{IERIE ~ FEFT X H

Accounts payable included balance of government subventions for Fee Assistance to Below Sub-degree Students.

BARESERFORIZELUTEEEERUNEEEY -
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18.

(b)

54

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE, ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES, AND PROVISION FOR EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (Cont'd)
FEATERIE ~ [BStXH ~ EEMERERESEH A (&)

Government Subventions for Fee Assistance to Below Sub-degree Students
BRNOEZ2+tEENATBERENBEER

The Fee Assistance to Below Sub-degree Students is to provide tuition fee reimbursement and flat-rate academic expenses
grant for needy students pursuing programmes below sub-degree level. Full or half level of tuition fee reimbursement will be
granted to students assessed to be eligible to receive full or half grant under the students means-test mechanism of the
Working Family and Student Financial Assistance Agency respectively. If students pursue programmes of duration at one year
or above, they may also receive full or half level of the flat-rate academic expenses grant.

B ANBRIZ I UTRREEN FERARUEEEY R EEM I TR A NBRERIERZBEENEBEN
ABREERE  UHEIHIFEEDER  BURELESFHRERE - BERENRERE—FHU L TAHE
PHERNFENE BRI ERRE -

Balance sheet as at 31 March is disclosed below:

BABLHANEEEERWHEENT :

Consolidated and the Council

FERBAIR

2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$’'000
Balance as at 1 April 4B 1 B# 6,983 -
Government Subventions Received Bz BFEE 52,000 52,000
Less: Fees Disbursed to Beneficiaries B EXHGREEHRNER
Tuition Fees Reimbursement BEE
— Full-rate for 1,752 (2015: 1,499) Beneficiaries -1,7521 (20154 11,4991
PRETEHR (33,611) (30,655)
— Halfrate for 1,086 (2015: 989) Beneficiaries -1,0861u (20154 : 9891\ )
HETEHR (10,704) (10,080)
(44,315) (40,735)
Flat-rate Academic Expenses Grant EEEL TR
- Full-rate for 1,636 (2015: 1,502) Beneficiaries -1,63611(2015% :1,50211)
PHETEHR (3,643) (3,247)
- Halfrate for 1,042 (2015: 994) Beneficiaries - 1,042 (20154 : 99441 )
HETHHR (4,161) (1,065)
(4,804) (4,282)
Balance as at 31 March 3B 31 B&E 9,864 6,983
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18.

(c)

(d)

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE, ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES, AND PROVISION FOR EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (Cont’d)
FEAIERIR ~ St ~ EtEERIEREEREMZER (8)

Subventions Repayable to Government

EREBFNMEES
Consolidated and the Council
mERBIE
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
Balance as at 1 April 4 B 1848k 3,405 308
Less: Amount Refunded to Government B ANEECREBEEAT
during the Year &R (3,405) (308)
Subventions Refundable to Labour EREEZETIREMNE
and Welfare Bureau BN S
— Recurrent Subventions - KREFBE - 2,701
— Capital Accounts - ERERE 1,784 704
1,784 3,405
Balance as at 31 March 3 A 31 B&ER 1,784 3,405
Provision for Employee Benefits
EEEFERE
Provision for employee benefits relate to various allowances and benefits, mainly unutilised annual leave, payable to
employees.

EEEMNEBETAEENZRREN  T2EEAAZEHRRENEE ZKIA -
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19. LOANS

e
I=FN

Balance as at 1 April

Add: Loans Drawn
Down During the Year

Unamortised Deferred
Interest Expenses

Adjustment to the
Amortised Cost

Amortisation of Deferred

Interest Expenses
for the Year

Less: Loans Repaid
During the Year

Balance as at 31 March
Represented by:

Loans Payable Within One Year
Normal Value

Loans Payable After One Year

Normal Value
Deferred Interest Expense

Total Balance

Consolidated and the Council

GaRBIR
2016 2015
Bank Loan for
On-lending
to Staff Loan from
(Note 19(a)) Government
EETEIN (Note 19(b))
RTER HNER Total Total
(M 19(a) (HEE19(h) am g
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
4LB1AER 2,745 427,148 429,893 182,304
- ERfgANER
420 - 420 341,810
REEZEENETH
_ ; - (101,509)
HARCHHER
- (19,913) (19,913) -
KEEHEEL
FEXH
= 19,913 19913 8,084
3,165 427148 430,313 431,589
B ERERNER
(980) = (980) (1,696)
3A31B&R 2185 427,148 429,333 429893
FRFESE
-EREBENER
[ELE 2185 = 2185 2,745
—FRERENEN
L - 560,000 560,000 560,000
RS H - (132,852) (132,852) (132,852)
= 427148 427148 427,148
e 2185 427,148 429,333 429,893

56  Vocational Training Council % 3|4k 5



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt %5 ¥R & MY SE

19.

LOANS (Cont’d)

& (48)

The loan relates to a revolving credit facility for on-lending to staff and is unsecured and bears interest at 3% per annum (2015:
3% per annum). The interest expenses incurred are fully borne by the staff. The loan is repayable on 28 February 2017 and
renewable annually subject to Hang Seng Bank’s consent. The amount of the facility is HK$30 million (2015: HK$30 million).
The contractual undiscounted value of the loan as at 31 March 2016 was HK$2.2 million (2015: HK$2.7 million).
EEFETHNEAEHERBEKIFER  IENFRZEE 3% (2015F : 3%) - MEFEZHIHERE T HIE - BRER
20172 A28 BFE YA EIELRTRETEFEN - BAENEEA B 3,0008 7T (2015F : BH¥3,00087T) °
2016 F3 A 31 HWEHRE 2 RITRER B 2208 T (2015F : BE2708T) °

Loan from the Government (the Loan) was an interest-free loan under the Start-up Loan Scheme. The Loan is for the
construction of campus in Chai Wan to operate self-financing full-time post-secondary programmes by the Technological and
Higher Education Institute of Hong Kong. The Loan is secured by income generated from the operation and management of the
courses and programmes in respect of which the Loan is granted.

BRER(BBLER) REBMNREERTEIOBAFERNREER - LERBFERUNKENRS  UHEBSS
HEREERKEREREN 2 AFELRE - LEFULEREEZE LREZIMAERA -

Drawdown of the Loan will be disbursed in three instalments. First and second instalments of HK$220 million and HK$340
million were received in March 2014 and February 2015 respectively. The Loan is repayable in equal annual instalments over
a period of 10 years and the first repayment shall become due on the first anniversary of the date of final drawdown. As final
drawdown is deferred from 2016 to 2017 during the year, adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the Loan, which is
stated at amortised cost, using effective interest method.

LERED ZRZMN - BRAREZRERBE 282,000 8 TR B 318 4,0008 T2 251N 2014F 3 AR 2015F 2 A
o WERDTH  S8FFHEE F-AEREERBRRBEAE—BAEFHZIE - HREZXERH2016 FH#HEE
20175 > EMHERABETICIRERAREETHE

Total contractual undiscounted value of the Loan as at 31 March 2016 was HK$560 million (2015: HK$560 million) and was
repayable after one year. The unamortised deferred interest expenses represented the difference between the carrying value
and the redemption value of the interest-free loan using effective interest method at a discount rate of 5%.

R2016 F3 A31 AHMBANREZRINEBEABMES5E6,000E T (2015F : BH¥ESE6,0008 L) * WER—FEEERE -
R EENEZH AR EERNIRAERER 5% TR REAERNRETEBRE ZEH -
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20.

58

DEFERRED INCOME
IR o

Balance as at 1 April
Subventions Received/Receivable
Recognised as Income in the Year (Note 3)

Balance as at 31 March

To Be Recognised as Income
Within One Year
After One Year

Balance as at 1 April
Subventions Received/Receivable
Recognised as Income in the Year (Note 3)

Balance as at 31 March

To Be Recognised as Income
Within One Year
After One Year

4 A1 B4
B, FEWE B
RERNEZHUWA (FHFE3)

3 A 31 A#&E

R B
— 4y
— ik

4 B 1 B#8R
B U, FEWE B
RERXNEZHWA (HEE3)

3 A 31 B&eR
SR AW

—FR
—F#&

Consolidated

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
1,744,259 1,632,898
2,886,155 2,881,768
(2,921,811) (2,770,407)
1,708,603 1,744,259
276,369 306,306
1,432,234 1,437,953
1,708,603 1,744,259

The Council

B3 E

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
1,743,369 1,632,610
2,872,351 2,878,911
(2,916,051) (2,768,152)
1,699,669 1,743,369
267,435 305,416
1,432,234 1,437,953
1,699,669 1,743,369

Note:  Government subventions earmarked for specific purposes are initially recorded as deferred income which is subsequently
recognised as revenue to the extent of the related expenditure or depreciation expenses charged to related assets incurred (see

Note 2(m)(i)).

MiEE - HERBRNBUFHEEIEMEERIIARELYE - ARUEEMXIEREENTEXHSRRRERBBA GESRME 2(m)())
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21.

(a)

(b)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
ERREREERANEE

Exposure to credit, liquidity, foreign currency and interest rate risks arises in the normal course of the Group’s operations. The
Group manages and minimises these financial risks through its financial risk management policies and practices described
below:

THBNRBEELEBREFIREE RBES  IMERFERAR - AEBEB T U BRAREBIRREB I £
ZRREUAEERED

Credit Risk
AR

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will be unable to pay amounts in full when due. The Group’s credit risk is
primarily attributable to tuition fees and training charges receivable from individual students or sponsoring organisations.
Management manages this risk as follows:

FEERRRESIERFEAREREBFEINIIE - AMEBEZGFERARTIERBBLEMARINEYRBIIHTNEERREE
R-EREEEEEERKNT

In respect of tuition fees and training charges receivables, individual credit evaluations are performed on all customers
requiring credit over a certain amount. These take into account the customer’s past payment history, financial position and
other factors. Tuition fees and training charges receivable are generally due within 30 days from the date of billing. Normally,
the Group does not obtain collateral from customers.

NBEBEANREERIH SHER T2EMNEEZFETEAAGENM ZETASZTEETFBENNREE MR
MEHMEZ BERFEEA RSN BEABET30BREE - AEBE— RIS ERETFIRMHERR -

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s exposure arising from accounts receivable and other receivables are
set out in Note 16.

FEBHRUIRER HMERRENE(CIREBC I HNME 16 -
Liquidity Risk
REE < ER

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that funds are not available to meet liabilities as they fall due. The Group’s policy is to regularly
monitor current and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserve of cash to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term. The Group invests surplus cash in bank deposits not exceeding an average horizon
of three years.

NBECREBRIEIEEHESRENEBNEE - AHBHNERATHERRRRFAHZRBESE R » UBRERSRE
MINEFEE AUBNEHARRARBESER - AEBREFKNEESFRRARITEEHITZR=ZGENEREFNR °

The remaining contractual maturities of the financial liabilities at the balance sheet date of the Group and the Council are
disclosed in Notes 18 and 19. The contractual maturities are calculated based on contractual undiscounted cash flows
(including interest payments computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current at the balance sheet date)
and the earliest date the Group and the Council are required to pay.
THBERBIIBREEANMEEE2RORENHRTRHNA  SAMFTISF 19K E - RYUFEMNERT ZIH B 2RER
HNREARTRZRER (BEUZOREZNZINEE AN RMEIBHERMAFEZRELZ L) » URAEBFBIE W
ERERBRITEN
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21.

(c)

(d)

(e)

60

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES (Cont'd)
TREAREERAAEE (&)

Foreign Currency Risk

S bR

The Group has no significant exposure to foreign currency risk as substantially all of the Group’s transactions are denominated
in Hong Kong dollars.

AEBRZHILUBETTE » BAAIMNERIEERAR
Interest Rate Risk

F=ER

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from its borrowing activities. The Group considers that it is not exposed to any
significant interest rate risk arising from its borrowings as at 31 March 2016. The bank loan obtained is for on-lending to staff
who will reimburse the same amount of interest to the Council.

ARBNIZRARETERBEETE - AEBRABUBFTEAN2016F3IA3IHNEBERIEERPVFZERA - RITERZR
LRI BRENRZEFN ESEEETET -

Fair Values

AREE

All financial instruments are carried at amounts not materially different from their fair values as at 31 March 2016 and 2015.

FrE4MIENR20165F3A31BK2015F3 A3 HNEREEEEAARBEIEEREE
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22, RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

RERRH

Due to the nature of the Group’s operations and the composition of the Council members of the Vocational Training Council
(being drawn from private and public operations), it is inevitable that transactions may take place with organisations in
which a Council member may have an interest. All transactions involving organisations in which a Council member or senior
management of the Group may have an interest are conducted at an arm’s length basis and in accordance with the Group’s
financial regulations and normal procurement procedure. Donations received from Council members, senior management or
companies controlled or significantly influenced by them had been approved and reported in accordance with the Group’s

financial regulations.

HRAEBHEEER  RBIENESETRENAN (RILERVERBIRE)  AEBETREHEEESNEF T HEH
BHRBETRS MESREEENEIAIMBEESENRZURBAFRARAEEVBRAR EENRBREFE
To-REFENE EESERZHEFHEZLEN D AMBMNBRIIRBEAEBIBR MR KRS -

Remuneration for key management personnel is as follows:

TREEENENMESFHRBNT

Consolidated

= A

Fa =)
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
Short-term Employee Benefits EHEERET 44,244 41,850

The Council

BAE
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
Short-term Employee Benefits EHEEER 41,354 38,183

The above remuneration is included in “staff expenses” (see Note 7). The Group’s contributions to retirement schemes are

also set out in Note 7.

LM ESEFATETRX A (F2REMET) - ZHEE R EIHRT P RMEET
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23.

(a)

(b)

62

COMMITMENTS
S

Capital Commitments in Respect of Property, Plant and Equipment Outstanding at 31 March 2016 and 2015 Not
Provided for in the Financial Statements were as follows:

H2016 F3 831 HK2015F 3 A31 A% B RRERARUBRRBEZERREFNT !

Consolidated and the Council

mRERBIE

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000

Contracted for [EHES) 1,358,366 1,403,070
Authorised but not Contracted for CEEBNARTY 453,754 1,008,894
Total HES 1,812,120 2,411,964

As at 31 March 2016 and 2015, the Total Future Minimum Lease Payments under Operating Leases in respect of
Properties are Payable as follows:

MR2016F3A31HK2015F3 A31 A ' MEURLHEHACENREEENREAENT

Consolidated and the Council

mRE kB

2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$’000

Within 1 Year —FR 821 4,113
After 1 Year but Within 5 Years —FRBRZNGHF - 821
821 4,934

The Group leases a number of properties under operating leases. The leases typically run for an initial period of two to three
years, with an option to renew the leases when all terms are negotiated. None of the leases includes contingent rentals.
AHBULEHERA LY - —REEHRBERFA-Z=F  EFMERIEEZRE  TEREBEHAZWE - FIE
HETBEESEHE -
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24,

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2016
HE 2016 F3 A 31 HIL FEEBAMERAREMBEIERT « friBER K2R EEMNEE

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA has issued a number of amendments and new standards
which are not yet effective for the year ended 31 March 2016 and which have not been adopted in these financial statements.
BEAUKBRETERD  EESTHAASC AMEELEITRINEER  EREBE2016F3A3LHLEZFERKREY » W
WARRAREFEREZPERA ©

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the impact of these amendments is expected to be in the period
of initial application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact on the Group’s
financial statements.

AHBR ERELETHIAEARRBNEEFELTME - ESBHNERBRABLEETT  RELAKBNUBRRRELE
KESE o

e
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT TO THE TRUSTEES OF VOCATIONAL
TRAINING COUNCIL PROVIDENT FUND SCHEME (1999) (THE SCHEME)

RBEIGBELARZHE (A AN) (AR RXIANBIRHAME S

We have audited the financial statements of the Scheme, which
comprise the statement of net assets available for benefits as at 31
March 2016, and the statement of changes in net assets available
for benefits and the cash flow statement for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Trustees’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The trustees of the Scheme are responsible for the preparation of
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the provisions
of the Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance and for such
internal control as the trustees determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as
a body, and for no other purposes. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing and with reference to Practice Note 860.1 (Revised) “The
Audit of Retirement Schemes” issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
Scheme’s preparation of financial statements that give a true and
fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Scheme’s internal control. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the trustees, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
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RZEED (LT AR ERM) S FH e SN BHRE - &
EMN2016F3A31 H A HBRAIRAFEERK - UK
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WAV BIRR L BOARPES - UEMFHRERAFE
FH R R FF S 85 R T B 20 49 B A SR BRBRGL ©

ZHEMNEE
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BARARENRNE - HEAEMEATEERAE LR
BfE-

HEMEREBETBESAM LS EMA(EBENEL) » I
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;LE o
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Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of
the disposition of the assets and liabilities of the Scheme as at 31
March 2016, and of its financial transactions and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

22 June 2016

BR

BARE  ZEVHRRRCEBB(EBYHREERNE
EMAFRMEN2016FE3IAILANEEERBMR
MARBZEZHLFENTERZRRESRE -

EEHGTENEKA
HESTTED
BEBYIR

HEITE 1058
KFRESHE

2016 F 6 A22H
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INDEPENDENCE AUDITOR'S ASSURANCE REPORT TO THE TRUSTEES OF
VOCATIONAL TRAINING COUNCIL PROVIDENT FUND SCHEME (1999) (THE SCHEME)

BEEIBBREABEZAEB(—ANAN) (BRI RAANBUIRZEAEERS

We have audited the financial statements of the Scheme for the year
ended 31 March 2016 in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing and with reference to Practice Note 860.1 (Revised), “The
Audit of Retirement Schemes” PN860.1 ((Revised)) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA), and
have issued an unqualified auditor’s report thereon dated 22 June
2016.

Pursuant to section 20 of the Occupational Retirement Schemes
Ordinance (ORSO), we are required to report whether the Scheme
complied with certain requirements of the ORSO.

Trustees’ Responsibilities
The ORSO requires the trustees to ensure that:

(a) proper accounts and records are kept as regards all assets,
liabilities and financial transactions of the Scheme;

(b) contributions are made in accordance with the terms of the
Scheme;
(c) the assets of the Scheme are not subject to any assignment,

charge, pledge or other encumbrance except for those
specified in section 20(3)(b)(iii) of the ORSO; and

(d) the requirements of section 27(2) of the ORSO are complied
with.

Our Independence and Quality Control

We have complied with the independence and other ethical
requirements of the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
issued by the HKICPA, which is founded on fundamental principles
of integrity, objectivity, professional competence and due care,
confidentiality and professional behaviour.

The firm applies Hong Kong Standard on Quality Control 1 and
accordingly maintains a comprehensive system of quality control
including documented policies and procedures regarding compliance
with ethical requirements, professional standards and applicable
legal and regulatory requirements.

Auditor’'s Responsibilities

Our responsibility is to report solely to you, as a body, on the
Scheme’s compliance with the above requirements based on the
results of the procedures performed by us and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.
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We conducted our engagement in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to PN 860.1 (Revised) issued by
the HKICPA. We have planned and performed our work to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the Scheme has complied with
the above requirements.

We have planned and performed such procedures as we considered
necessary with reference to the procedures recommended on PN
860.1 (Revised), which included reviewing, on a test basis, evidence
obtained from the Trustees regarding the Scheme’s compliance with
the above requirements.

We believe that the evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Opinion
Based on the foregoing, in our opinion:

(1) proper accounts and records have been kept during the year
ended 31 March 2016 as regards all assets, liabilities and
financial transactions of the Scheme;

(2) contributions have been made in accordance with the terms
of the Scheme during the year ended 31 March 2016;
and at 31 March 2016, there was no shortfall between
the Scheme’s assets and the Scheme’s aggregate vested
liability;

(3) at 31 March 2016, the assets of the Scheme were
not subject to any assignment, charge, pledge or other
encumbrance except for those specified in section 20(3)(b)
(iii) of the ORSO; and

(4) at 30 June 2015, 30 September 2015 and 31 March 2016,
the requirements of section 27(2) of the ORSO have been
complied with.

HMERBEBSTMAS NMAE BEREERE
)5 3000 5% [ BREE T 23 BB £ B 5 B KL SN B
T RS R(EBHAIFE 860.1 5% (FLMERT )[R
PRI ES | ETRMANITHE - RMHCRERBITET
T WEEREFIERET LMSBE -

S IR(ERH ) 860.1 5% (ZIER] ) WZERF - &M
ERERAMTRMAABLEZNEERF  EPEEHER
RAREAGTEERET MR EMNILE - LHENS
EEITER o

HMBECRMCESRARSBNLE - ARMVEST
EREMER -

BER
RIBLAEFrA - RS -

(1) #BZE2016F3A3LBLEFER  FENAEE
E BERUBRZIREEFZENRE M

(2) HZE2016%E 331 BILEEANRIETEIFATH
TR BT ; MBE 2016 FE3 831 H1E v 5t
ENEEREYTMERNEBRBHEEAE ;

(3) A2016F3A31H  BR1EHI 5 20(3)(b)(iii) 5
FrBEN BN EELREEEMERE K
B ERNZHMOEREEMRR &

(4) 20155 6H30H 20155 9H30H KX 2016

F3HA31H  stEEBEFERHIZE272)1FNE
E °

Financial Report 81 % ¥ £52015/2016 67



Intended Users and Purpose

This report is intended solely for submission by the trustees to the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority and is not intended to
be, and should not be, used by anyone for any other purpose.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

22 June 2016
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STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS AVAILABLE FOR BENEFITS

AS AT 31 MARCH 2016

12016 F3A31LHAMBEBNTRBNFEERRK

CURRENT ASSETS
Investments Managed by Investment Managers
Cash and Cash Equivalents

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts and Other Payables
Benefits Payable

NET ASSETS AVAILABLE FOR BENEFITS

Represented by:
CAPITAL ACCOUNT

Approved and authorised for issue
by the Board of Trustees

on 22 June 2016

R2016%F6 A22H
HETZESHRRERRK

Mr Kennedy LIU Tatyin
Chairman

Board of Trustees
BiEELE
ETEEEEE

hRBEE
RELEERWIREER
RERBETEEY
nBAE

FEAS I H A FE AT BRR
PSRRI

AHERNNRNFEE

LHREDE -
BEXRRRF

2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$’000
3,840,409 4,130,608
17,476 19,810
3,857,885 4,150,418
50 202

2,712 4,405
2,762 4,607
3,855,123 4,145,811
3,855,123 4,145,811
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS AVAILABLE FOR BENEFITS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2016
BHE2016F3 A1 LEERNHBENNRNFTEEE B R X

INVESTMENT RETURN

Interest Income
Net Realised Gain on Investments
Dividend Income

Net Movement in Unrealised (Loss)/Gain

on Investments
INVESTMENT EXPENSES

Investment Management Fees

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Administrator’s Fees
Accountancy Fees

Audit Fees

Investment Consultancy Fees
Miscellaneous Expenses

NET (LOSS)/GAIN FOR THE YEAR
CONTRIBUTIONS

Contributions from the Council
Contributions from Members
BENEFIT PAYMENTS

Benefits on Termination of Service
Retirement Benefits

Death Benefits

FORFEITURES

FORFEITURES RE-INVESTED

DECREASE IN NET ASSETS AVAILABLE
FOR BENEFITS FOR THE YEAR
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2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$’000
1,533 2,865
108,195 190,098
- 1
(318,378) 46,038
(208,650) 239,002
456 514

456 514

816 880

106 113

50 47

132 124

27 23

1,131 1,187
(210,237) 237,301
147,962 151,825
48,562 49,715
196,524 201,540
24,957 13,646
252,018 503,140
- 3,586
276,975 520,372
72 -

(72) -
(290,688) (81,531)




INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE TRUSTEES OF VOCATIONAL TRAINING COUNCIL
RETIREMENT AND DEATH GRATUITY SCHEME FOR MINOR STAFF (THE SCHEME)

RBEXI BBV EERKEZRIENESF8 (FEFAE) RAANBIZEMAKRS

We have audited the financial statements of the Scheme, which
comprise the statement of net assets available for benefits as
at 30 September 2015 (date of termination of the Scheme), and
the statement of changes in net assets available for benefits and
the cash flow statement for the period from 1 April 2015 to 30
September 2015, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

Trustees’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The trustees of the Scheme are responsible for the preparation of
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the provisions
of the Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance and for such
internal control as the trustees determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as
a body, and for no other purposes. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing and with reference to Practice Note 860.1 “The audit of
retirement schemes” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
Scheme’s preparation of the financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Scheme’s internal control. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made
by the trustees, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

AAZEEN (LTSI BBt 28N KRR - &
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Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of
the disposition of the assets and liabilities of the Scheme as at 30
September 2015, and of its financial transactions and cash flows for
the period from 1 April 2015 to 30 September 2015 in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards.

Emphasis of Matter

Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to note 2(B) to
the financial statements which describes that the Scheme was
terminated on 30 September 2015. Accordingly, the Scheme is
no longer a going concern and the financial statements have been
prepared on a break up basis. The carrying amounts of all the assets
and liabilities of the Scheme approximate their net realisable values
as at 30 September 2015.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

23 November 2015
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COMPLIANCE REPORT BY THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR TO THE TRUSTEES OF VOCATIONAL TRAINING
COUNCIL RETIREMENT AND DEATH GRATUITY SCHEME FOR MINOR STAFF (THE SCHEME)

REZIGRYVBEERAKERENSFE (BRI TAIANBURBAELN KRS

We have audited the financial statements of the Scheme for the
period from 1 April 2015 to 30 September 2015 (date of termination
of the Scheme) in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
and with reference to Practice Note 860.1 “The Audit of Retirement
Schemes” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (HKICPA), and have issued an unqualified auditors’
report thereon dated 23 November 2015.

Pursuant to section 20 of the Occupational Retirement Schemes
Ordinance (ORSO), we are required to report whether the Scheme
complied with certain requirements of the ORSO.

Trustees Responsibilities
The ORSO requires the trustees to ensure that:

(a) proper accounts and records are kept as regards all assets,
liabilities and financial transactions of the Scheme;

(b) the relevant undertaking, as defined under section 20(4) of
the ORSO, is complied with;

(c) the assets of the Scheme are not subject to any assignment,
charge, pledge or other encumbrance except for those
specified in section 20(3)(b)(iii) of the ORSO; and

(d) the requirements of section 27(2) of the ORSO are complied
with.

Auditor's Responsibilities

It is our responsibility to report solely to you, as a body, on the
Scheme’s compliance with the above requirements based on the
results of the procedures performed by us and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

Basis of Conclusion

We conducted our engagement in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 860.1 “The Audit
of Retirement Schemes” issued by the HKICPA. We have performed
such procedures as we considered necessary for the purpose of
reporting on the Scheme’s compliance with the above requirements.
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Conclusion
Based on the foregoing, in our opinion:

(1) proper accounts and records have been kept during the
period from 1 April 2015 to 30 September 2015 as regards
all assets, liabilities and financial transactions of the
Scheme;

(2) the relevant undertaking, as defined under section 20(4) of
the ORSO, has been complied with during the period from 1
April 2015 to 30 September 2015;

(3) at 30 September 2015, the assets of the Scheme were
not subject to any assignment, charge, pledge or other
encumbrance except for those specified in section 20(3)(b)
(iii) of the ORSO; and

(4) at 30 June 2015 and 30 September 2015, the requirements
of section 27(2) of the ORSO in respect of investment
restrictions have been complied with.

Use of This Report

This report is intended solely for submission by the trustees to the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority and is not intended to
be, and should not be, used by anyone for any other purpose.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

23 November 2015
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STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS AVAILABLE FOR BENEFITS
AS AT 30 SEPTEMBER 2015 (DATE OF TERMINATION OF THE SCHEME)

2015 F 930 (AR LA)THBINARNFEERK

CURRENT ASSETS

Accounts Receivable

Bank Deposits with Original Maturity
over Three Months

Cash and Cash Equivalents

CURRENT LIABILITY
Accounts Payable

NET ASSETS AVAILABLE FOR BENEFITS

Represented by:
CAPITAL ACCOUNT

Approved and authorised for issue
by the Board of Trustees

on 23 November 2015
M20155 11 A 23 H

HETZE SRR IRERK

Mr Cliff SUN Kai-lit, BBS, JP
Chairman

Board of Trustees
BRAZI%E4E, BBS, JP
EREI- e

hRBEE

FE IR 8RR

M BEREFREAESEBR=MEA
HYSR1T 175K

RERBTEEY
hBAE
FEAS BRAK

AIHENNRNFEE

FREDE :
B RRF

30.9.2015 31.3.2015
HK$'000 HK$’000

- 24

- 9,560

15 24

15 9,608

15 14

- 9,594

- 9,594
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS AVAILABLE FOR BENEFITS FOR THE PERIOD
FROM 1 APRIL 2015 TO 30 SEPTEMBER 2015 (DATE OF TERMINATION OF THE SCHEME)
H2015% 481 BE9A30H L(sEARLA) IEAITHBANMARNFEELHRX

1.4.2015 1.4.2014
To To
30.9.2015 31.3.2015
HK$'000 HK$’000
INVESTMENT RETURN BEE R
Interest Income FEWA 40 110
INVESTMENT AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES R ER{THER
Administration and Accountancy Fees THRETER 5 11
Audit Fees EREA 15 13
Miscellaneous Expenses MIER X 1 3
21 27
NET GAIN FOR THE PERIOD/YEAR 0 ERFERE 19 83
BENEFIT PAYMENT ON TERMINATION OF SERVICE #& 1t BRF&1E RI{$3X (497) -
REFUND OF BALANCING ASSETS BEEARIBHRBREE
TO VOCATIONAL TRAINING COUNCIL ON
TERMINATION OF THE SCHEME (9,116) -
(DECREASE)/INCREASE IN NET ASSETS AHEAMEER SR
AVAILABLE FOR BENEFITS FEE(RD), g
FOR THE PERIOD/YEAR (9,594) 83
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE VOCATIONAL TRAINING COUNCIL
AS THE SOLE TRUSTEE OF NEW TECHNOLOGY TRAINING FUND (THE FUND)

RBEIGBFAFTNEKBEINIEEZ (BEBMET) M RXANBLILEAMES

We have audited the financial statements of the Fund, which
comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2016,
the statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in
trust funds and cash flow statement for the year then ended and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Trustee’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The trustee of the Fund is responsible for the preparation of
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the terms of
the Trust Deed dated 22 May 1992 (the Trust Deed) and for such
internal control as the trustee determines is necessary to enable
the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, in
accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’'s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to
the Fund’s preparation of the financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Fund’s internal control. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
trustee, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of
the financial position of the Fund as at 31 March 2016 and of the
Fund’s financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and
have been properly prepared in accordance with the terms of the
Trust Deed.

Use of This Report

This report is intended solely for the information of and use by the
trustee of the Fund and is not intended for any other purpose. This
report should not be disclosed, referred to or quoted in whole or in
part without out prior written consent.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

15 August 2016
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2016
BH#EX2016FEZF3H31HEEFENZ2E KW= X

2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$’000

INCOME WA
Interest Income FIE WA 1,263 1,737

EXPENDITURE T
Training Grants FEINERE (2,006) (1,812)
Auditor's Remuneration ZEENEN & (20) (19)
(2,026) (1,831)

DEFICITS AND TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE KEERER

INCOME FOR THE YEAR 2HUW AL (763) (94)

The Fund had no components of comprehensive income other than “deficits for the year” in either of the periods presented. Therefore,
the Fund’s “total comprehensive income” was the same as the “deficits for the year” in both periods.

BRY IXFERF]II BEEREXRBFIREEMEEWA - ALESRZEHEN [AFERF | BER [2EBALEE] -
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 31 MARCH 2016

2016 F3 31 HMBBHRRRE

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Bank Deposits with Maturity over One Year
CURRENT ASSETS

Bank Deposits with Maturity over Three Months
and Within One Year

Accounts Receivable

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Less:
CURRENT LIABILITY

Accounts Payable
NET CURRENT ASSETS

NET ASSETS
Represented by:
TRUST FUNDS

Capital Fund
Revenue Fund

Approved and authorised for issue

by the Vocational Training Council

as Trustee of the Fund

on 15 August 2016

R2016F 8 A15H
HMBEIRBUZEABIMIRIBEER

Dr Clement CHEN Cheng-jen, SBS, JP
Chairman

Vocational Training Council

B ERREE

FREE{—1E L, SBS, JP
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2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
27,000 -
82,300 110,200
29 24
585 912
82,914 111,136
(68) (527)
82,846 110,609
109,846 110,609
105,000 105,000
4,846 5,609
109,846 110,609




For enquiries &3 External Relations Office

Vocational Training Council
BN RBINEE

Address it VTC Tower, 27 Wood Road
Wan Chai, Hong Kong
EREEE 27 REBEI KRB RE

Tel B3% (852) 2836 1000
Fax &H (852) 2838 0667
Website #ik http://www.vtc.edu.hk
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